SBWMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
THURSDAY, January 28, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.

VIA ZOOM VIDEO OR TELECONFERENCE MEETING ONLY

Link to Join

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84628197027?pwd=ZzdwaW1BUEVJYUtIQitydEMxQmhidz09

Phone number for voice access: 1 (669) 900 9128
Meeting ID: 846 2819 7027
Passcode: 818749

PURSUANT TO GOVERNOR NEWSOM'S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD BY
TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE ONLY. THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE BY JOINING THE
ZOOM MEETING https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84628197027?pwd=ZzdwaW1BUEVJYUtIQitydEMxQmhidz09 AND SUBMITTING THEIR
PUBLIC COMMENTS IN A LIVE MEETING FORMAT. ANY EMAILS SENT TO rethininker@rethinkwaste.org WILL BE
PROVIDED TO THE BOARD MEMBERS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.
Live verbal public comments may be made by members of the public joining the meeting via Zoom. Zoom access
information is provided above. Use the “raise hand” feature (for those joining by phone, press *9 to “raise hand”)
during the public comment period for the agenda item you wish to address. The BOARD CHAIR will call on people
to speak by name provided or last 4 digits of phone number for dial-in attendees. Please clearly state your full
name for the record at the start of your public comment
Written public comments for the record may be submitted in advance by 12:00 p.m. on the meeting date by email
to: rethinker@rethinkwaste.org and will be made part of the written record but will not be read verbally at the
meeting. Written public comments submitted by email should adhere to the following: 1) Clearly indicate the
Agenda Item No. or specify “Public” in the Subject Line for items not on the agenda and 2) Include the submitter’s
full name
TELECONFERENCE PARTICIPANTS
ALL BOARDMEMBERS WILL PARTICIPATE BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE PURSUANT TO
GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20
PURSUANT TO RALPH M. BROWN ACT, GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, ALL VOTES SHALL BE BY ROLL
CALL DUE TO ALL BOARDMEMBERS PARTICIPATING BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE
ANY REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION SHOULD BE ADDRESSED TO CYNDI URMAN AT
CURMAN@RETHINKWASTE.ORG.
AGENDA
1. Call to Order/Roll Call
2. Public Comment

Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. If there
are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those submitted to
speak during this time. The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting. If the item you
are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed
as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2). The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or
have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that
time. Speakers may also submit comments via email prior to the meeting by sending those comments to
rethinker@rethinkwaste.org. .
MEMBER AGENCIES
BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY
* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
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3. Executive Director’s Report

p. 5

4. Approval of Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these
items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action. Items removed from the
Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion.

A.
B.
C.
D.

Approval of the Minutes from the November 19, 2020, Board of Directors Meeting
ACTION p. 13
Resolution Approving the SBWMA Investment Policy for 2021
ACTION p. 23
Resolution Accepting the FY19/20 Audited Financial Statements
ACTION p. 41
Resolution to Approve the appointment of a Citizen at Large position to the Finance Committee Ex-Officio
Board Member Jay Benton
ACTION p. 75

5. Administration and Finance
A. Election of Board Officers for 2021
B. Resolution Approving the SBWMA 2020-2021 Legislative and Regulatory Platform

ACTION p. 81
ACTION p. 83

6. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance
A. Resolution Recommending Amendment One Modifications to the Member Agency Franchise Agreements with
Recology San Mateo County to add a 4th route to the Bulky Item Collection and Abandoned Waste Collection
program for an annual operating cost not-to-exceed $631,371 in year one with contractually allowable
adjustments in future rate years
ACTION p. 93
7. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management
A. Resolution Approving Contingency Measures to Dispose of Paper in Case of Shipping Emergency
ACTION p. 109
8. Public Education and Outreach
A. 2019-2020 School Year Report

p. 123

9. Informational Items Only (no action required)
A. 2021 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar
B. Check Register Detail for November and December 2020
C. Legislative Session Update
D. 2021 Meeting Planning Guide

p. 157
p. 159
p. 171
p. 175

10. Board Member Comments
11. Adjourn

MEMBER AGENCIES
BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY
* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Joe La Mariana, Executive Director
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Executive Director’s Report

Staff and Agency partners continue to be hard at work in the new year supporting numerous projects, programs,
and facility initiatives. Here are the highlights:

1. COVID-19/Shelter-In-Place (SIP) Status Update:

As previously reported, the SBWMA and its primary partners have taken extreme measures to protect our
colleagues while continuing with high-quality services, as follows:
a.

Recology Operations:
All Residential, Commercial, and Multi-Family Dwelling collection services continue at our homes,
multi-family dwellings, and businesses that are open as regularly scheduled.

b.

South Bay Recycling (SBR) Operations:
All franchised supported operations at the Shoreway Transfer Station and MRF continue
uninterrupted.
Recently, SBR’s glass processor, Strategic Materials (Fairfield, CA) has experienced a COVIDrelated plant closure. This is a most unfortunate situation for their workers and our program’s ability to
recycle glass in the near future. This is particularly challenging for our recycling program because
Strategic is the only industrial-size glass processor in the greater Bay Area/northern California
marketplace. SBR’s management is evaluating options should this situation exceed our limited
emergency storage capacity of these materials.
Preceding the SIP order, both Recology and SBR implemented numerous safety practices for their
field and office-based work force, which appears to be paying off with their ability to provide
uninterrupted services to our ratepayers.
SBWMA Administrative Program Staff Ops:
All Staff continues to work remotely from home or, when needed, at Shoreway as our administrative
offices remain closed at least through Spring 2021 based on the current COVID-19 climate. All
regular meetings continue to occur, and Staff remains in continued contact with the Executive
Committee, all Board and TAC members, contractors, and Agency/industry partners, as needed.
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2. Administration & Finance:
a.

Upcoming major procurements
i. The Agency’s Operating Agreement with South Bay Recycling was executed on
January 1, 2011 and expires on December 31, 2023. There is no ability to extend this
agreement beyond this date. The base term of this contract was 10 years and the SBWMA
Board exercised a single, unilateral 3-year extension on September 26, 2019. This
agreement currently averages about $20M per year and the public procurement process is
expected to take a full two years, plus about a year to mobilize a new contractor should the
process warrants a transition. Staff will present a proposed workplan for Board consideration
later this spring.
ii. The Agency’s Construction and Demolition Processing agreement with Zanker Road
Resource Management was executed on February 1, 2017 and expires on January 31,
2022. This agreement currently averages about $3.7M per year and the public procurement
process is expected to take between 6-8 months. It should be noted that the Zanker facility is
the sole, industrial-scaled processing facility of its kind for this grade of material in the greater
bay area marketplace. At Board direction, Staff will seek to identify other processing options
for this and all grades of materials when economically feasible.
These two procurement processes will be managed by Grant Ligon, Sr. Management Analyst

b. One year extension with R3 on audit work

The SBWMA intends to enter into a professional services agreement with R3 Consulting to perform the 2020
annual audit of Recology and South Bay Recycling for a cost of $49,270, which is $560 less than the cost of
the 2019 annual audit due to a 5% reduction in estimated hours to perform the audit tasks. Staff intents to
RFQ the audit services for a multi-year term beginning in 2021, coinciding with the start of Restated and
Amended Franchise Agreements with Recology of San Mateo County.

3. Committee Updates:

a. Finance Committee Meeting (January 12)
The Finance Committee reviewed the final audited fiscal year finance statements for FY 19/20 and the
approval of the 2021 investment policy. The Committee’s future composition was also discussed.
Today’s Agenda Item 4D discusses this matter further.
b. Legislative/Regulatory Committee (January 5)
There was discussion at the Executive Committee by Interim Board Chair Aguirre to create a separate
Legislative and Regulatory Committee with regular meetings with SBWMA (Non-Executive Committee)
Board members. This discussion has been continued with staff and the Agency’s legislative and
regulatory lobbyist EEC. Staff expects this discussion to continue after the Board’s 2021 Leadership
elections being held at today’s Board meeting.
More information about legislation can be found in today’s Agenda Item 9C.
c. Pub Ed/Outreach Subcommittee (no meeting held)
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d. Technical Advisory Committee (no meeting held)
e. Zero Waste Committee (no meeting held)

4. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance:
a. Town of Atherton Update
The Town of Atherton completed their exit on December 10, 2020 when all Member Agencies
approved the Town’s withdrawl from the SBWMA. The Bond Defeasance transaction was completed
on December 18th finalizing the JPA exit action. The Town of Atherton reimbursed all actual
transaction costs which totaled $92k--$100k were estimated).
b. SB 1383 Update
The agency has opened recruitment for a Program Manager II (SB 1383 Compliance and Recycling
Programs). This position is an essential component of the Agency’s (and its Member Agencies) SB
1383 Compliance Plan implementation. This posting closes on February 12 at 4 p.m. Please refer
qualified candidates to our website for full job description and application details at:
www.rethinkwaste.org/jobs.
This position will report to newly promoted Senior Manager Julia Au (Senior Outreach, Education and
Compliance Manager). Ms. Au now joins the Agency’s Senior Leadership Team, including myself,
John Mangini (Senior Finance Manager), and Hilary Gans (Senior Engineering & Operations
Manager).
c. Community Outreach and Environmental Education
i.
2021 Shred and E-Scrap Events finalized
Thank you to all our Member Agencies who worked with Emi Hashizume (Environmental
Education Manager) to coordinate this year’s upcoming events for shredding and e-scrap
recycling. Please check our website at www.rethinkwaste.org/communityevents for the full
schedule.
ii.

Environmental Education (EE) Update
Staff participated in a series of webinars to school administrators, educators and
parents/families along with local community partners and environmental organizations on
available educational resources, services, and programs available for classes and students.
More information can be found here: http://bit.ly/smcoe-cbelp. In addition, the EE team
continues to work on distance learning materials. Our lesson booklet now encompasses 11
lessons, with a separate “Ryan’s Week” lesson booklet with staff adding new audio
instructions to increase accessibility for students. All current lessons can be found on our
website at www.rethinkwaste.org/teachingtools. The EE team will present further updates
about the In-Schools Program as part of 8A.
Our 2020 poster contest winners were recognized that their respective City Council meetings
in December and January. We recently received the following note from the family of one of
our winners and wanted to share the positive impact it had in their lives.
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“Thank you so very kindly for everything you have done with this very special project, from
start to finish!! You are absolutely amazing and your organization is so blessed to have such a
dedicated team member!
Our family is forever grateful to you in lightening things up for the kids, during these very
difficult times. This has given all of us a glimpse of hope in humanity and human kindness.
You have been a perfect example of what we have been trying to teach our two girls
everyday. Again, with sincere gratitude for everything you do:)”
Our deepest appreciation,
The Knight family
iii.

Public Spaces Update
Staff recently delivered new signage to San Mateo and Foster City to be installed in a few of
their parks. Staff plans to conduct waste audits in the Spring to gauge how well the signs are
in helping park-goers appropriately sort.

iv.

Batteries
Outreach and Education
A holiday battery outreach campaign began December 14, 2020 and concludes January 29,
2021. This campaign focuses on increasing battery bucket locations at MFDs, while also
creating more awareness around embedded batteries and how to safely dispose of items that
may contain them. The campaign is being run on Google, Youtube, Facebook, Instagram, San
Mateo Daily Journal (digital) and at the Redwood City DMV (video) in English, Spanish, and
Chinese. A mid-campaign report shows enormous success, especially when compared to the
battery outreach campaign completed in Summer 2020. The Spanish ads have especially
been very successful compared to the last campaign. A full campaign report will be shared at
the next Board meeting.
Multi-Family Battery Collection Buckets
Recology has increase its multi-family battery collection buckets from 227 accounts in 2019 to
301. To date, 338 buckets have been delivered as some accounts have multiple buckets.

5. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management

Work activity, site traffic and most material volumes at the Shoreway facility are at pre-COVID levels.
a. BHS Equipment—Phase One Equipment Installation is now complete
A six-month $6M equipment installation project was completed at the end of July, on-time and onbudget. In mid-December, an extended period of equipment commissioning and performance testing
was completed. The new sorting equipment successfully passed three key performance tests
independently conducted by Sloan Vasquez Consultants, including production standards for Fiber
Purity; Fiber Recovery; and Container Recovery Percentages. Final payment was recently authorized
accordingly.
b. Recyclable Market issues:
Over the holidays, SBR advised Staff of an unexpected cargo disruption at west coast ports that is
impeding the solid waste industry’s ability to move fiber materials to far east Asian manufacturing
markets. These materials—cardboard and mixed paper—are now being stored under emergency
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conditions on our site, but we have extremely limited space. This material represents about 60% of the
total amount of materials recovered in our MRF. Unlike many recycling commodity brokers, SBR has
successfully moved part, but not all, of our stored Agency’s affected materials. Staff will provide
Executive Committee and Board updates as necessary, should this situation be protracted.
c. Airport Land Acquisition Project
Preliminary work continues to advance the SBWMA’s long-term planning desire to access a small
portion of undeveloped San Carlos airport (County-owned) property immediately adjacent to the
Shoreway Environment Center in 2023/24 and beyond. After briefing Airport management, Staff
expects to review plans with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) planners for approval, and
anticipates a FAA ruling by early fall. Should a favorable FAA ruling be secured, Staff will work
diligently with the County Manager’s Office and Staff to create a viable, mutually beneficial agreement
for SBWMA Board and County Board of Supervisors’ consideration anticipated for 2022.
d. Shoreway Facility/Site Needs Assessment Project
Staff is formulating an action plan to review and optimize the current and future needs of our facility
site. Workplan details will follow to the Zero Waste and Finance Committees, and then to the Board for
its consideration later this spring.

6. Other News and Announcements

a. A recent SF Chronicle editorial mentions the 2016 fire at the Shoreway facility. This is great news to
get major attention. In addition, the editorial references the Statewide Commission on Recycling
Markets and Recycling’s policy recommendations report specifically calls our lithium-ion batteries.
This inclusion is due in part to our Agency’s relentless efforts in getting the word out about the issue
with battery safety and facility fires.
Link to article: https://www.sfchronicle.com/opinion/editorials/article/Editorial-Why-California-recyclingis-a-dumpster-15859984.php
Link to Statewide Commission on Recycling Markets and Curbside Recycling policy
recommendations report:
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1DJ8smXgUC4sAoja3SjmQKQfBCrKdfmTH

Respectfully submitted,

Joe La Mariana
Executive Director
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4A

_________________________________________________________________________________________
DRAFT MINUTES
SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
November 19, 2020– 2:00 p.m.
Via Zoom Tele or Video Conference Only
Call to Order: 2:01PM
1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Agency

Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Present

X
X
X
X
X

Absent

Agency

Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary District

X

Present

Absent

X
X
X
X
X
X

All Members and public participated by Zoom Video or Conference Call
2. Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is
limited to three minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the
Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those submitted to speak during this time. The balance of the Public
Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting. If the item you are speaking on is not
listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions
posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2). The Board's general policy is to
refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive
action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time. Speakers may also submit comments via
email prior to the meeting by sending those comments to rethinker@rethinkwaste.org. .
None
3. Adjourn to Closed Session
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code Section 54957)
title: Executive Director
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code Section §54957.6); Agency Designated
Representative: Jean B. Savaree; Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director
THE REGULAR PORTION OF THE MEETING IS EXPECTED TO BEGIN AT APPROXIMATELY 2:30PM
4. Call to Order/Roll Call (Public Session)
Call To Order: 2:29PM
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Present
X
X
X
X
X

Absent
X (3:58PM)
X (4:33PM)
X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary District

Present
X
X
X
X
X
X

Absent

X (2:59PM)

5. Public Comment (Public Session)
Doug Silverstein an environment & sustainability nonprofit leader at Thrive Alliance of San Mateo County, and
the leader of a new single use plastics reduction alliance called Circular SMC. The alliance would like to partner
with RethinkWaste and other community private and public partners to find viable long-term source reduction
solutions at food businesses, cafes, retail stores and effect policy change that can drive out single use plastics in
the form of bans on disposables and incentives for reusables product packagers. Further information on Circular
SMC was emailed to Board Members by Doug Silverstein after the meeting.
6. Executive Director’s Report
Executive Director La Mariana gave the following updates:
• He noted that the SBWMA leadership will shift since Chair Benton would be stepping out of public
service in December. Vice Chair Aguirre will become Interim Chair at that time, until the January Board
Meeting when a Chair and Vice Chair will be elected by the Board.
• In this packet there is a list of 2021 Board meetings, as well as other committee meetings.
• In the spring of 2021, there will be two proposed member agency elected body approvals. One is the
approval of JPA amendments including changes to the purchasing policy that would align the JPA’s
policy with the County’s policy and would allow staff some more flexibility when dealing with projects.
He noted that, should this be approved, the Executive Director’s purchasing authority would be
increased to $75,000 and up to $100,000 with Executive Committee approval. The second would be a
member agency level decision regarding amendment one to the franchise agreements, currently
Recology has exceeded the number of bulky item collection requests they can provide in the allotted 10
day time frame, so it will be coming back to the Board for a decision.
• He gave an update that 9 out of 11 agencies have approved Atherton’s exit from the JPA, San Carlos
has this item on their agenda on Monday, and staff has been working with KNN to handle Atherton’s
defeasance payment and plan that it would be completely funded by December 10.
Member Bonilla noted that he went to the transfer station this morning, and that there were only 2 men working
there. He talked to one of the two workers who was separating things out for recycling, and the worker noted
that the forklift was broken and they didn’t have a hand truck big enough to move a refrigerator that had been
dropped off, so it might end up in the landfill. Member Bonilla noticed many things in the transfer station pile that
should have gone to recycling, and that one person isn’t enough to separate recycling from the landfill pile.
When he asked the SBR staff about the situation he replied that they don’t have enough staff do it properly.
Member Bonilla noted that it is part of SBR’s agreement that they are supposed to separate and recycle the
materials that are recyclable, so he wanted to know why there wasn’t enough staff to fulfill that requirement.
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Executive Director La Mariana noted that in the interest of time staff would investigate with SBR and report back
at the next Board meeting.
Member Rak added that he visited the transfer station last weekend and found it difficult to park because the
waste hadn’t been pushed back, and he ended up blocking the door, and it seemed very unsafe. He asked that
staff look into his and Member Bonilla’s concerns especially from a safety perspective.
7. Approval of Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion on these items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be
removed for separate action. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda
for separate discussion.
A. Approval of the Minutes from the September 24, Board of Directors Meeting
B. Approval of the Minutes from the October 15 Special Board Meeting and Board/TAC Study Session
C. Approval of 2021 Board Meeting Calendar
D. Resolution Approving a 2-Year Contract with Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC) for 20212022 Legislative Advocacy Programs
E. Consideration of Six-Month Extension of License Agreement with Recology San Mateo County for Use
of a Portion of SBWMA’s Shoreway Environmental Center
F. Resolution Approving a Not-to-Exceed Expenditure of $198,983 for the MRF OCC Screen
Refurbishment
G. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for Quarter ending September 30, 2020
Motion/Second: Hurt/Dehn
Roll Call Vote: 11-0-0-1
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Yes
X
X
X

No

X
X

Abstain

Absent

X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist.

Yes
X
X
X
X
X
X

No

Abstain

Absent

8. Administration and Finance
A. Hearing Pursuant to Section 7.11.D of the Agreement for Operation of the Shoreway Recycling and
Disposal Center to Consider South Bay Recycling’s Request for a Compensation Adjustment for
Special Circumstances
Counsel Savaree gave an overview of the two requests from SBR for annual compensation adjustments. The
first request is that their compensation adjustment be based on changes in law made by the People’s Republic
of China to their standards for acceptable recyclable material which is referred to as the National Sword Policy
(National Sword). The second request is based on SBWMA’s closure of the buyback center. Both requests
were presented in writing to the SBWMA on February 12, 2020 and were presented to Finance Committee on
May 12 as an informational item. She noted that only these two requests were before the Board today, and that
in the November 10 submittal by SBR there are two other items mentioned, but those have not been vetted by
the Finance Committee nor have they been determined by the Executive Director. She then went over the
process, where there would be a staff report, followed by SBR’s presentation, followed by public comment. At
which point the Board would deliberate and take action on two separate resolutions one for each of the two
requests. She added that the requests come to the Board under section 7.11 of the Operations Agreement
contract, which does provide for SBR to make requests for compensation adjustments if they are qualifying
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special circumstances, and the contract calls out specifically what those circumstances are, and that those
qualifying circumstances increase the cost to SBR in the proceeding rate year. She added that it is SBR’s
burden to establish with substantial evidence that their request is provided for under the contract and
appropriate.
She then talked about their first request National Sword, noting that in 2018 The People’s Republic of China
adopted some regulations which changed the landscape of recyclables and disposal of recyclable materials by
first banning plastics and then changing the allowable contamination for mixed paper which closed the market in
China. As a result, SBR contends that their costs for labor, transportation and disposal increased by $352,000 a
year and that their revenue from these products decreased from $1.2M to $308,000 per year. So they are
requesting that the SBWMA compensate them an additional $1.64M per year. She added that Executive
Director La Mariana looked at this request, and there were two meetings with SBR to discuss it, and then issued
a letter to SBR denying this request. The reason the request was denied was because in the SBR agreement
the definition of applicable law is defined as any federal, state, local law, regulation, rule, order, decree, permit,
approval or any requirements of any governmental agency having jurisdiction over the processing, transfer and
disposal of recyclables. She added that it’s SBR’s contention that they are still entitled to this because China as
another governmental agency with jurisdiction over the processing, disposal and transfer of recyclables. Staff
disagrees with that perspective, China has no jurisdiction on any agency within the United States, and for that
reason staff does not believe that this is a qualifying event under the contract with SBR and therefore
recommends denying this request.
Executive Director Joe La Mariana then gave the background and overview of SBR’s second request in which
they are seeking additional compensation related to the closure of the buyback center. He noted that staff’s
recommendation is to approve this request, because in August of 2019, there was an abrupt and dramatic
change in the marketplace that resulted innumerous local buyback centers closing, and as a result those that
remained open were completely overwhelmed with buyback center transaction requests. He made the
emergency executive decision to temporarily close the buyback center, and eventual permanent closure of the
buyback center. He added that after reviewing SBR’s request staff believes that SBR is entitled to a
compensation adjustment for a portion of the lost revenue that occurred as a result of the closure. Staff Mangini
explained that SBR’s request is that the revenue guarantee be lowered by $864,800 which is generally the
amount that would be received from the buyback center each year. SBR earns 25% of the commodity revenue
after the commodity revenue guarantee is achieved, so by lowering the revenue guarantee by $864,800. SBR
begins earning revenue earlier. The cost to the agency is 25% of $864,000 or $216,000 on an annual basis. He
then noted that the retroactive cost to the Agency to the time the buyback center closed in 2019 would by
$79,000 in 2019, and $216,000 for 2020 and moving forward. He added that this number was included in the
2021 budget but was not included in the 2020 or 2019 budgets and would therefore be an unbudgeted impact to
the SBWMA.
Member Rak noted that he was comfortable with staff’s recommendations on this issue. He asked if there were
any job shifts or layoffs related to this change.
Member Widmer commented that he thought that the SBWMA had done a good job of trying to partner with them
in response to China’s law change, providing a share in costs of extra sort labor, and well as MRF upgrades to
make a cleaner more marketable product.
Counsel Savaree confirmed that the SBWMA has picked up some of the labor costs that SBR has incurred at a
bit over $900,000 to date.
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Dan Domonoske presented SBR’s appeal to the Board. He first noted that workers in the buyback center were
re-assigned and there was no job loss related to the closure. He also noted that cost-sharing does cover a part
of the labor costs they’ve incurred due to National Sword, and the request for $1.6M is the amount that goes
beyond that. He also clarified that China has banned mixed paper and mixed plastics, and the .5% of
contamination restriction is for all recyclables going into China including cardboard which essentially resulted in
being a ban which has impacted every MRF in the United States, especially California. He noted that SBR
operates under 4 principles, 1) safety, 2) regulatory compliance, 3) contract compliance with the operating
agreement, and 4) contract compliance with collective bargaining agreements. He noted that the 3 page letter
included in the Board packet makes it is clear that SBR is recognized as a great facility operator, who has gone
and continues to go above and beyond to meet the needs of the Board. He added that SBR isn’t making any
money, and this is not about trying to maximize profits, they are trying to recover some of their losses. The
National Sword was unparalleled, unexpected and unusual, and the attorneys from SBR and the SBWMA have a
differing opinion about the laws, and the meanings of those laws. So rather than appealing to the legal
justifications for the request, he asked the Board to think about what is reasonable, fair, just and fair. He added
that there are a lot of municipalities including JPAs throughout California who have essentially looked at their
MRF operator and compensated them for costs that are beyond their control. He concluded by noting that SBR
believes their request is both reasonable and fair, and that is not about SBR tying to make more money, we are
here to deliver the services you require, and would appreciated the Board’s consideration of not having SBR be
in the uncomfortable position financially for things that are beyond their control.
Chair Benton requested that the Board look at the two issues separately, first, National Sword.
Member Brownrigg commented that he was interested in getting Chair Benton’s opinion on the matter and asked
if the contract had any kind of force majeure provision.
Counsel Savaree answered that yes the contract does have a force majeure, but that it doesn’t change legal
counsel’s opinion on this question, because China is a market not a regulator so it doesn’t meet the conditions
for force majeure.
Chair Benton answered that he has read the contract and read Counsel’s write up citing provisions in the
contract, so from a purely legal standpoint he had no dispute with staff’s recommendation. From a human
interest side there is the desire to maintain a good relationship with an important contractor who has performed
well, but he thought it would present other issues if allocations were made outside of the contract, and he didn’t
think the Board should do that, so he supported staff’s recommendation.
Motion/Second: Widmer/Brownrigg
Roll Call Vote: 10-0-0-2
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Yes
X
X
X

No

X
X

Abstain

Absent

X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist.

Yes
X
X
X
X
X

No

Abstain

Absent
X

Chair Benton thanked SBR for all the work that they’ve done to trying and mitigate the problems. He added that
he’d like to think the Agency is trying to assist through capital investment in the MRF that will benefit SBR going
forward. He then moved on to the second decision item, the buyback center compensation adjustment request.
He reiterated that staff agrees with SBR’s request to the reduce the revenue guarantee share by $864,000,
which would reduce income to the SBWMA by 25% of that number $216,200.
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Member Hurt asked where are funds coming from to pay this additional cost.
Staff Mangini answered they are in the process of auditing the FY20 financials and if possible, he would like to
get the cost for 2019 and 2020 into that year as unbudgeted expenses for a total of $295,000. Going forward
2021 and beyond the amount is budgeted as a reduction of revenue.
Chair Benton reiterated Member Rak’s question regarding what happened to the staff at the buyback center.
Dwight Herring answered the employees were re-assigned to other parts of the operation and their wages were
red circled at the rate they were making while working in the buyback center which is higher than the rate where
they are working now.
Motion/Second: Bonilla/Hurt
Roll Call Vote: 10-0-0-2
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

B.

Yes
X
X
X

No

X
X

Abstain

Absent

X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist.

Yes
X
X

No

Abstain

Absent
X

X
X
X

Resolution Approving SBWMA’s SB1383 Action Plan

Rob Hilton gave a PowerPoint presentation on the SBWMA’s proposed SB1383 Compliance Plan, key issues,
next steps, and timeline. He noted that the SBWMA now has 13 months to implement the plan to be in
compliance by January of 2022.
Chair Benton asked how the decision was made regarding compliance responsibilities that fall to the member
agencies and responsibilities that fall to the SBWMA, and how do we prevent duplicative work at the two.
Rob Hilton answered that close coordination with the TAC, and increased meetings with the TAC to manage that
coordination. In certain cases, there is support and technical assistance that the SBWMA can provide, but
building counter, and purchasing activities that have to be done at the member agency level.
Chair Benton expressed concern that smaller communities would be taking on disproportionate overhead costs
for any of the compliance activities that the SBWMA takes on, because those costs would be evenly spread
using formulas that have been used for years, which means some agencies will be paying for services they don’t
need or don’t need as much of, and he wanted to make sure the SBWMA didn’t take on things that could just as
easily be done at the member agency level.
Executive Director La Mariana answered that HF&H essentially performed a gap analysis by taking a look at the
SBWMA’s resources, versus what the law requires and identified the gaps, and those gaps come to you in the
form of a compliance plan to hopefully be approved today. Over the next year, as staff begins implementing the
compliance plan the tasks that are better suited at the member agency level versus the SBWMA level as well as
the tasks that fall to the hauling partner Recology, will be identified. That means identifying a scope of work,
modifying the franchise agreements so that Recology can be responsible for their portion of the law and
compensated for it.
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Chair Benton clarified that the approval today was just for the plan, and expenditures related to implementing the
plan would come as a separate approval.
Executive Director La Mariana answered that the plan itself is step one to be approved with this item. Step 2 is
to approve the budget which is the next item and has a $927,000 line item for expenses projected for year one
implementation of the compliance plan. As well as adding a new Program Manager II level position that would
be directly responsible for implementing the compliance plan. This proposed position and these implementation
costs have been included in the SBWMA’s proposed FY 2021 Budget (see action item “C” below)
Motion/Second: Bonilla/Carlton
Roll Call Vote: 9-0-1-2
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

C.

Yes

No

X
X

Abstain
X

Absent

X

X
X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist.

Yes
X
X

No

Abstain

Absent
X

X
X
X

Resolution Approving the FINAL CY 2021 SBWMA Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan

Staff Mangini gave a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the changes between the draft budget presented in
October joint Board/TAC Budget study session and this final budget. He also noted that the reserve balances
were not presented in the draft budget but are in the staff report. They are about $16.2M which is consistent
with last 3 budget cycle actuals.
Chair Benton reminded the Board that this is the first time they are being asked to approve a calendar year
budget.
Motion/Second: Hurt/Groom
Roll Call Vote: 9-0-1-2
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Yes

No

X
X
X
X

Abstain
X

Absent

X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist.

Yes
X
X

No

Abstain

Absent
X

X
X
X

9. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance
A. Resolution Approving the 2021-2023 Public Education Plan (Continued from the September 24 Board
Meeting)
Staff Au presented the 2021-2023 Public Education and Technical Assistance Plan and gave an overview of the
staff report. She thanked the Public Education Committee and Recology for contributing to the creation of the
plan.
Chair Benton thanked Staff Au for her work on the plan and noted that one of the backbones of this agency is to
educate the public on recycling diversion and now SB1383. He also thanked the education team for being
creative and shifting to virtual tours.
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Motion/Second: Dehn/Brownrigg
Roll Call Vote: 8-0-1-3
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Yes

No

X
X
X

Abstain
X

Absent
X
X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist.

Yes
X
X

No

Abstain

Absent
X

X
X
X

10. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management
A. Discussion on Recology Fleet Fueling and Shoreway Facility Needs Assessment
Staff Southworth gave a PowerPoint presentation on collection fleet options for zero emission vehicles which will
be required by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) by 2026
Executive Director La Mariana noted that in terms of the collection vehicles, the ZEV technology is not quite
there yet, and they are considerably more expensive and less productive than their diesel counterparts. So the
next steps will focus on the support vehicles not the collection vehicles of which there are about 15, and if the
collection vehicle pilot in the spring of 2022 pans out staff will make recommendations accordingly.
Chair Benton asked when this would become an action item.
Executive Director La Mariana answered that the first decision is anticipated to be in the spring (2021) with the
PG&E subsidy, which may or may not be an option for us depending on the collection vehicle technology
options.
Member Carlton commented that Peninsula Clean Energy also has a grant program available for this purpose as
well and encouraged staff to explore that option.
B.

Shoreway Environmental Center Project Update: MRF Phase I; Organics to Energy, Storm Water
Repairs

Staff Gans gave an overview of the PowerPoint presentation in the packet but didn’t give the presentation due to
time. He noted that in addition to the EV fleet assessment staff is looking at regulatory impacts to the site of
SB1383, and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) Regulation 13-2. Regulation 13-2 is an
air emission control rule in development that may require air control mechanisms to be installed at the transfer
station and the MRF. He noted that the site is very constrained at this point, and more than two or three trucks
could not be added without bumping out cars and parking. Executive Director La Mariana is working with the
County to potentially access undeveloped land at the San Carlos airport which has adjacent vacant land as an
option for additional space.
He gave an update on current projects noting that the Phase I MRF project upgrades are installed, which provide
better battery recovery and reduction of fires, and improves the quality of material of recyclables. There has
been a 20% increase in MRF productivity, and there should also be a reduced sorting expense which translates
into a reduced processing cost per ton. The upgrade also makes it possible to sort solid waste at the MRF,
which ties to the Organics to Energy (O2E) project. He reiterated that the O2E pilot has not been able to start
yet, which has been installed since February, because there aren’t enough Source Separated Organics (SSO)
tons due to COVID arriving to justify running the equipment. So, to supplement the SSO they are receiving they
will be adding green cart organics after being sorted at the MRF to the smaller SSO streams and will be doing
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test runs in January. He noted that running the pilot is very important in collecting data and cost information
needed to determine SB1383 compliance costs.
Chair Benton complimented Staff Gans no small accomplishment during COVID of getting two major capital
projects completed. The O2E project is to a point where it is just waiting for material, and now upgrading the
MRF. He noted that they are up and running on budget and on time.
11. Public Education and Outreach
No Items
12. Informational Items Only (no action required)
A. 2020 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar
B. Check Register Detail for September and October 2020
C. Technical Consulting Contracts Update July – October 2020
D. 2021 Meeting Planning Guide
13. Board Member Comments
Member Bonilla expressed some concerns regarding safety at the Shoreway facility, during a recent visit he saw
the possibility the people dropping off at the transfer station, and workers, the possibility to step on boards with
nails, slip on wet floors etc. He noted that section 11.0.02 of the operations agreement, explicitly address and
provides remedies for safety. He asked if someone gets hurt, who is responsible, and are there safety
inspections. If so, are they announced, how often are they happening and are the reports available to the public.
He also noted that he saw a lot of recycling items being dropped off at the transfer station side, and wondered
how to get the recycling out of the transfer station, only one side of the transfer station was open, there was not
enough space for cars, and only one worker available to remove items. He attributed his long wait, only one side
of the transfer station being open, and one worker to remove recyclable items to the decreased personnel, and
asked staff to look into this, report back and provide resolutions.
Member Carlton commented that she has been on the Board since 2013, and this is her last meeting, and
thanked her fellow Board Members and staff and noted that she has enjoyed her time on the Board.
Member Mahanpour noted that this was also her last meeting on the Board and thanked everyone for the great
year. She thanked Executive Director La Mariana and Counsel Savaree for helping her to get on board at the
SBWMA.
Chair Benton also noted that this was his final board meeting, noting that it has been his honor to lead the board
for the last two years, and thanked Vice Chair Aguirre for her strong support in all the SBWMA activities. He
also thanked Counsel Savaree for all the work she has done on the SBR matters, there has been a lot of things
going on that required counsel input at today’s meeting.
Member Widmer noted that he has also been on the Board since 2013, and has enjoyed working with the staff,
SBR and Recology, and appreciates Executive Director La Mariana’s leadership.
Vice Chair Aguire thanked Chair Benton for his leadership, and on behalf of her Board colleagues noted that he
will be missed.
14. Adjourn: 4:41PM
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4B
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Director’s Meeting
Resolution Approving the SBWMA Investment Policy for 2021

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-01 attached hereto
authorizing the adoption of the Investment Policy for 2021. See Exhibit A to the Resolution for the proposed 2021
Investment Policy.
Summary
The Investment Policy states that the policy shall be reviewed and adopted by resolution of the Board on an
annual basis, typically at the January BOD Meeting. It was last approved by the Board on May 28, 2020. The
2021 policy has been reviewed by the Board Finance Sub-Committee on January 12th, 2021 which recommends
approval. There are no recommended changes from the 2020 policy. Redwood City Staff and Redwood City’s
investment advisory firm, PFM Consulting, also reviewed the investment policy confirming the policy is compliant
with California Code and no edits from the 2020 policy are necessary. See Attachment A – Communication from
PFM Consulting.
Analysis
On August 24, 2000, the Board approved the first Investment Policy based on the City of San Carlos’ Investment
Policy. The Board has since approved revisions on an annual basis. The attached 2021 Investment Policy is fully
compliant with California Code. The primary objective of the Investment Policy is safety of principal, while
meeting the cash flow needs of the JPA, through prudent investment of surplus cash.
Background
In January 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the mix of investments between the County Pool and the state
LAIF fund. The Audit Sub-Committee agreed to increase the County Fund to 30% to 50% while keeping the state
LAIF Fund at 50% to 70%. This change was approved by the Board at the January 22, 2015 Board meeting.
At Board request, environmentally responsible investment language was added to the adopted 2020 investment
policy and this language continues forth in the recommended 2021 policy.
Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the attached Investment Policy.
Attachments:
Resolution 2021-01
Exhibit A – Investment Policy

Attachment A – Communication from PFM Consulting
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVING THE SBWMA INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 2021
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), the City of Redwood City and
PFM Consulting have reviewed the SBWMA’s current Investment Policy; and
WHEREAS, the Board’s Finance Sub-Committee has also reviewed the Policy on January 12th, 2021 and
supports the recommendation; and
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
approves the 2021 SBWMA Investment Policy document as shown in Exhibit A.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the 28th day of January, 2021, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-01 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 28, 2021.

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Alicia Aguirre, Interim Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
Investment Policy
Page 1
SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
INVESTMENT POLICY
January 2021
POLICY
The investment of the funds of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is
directed to the goals of safety, liquidity and yield. This Investment Policy incorporates the policies
defined by the certified investment policy standards recommended by the California Debt and
Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC). The authority governing investments for municipal
governments is set forth in the California Government Code, Sections 53600 through 53686.
The primary objective of the investment policy of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority
is SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL. Investments shall be placed in those securities as outlined by type and
maturity sector in this document. Effective cash flow management and resulting cash investment
practices are recognized as essential to good fiscal management and control. The SBWMA's
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent
with state and local law. Portfolio management requires continual analysis and as a result the
balance between the various investments and maturities may change in order to give the SBWMA
the optimum combination of necessary liquidity and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.
SCOPE
The investment policy applies to all financial assets of the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority as accounted for in the Annual Financial Statements. Policy statements outlined in this
document focus on the SBWMA's pooled funds and debt-related funds held by the trustee/ fiscal
agent.
PRUDENCE
The standard to be used by investment officials shall be that of a "prudent investor" and shall be
applied in the context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. When investing, reinvesting,
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care,
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to,
the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the
agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an
overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.
It is the SBWMA's full intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity to ensure
the return of all invested principal dollars.
However, it is realized that market prices of securities will vary depending on economic and interest
rate conditions at any point in time. It is further recognized that in a well-diversified investment
portfolio, occasional measured losses are inevitable due to economic, bond market or individual
security credit analysis. These occasional losses must be considered within the context of the overall
investment program objectives and the resultant long-term rate of return.
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
Investment Policy
Page 2
The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and
Principal Analyst of the City of Redwood City (RWC) and other individuals assigned, as approved
by the SBWMA Executive Director and SBWMA Senior Finance Manager to manage the SBWMA
investment portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other written
procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and liability for
an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations
are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.
OBJECTIVES
Safety of Principal
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority.
Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from
securities default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value. The SBWMA shall seek to
preserve principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk.
Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by
investing in investment grade securities and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the
failure of any one issuer does not unduly harm the SBWMA's capital base and cash flow.
Market risk, defined as market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the general level of
interest rates, shall be mitigated by limiting the average maturity of the SBWMA's investment
portfolio to two years, the maximum maturity of any one security to five years, structuring the portfolio
based on historic and current cash flow analysis eliminating the need to sell securities prior to
maturity and avoiding the purchase of long term securities for the sole purpose of short term
speculation.
Liquidity
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing basis in
an effort to ensure that the SBWMA's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the
SBWMA to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements.
MATURITY MATRIX
Maturities of investments will be selected based on liquidity requirements to minimize interest rate
risk and maximize earnings. Current and expected yield curve analysis will be monitored and the
portfolio will be invested accordingly. The weighted average maturity of the pooled portfolio should
not exceed two years and the following percentages of the portfolio should be invested in the
following maturity sectors:
Maturity Range
Suggested Percentage
1 day to 7 days
7 days to 180
180 days to 360 days
1 year to 2 years
2 years to 3 years
3 years to 4 years
4 years to 5 years
Over 5 years

10 to 50%
10 to 30%
10 to 30%
10 to 20%
0 to 20%
0 to 20%
0 to 20%
Board Authorization Required *
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
Investment Policy
Page 3
* One exception does exist regarding the investment of bond reserve funds. If, in the opinion of the
Executive Director or the SBWMA Board of Directors, matching the segregated investment portfolio
of the bond reserve fund with the maturity schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given
current economic analysis, the investment policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity
limitation as outlined in this document.
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Investment performance is monitored and evaluated by the Investment Advisory Committee; whose
membership is outlined in the following section. Investment performance statistics and activity
reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the Investment Advisory Committee
and to the SBWMA Board of Directors. Annually, a statement of investment policy, and any
proposed changes to the policy, will be rendered to the Investment Advisory Committee and to the
SBWMA Board of Directors for Board consideration at a public meeting.
The SBWMA’s investment portfolio is designed to at least attain a market average rate of return
through economic cycles. The market average rate of return is defined as average return on the
Local Agency Investment Fund (assuming the State does not adversely affect LAIF’s returns due to
budget constraints).
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The Joint Powers Authority Agreement of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority and the
authority granted by SBWMA Board assign the responsibility of investing unexpended cash to the
City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director or Principal Analyst. Daily
management responsibility of the investment program may be delegated to the City’s Financial
Services Manager, who shall establish procedures for the operation consistent with this investment
policy.
INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT
The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and
Principal Analyst (City Treasurer) of the City of Redwood City will provide general oversight and
direction concerning the policy related to management of SBWMA's investments. In conjunction with
the City’s investment advisory firm, the Financial Services Manager shall review and approve
quarterly investment reports prepared by the Finance Division and meet as necessary to discuss
changes to the report or the investment strategy. The SBWMA Board will be provided with quarterly
reports for their review within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter covered by the report
as per Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code.
ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program, or impairs their ability to make
impartial investment decisions. Additionally the City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative
Services Director and the Financial Services Manager are required to annually file applicable
financial disclosures as required by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC).
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
Investment Policy
Page 4
SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities
dealer, all securities owned by the SBWMA shall be held in safekeeping by a third party bank trust
department, acting as agent for the SBWMA under the terms of a custody agreement. All trades
executed by a dealer will settle delivery versus payment (DVP) through the SBWMA's safekeeping
agent.
Securities held custody for the SBWMA shall be monitored by the City’s Financial Services Manager
to verify investment holdings.
All exceptions to this safekeeping policy must be approved by the City’s Financial Services Manager
in written form and included in the quarterly reporting to the SBWMA Board of Directors.
INTERNAL CONTROL
Separation of functions between the City’s Financial Services Manager and the Principal Analyst,
Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk is designed to provide
an ongoing internal review to prevent the potential for converting assets or concealing transactions.
Investment decisions are made by the City’s Financial Services Manager, executed by the Principal
Analyst, Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk. All wire
transfers initiated by the Accountant or Account Technician must be reconfirmed by the appropriate
financial institution to the Financial Services Manager. Proper documentation obtained from
confirmation and cash disbursement wire transfers is required for each investment transaction.
Timely bank reconciliation is conducted to ensure proper handling of all transactions.
The investment portfolio and all related transactions are reviewed and balanced to appropriate
general ledger accounts by the Account Technician on a monthly basis. An independent analysis
by an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review and perform procedure testing on the
Agency’s cash and investments that have a material impact on the financial statements. The
Financial Services Manager shall review and assure compliance with investment process and
procedures.
REPORTING
The City’s Financial Services Manager shall review and render quarterly reports to the Board of
Directors which shall include the face amount of the cash investment, the classification of the
investment, the name of the institution or entity, the rate of interest, the maturity date, the current
market value and accrued interest due for all securities. The quarterly reports will be submitted to
the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter covered by the report
as per Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code. If there are no Board of Director
meetings within the 30-day period, the quarterly report shall be presented to the Board of Directors
at the soonest possible meeting thereafter.
QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS
The SBWMA shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and with broker/dealers.
The broker/dealers should be primary or regional dealers. The City currently does not maintain a list
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Page 5
of broker/dealers approved to do business with the City. When necessary, the City shall go through
the Request for Proposal processes to select the broker/dealers. Investment staff shall investigate
dealers wishing to do business with the SBWMA to determine if they are adequately capitalized,
have pending legal action against the firm or the individual broker and make markets in the securities
appropriate to the SBWMA's needs. The SBWMA’s investment policy shall be made available on
the Authority’s website for broker/dealers’ review.
COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS
Collateral is required for investments in certificates of deposit. In order to reduce market risk, the
collateral level will be at least 110% of market value of principal and accrued interest.
ENVIRONMENTALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTING
When possible, the Authority will invest in companies that demonstrate verifiable environmental
stewardship policies that align with the SBWMA’s Triple Zero goals. These goals are identified in
the Authority’s 2020 Long Range Plan-Guiding Principles and Objectives. They are:
1. Eliminate the disposal of recyclable materials at landfills
2. Eliminate the disposal of organic materials at landfills
3. Minimize Agency greenhouse gas emissions (through measures such as using lowemission vehicle fuels and reducing the need for materials collection and transfer of
materials).
These goals will allow the Authority’s environmental responsible asset investment to strategically
align with its mission, and with its Member Agencies’ own environmental visions.
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
Investment of SBWMA funds is governed by the California Government Code Sections 53600 et
seq. Within the context of the limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further limited
herein:
1. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes or those for which the full faith and credit of
the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no percentage
limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable.
2. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed investment
pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the maximum permitted
by California State Law. A review of the pool/fund is required when they are part of the list
of authorized investments, with the knowledge that the pool/fund may include some
investments allowed by statute but not explicitly identified in this investment policy.
3. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations,
participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to
principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored
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enterprises. There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this
category, although a five-year maturity limitation is applicable.
4. Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by commercial banks, otherwise
known as banker's acceptances. Banker's acceptances purchased may not exceed 180 days
to maturity or 40% of the cost value of the portfolio. Also, no more than 30% of the agency’s
money may be in bankers’ acceptances of any one commercial bank.
5.

Commercial paper ranked the highest letter and number rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization (NRSRO), such as Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch
Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s Investors Services, and issued by domestic corporations having
assets in excess of $500,000,000 and having a rating in the rating category of “A” or the
equivalent or better rating on its' long term debentures as provided by NRSRO. Purchases
of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity nor represent more than
10% of the outstanding paper of the issuing corporation. Purchases of commercial paper
may not exceed 25% of the cost value of the portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value
of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.

6.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by nationally or state chartered banks (FDIC
insured institutions), a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section
5102 of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally licensed or
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit may
not exceed 30% of total portfolio. A maturity limitation of five years is applicable. No more
than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.

7.

Time deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized in accordance with the California
Government Code, may be purchased through banks or savings and loan associations.
Since time deposits are not liquid, no more than 30% of the investment portfolio may be
invested in this investment type. A maturity limitation of five years is applicable.

8.

Medium Term Corporate Notes, with a maximum maturity of five years may be purchased.
Securities eligible for investment shall be rated in a rating category of “A” or the equivalent
or better by an NRSRO. Purchase of medium term notes may not exceed 30% of the market
value of the portfolio and no more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be
invested in notes issued by one corporation..

9.

Ineligible investments are those that are not described herein, including but not limited to,
common stocks and long term (over five years in maturity) notes and bonds are prohibited
from use in this portfolio. It is noted that special circumstances arise that necessitate the
purchase of securities beyond the five-year limitation. On such occasions, requests must be
approved by Board of Directors prior to purchase.

10.

Various daily money market funds administered for or by trustees, paying agents and
custodian banks contracted by the SBWMA may be purchased as allowed under State of
California Government Code. Only funds holding U.S. Treasury or Government agency
obligations can be utilized.
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The following summary of maximum percentage limits, by instrument, is established for the
SBWMA's total pooled funds portfolio:

Authorized
Investment Type

Local Agency
Investment Fund
(LAIF)

Government
Code

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit
Quality

Maximum in
Portfolio

50% to 70% of the
investment
portfolio, as
approved by the
SBWMA Board
but no more than
$75 million
permitted by LAIF
30% to 50% of the
investment
portfolio, as
approved by the
SBWMA Board

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

16429.1

Upon
Demand

N/A

53684

Upon
Demand

N/A

53601(b)

5 Years

N/A

100%

N/A

53601(f)

5 Years

N/A

100%

N/A

Bankers’
Acceptances

53601(g)

180 Days

N/A

40%

30%

Commercial Paper

53601(h)

270 Days

Highest
letter and
number
rating by
an
NRSRO

25%

5%

53601(i)

5 Years

N/A

30%

5%

53601.8

5 Years

N/A

30%

N/A

5 Years

Rating
category
“A” by
NRSRO

30%

5%

San Mateo County
Investment Pool
Treasury Obligations
(bills, notes & bonds)
US Government
Agency and Federal
Agency Securities

Negotiable
Certificates of
Deposit
Time Certificates of
Deposit – Banks or
Savings and Loans

Medium Term
Corporate Notes

53601(k)

N/A

N/A

DERIVATIVE INVESTMENTS
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Derivatives are investments whose value is "derived" from a benchmark or index. That benchmark
can be almost any financial measure from interest rates to commodity and stock prices. The use of
derivatives is prohibited under this policy.
LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
Any State of California legislative action that further restricts allowable maturities, investment type,
or percentage allocations will be incorporated into the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority's Investment Policy and supersede any and all previous applicable language.
INTEREST EARNINGS
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated
quarterly to various fund accounts based on the cash balance in each fund at quarter end as a
percentage of the entire pooled portfolio.
LIMITING MARKET VALUE EROSION
The longer the maturity of securities, the greater their market price volatility. Therefore, it is the
general policy of the SBWMA to limit the potential effects from erosion in market values by adhering
to the following guidelines:
All immediate and anticipated liquidity requirements will be addressed prior to purchasing all
investments.
Maturity dates for long-term investments will coincide with significant cash flow requirements where
possible, to assist with short term cash requirements at maturity.
All long-term securities will be purchased with the intent to hold all investments to maturity under
then prevailing economic conditions. However, economic or market conditions may change, making
it in the SBWMA's best interest to sell or trade a security prior to maturity.
PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY
The investment program shall seek to augment returns consistent with the intent of this policy,
identified risk limitations and prudent investment principals. These objectives will be achieved by
use of the following strategies:
Active Portfolio Management. Through active fund and cash flow management, taking advantage
of current economic and interest rate trends, the portfolio yield may be enhanced with limited and
measurable increases in risk by extending the weighted maturity of the total portfolio.
Portfolio Maturity Management. When structuring the maturity composition of the portfolio, the
SBWMA shall evaluate current and expected interest rate yields and necessary cash flow
requirements. It is recognized that in normal market conditions longer maturities produce higher
yields. However, the securities with longer maturities also experience greater price fluctuations when
the level of interest rates change.
Security Swaps. The SBWMA may take advantage of security swap opportunities to improve the
overall portfolio yield. A swap, which improves the portfolio yield, may be selected even if the
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transactions result in an accounting loss. Documentation for swaps will be included in the SBWMA
permanent investment file documents.
Competitive Bidding. It is the policy of the SBWMA to require competitive bidding for investment
transactions that are not classified as "new issue" securities. For the purchase of non-"new issue"
securities and the sale of all securities at least three bidders must be contacted. Competitive bidding
for security swaps is also suggested, however, it is understood that certain time constraints and
broker portfolio limitations exist which would not accommodate the competitive bidding process. If
a time or portfolio constraining condition exists, the pricing of the swap should be verified to current
market conditions and documented for auditing purposes.
POLICY REVIEW
The South Bayside Waste Management Authority's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution
of the Board on an annual basis. This investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure
its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield, and its
relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. Any amendments to the policy shall be
forwarded to Board for approval.
Glossary of Terms
Accrued Interest- Interest earned but not yet received.
Active Deposits- Funds which are immediately required for disbursement.
Amortization- An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time.
Annual Financial Report - The official annual financial report for the SBWMA. It includes five
combined statements and basic financial statements for each individual fund and account group
prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).
Asked Price- The price a broker dealer offers to sell securities.
Basis Point- One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01).
Bid Price- The price a broker dealer offers to purchase securities.
Bond- A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specified stream
of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.
Bond Swap – Selling one bond issue and buying another at the same time in order to create an
advantage for the investor. Some benefits of swapping may include tax-deductible losses,
increased yields, and an improved quality portfolio.
Book Entry Securities – Securities, such stocks held in “street name,” that are recorded in a
customer’s account, but are not accompanied by a certificate. The trend is toward a certificate-free
society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates
themselves. All the large New York City banks, including those that handle the bulk of the
transactions of the major government securities dealers, now clear most of their transactions with
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each other and with the Federal Reserve through the use of automated telecommunications and the
“book-entry” custody system maintained by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. These banks
have deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank a major portion of their government and agency
securities holdings, including securities held for the accounts of their customers or in a fiduciary
capacity. Virtually all transfers for the account of the banks, as well as for the government securities
dealers who are their clients, are now effected solely by bookkeeping entries. The system reduces
the costs and risks of physical handling and speeds the completion of transactions.
Bearer and Registered Bonds - In the past, bearer and registered bonds were issued in paper form.
Those still outstanding may be exchanged at any Federal Reserve Bank or branch for an equal
amount of any authorized denomination of the same issue. Outstanding bearer bonds are
interchangeable with registered bonds and bonds in “book-entry” form. That is, the latter exist as
computer entries only and no paper securities are issued. New bearer and registered bonds are no
longer being issued. Since August 1986, the Treasury’s new issues of marketable notes and bonds
are available in book-entry form only. All Treasury bills and more than 90% of all other marketable
securities are now in book-entry form. Book-entry obligations are transferable only pursuant to
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury.
Book Value- The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount.
Broker – In securities, the intermediary between a buyer and a seller of securities. The broker, who
usually charges a commission, must be registered with the exchange in which he or she is trading,
accounting for the name registered representative.
Certificate of Deposit- A deposit insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC at a set rate for a specified
period of time.
Collateral- Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys.
Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT) - An average yield of a specific Treasury maturity sector for a
specific time frame. This is a market index for reference of past direction of interest rates for the
given Treasury maturity range.
Coupon- The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the
bond's face value.
Credit Analysis- A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the
ability to meet debt obligations.
Current Yield- The interest paid on an investment expressed as a percentage of the current price of
the security.
Custody- A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal.
Delivery vs. Payment (DVP) - Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for the
securities.
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Discount- The difference between the cost of a security and its value at maturity when quoted at
lower than face value.
Diversification- Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent returns
and risk profiles.
Duration- The weighted average maturity of a bond's cash flow stream, where the present value of
the cash flows serve as the weights; the future point in time at which on average, an investor has
received exactly half of the original investment, in present value terms; a bond's zero-coupon
equivalent; the fulcrum of a bond's present value cash flow time line.
Fannie Mae- Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U.S. sponsored
corporation.
Federal Reserve System- The central bank of the U.S. that consists of a seven member Board of
Governors, 12 regional banks and approximately 3,000 commercial banks that are members.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing
bank that guarantees deposits to a set limit (currently $250,000) per account.
Fed Wire- A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system.
Freddie Mac- Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S.
sponsored corporation.
Ginnie Mae- Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct
obligation bearing the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.
Inactive Deposits- Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.
Interest Rate- The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.
Investment Agreements- An agreement with a financial institution to borrow public funds subject to
certain negotiated terms and conditions concerning collateral, liquidity and interest rates.
Liquidity- Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash.
Market Value- The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold.
Maturity- The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and
payable.
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSRO): A U.S. Securities & Exchange
Commission registered agency that assesses the creditworthiness of an entity or specific security.
NRSRO typically refers to Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s
Investors Services.
New Issue- Term used when a security is originally "brought" to market.
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Perfected Delivery- Refers to an investment where the actual security or collateral is held by an
independent third party representing the purchasing entity.
Portfolio- Collection of securities held by an investor.
Primary Dealer- A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market activity
and security positions held to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its informal
oversight.
Purchase Date- The date in which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date.
Rate of Return- The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return.
Repurchase Agreement (REPO) - A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from
the buyer (SBWMA) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.
Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPO) - A transaction where the seller (SBWMA)
agrees to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period
of time.
Risk- Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset.
Safekeeping- see custody.
Sallie Mae- Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), a U.S. sponsored
corporation.
Secondary Market- A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the
initial distribution.
Settlement Date- The date on which a trade is cleared by delivery of securities against funds.
Time Deposit – A deposit in an interest-paying account that requires the money to remain on account
for a specific length of time. While withdrawals can generally be made from a passbook account at
any time, other time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, are penalized for early withdrawal.
Treasury Obligations- Debt obligations of the U.S. Government that are sold by the Treasury
Department in the forms of bills, notes, and bonds. Bills are short-term obligations that mature in
one year or less. Notes are obligations that mature between one year and ten years. Bonds are
long-term obligations that generally mature in ten years or more.
U.S. Government Agencies- Instruments issued by various US Government Agencies most of which
are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular agency.
Yield- The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. It is obtained
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price of the security.
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Yield to Maturity- The rate of income return on an investment, minus any premium or plus any
discount, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of
maturity of the bond, expressed as a percentage.
Yield Curve- The yield on bonds, notes or bills of the same type and credit risk at a specific date for
maturities up to thirty years.
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John Mangini
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

FIN-Derek Rampone <drampone@redwoodcity.org>
Tuesday, December 29, 2020 2:06 PM
John Mangini
FW: SBWMA review of investment policy

Hi John,
Please see below – no comments on your investment policy. PFM did provide clarification on a Government Code
change below, that you may want to keep as reference info.
Derek
From: Allison Kaune <KAUNEA@pfm.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 15, 2020 11:18 AM
To: FIN‐Derek Rampone <drampone@redwoodcity.org>
Cc: Monique Spyke <SPYKEM@pfm.com>
Subject: RE: SBWMA review of investment policy

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links,
especially from unknown senders.

Hello Derek,
We have completed our review of SBWMA’s Investment Policy and we have no recommended changes this
year.
The California Government Code changes resulting from Senate Bill 998 either do not apply to SBWMA or they
require no changes to SBWMA’s Investment Policy to incorporate. SB 998 and its impact on SBWMA’s Policy
are as follows:








SB 998: Allows investment in securities issued or backed by the US Government that could result in
zero or negative interest accrual if held to maturity. SBWMA Policy: Does not explicitly prohibit
investment in this type of security and so no changes need to be made to allow investment in this
security type as they would be allowed under current language permitting investment in U.S.
Government securities.
SB 998: Allows local agencies that have more than $100 million of investment assets under
management to invest up to 40% in commercial paper (existing limit is 25% for all agencies, other than
a county or a city and county). SBWMA Policy: By reviewing a financial report from 9/30/20 it looks like
SBWMA has approximately $30 million of investment assets under management and so they are not
eligible to increase the commercial paper limit.
SB 998: Establishes a 10% issuer limit on commercial paper and corporate notes for all agencies, other
than a county or a city and county. SBWMA Policy: currently places a 5% issuer limit on commercial
paper and corporate notes and we recommend SBWMA maintain the more restrictive limit to keep the
high standard of safety and diversification.
SB 998: Adds permission for federally recognized Indian tribes to invest and participate in investment
JPAs. SBWMA Policy: No changes need to be made to address this.

Please let us know if you, or a member of SBWMA, have any questions or if you’d like to discuss our review
further.
Thank you,
Allison
1
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Allison Kaune
Pronouns: she, her, hers
____
PFM Asset Management LLC
email kaunea@pfm.com | phone 415.515.6389 | fax 415.982.4513 | web pfm.com

From: FIN‐Derek Rampone <drampone@redwoodcity.org>
Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2020 2:04 PM
To: Allison Kaune <KAUNEA@pfm.com>; Monique Spyke <SPYKEM@pfm.com>
Subject: SBWMA review of investment policy
EXTERNAL EMAIL: Use care with links and attachments.
Good afternoon,
Can you please review the attached investment policy for SBWMA and recommend any updates for 2021? We are
bringing this to their Finance Committee on 1/12/21.
Also, if you need to invoice is for this service, please do.
Derek
Derek Rampone
Financial Services Manager, Finance Division
Administrative Services Department
City of Redwood City
Phone: (650) 780‐7071
E‐mail:drampone@redwoodcity.org
www.redwoodcity.org

In response to guidance from public health officials, City administrative offices, including City Hall, are closed to the public
until further notice. Essential City services, including Police, Fire, public utilities, public infrastructure and social services will
continue to operate. All customer services are being modified to provide for employee and community safety. Many City
services are being provided remotely, by phone or email.
For more information, please visit the City’s website at www.redwoodcity.org/coronavirus. Please note that the San Mateo
County Health Department addresses Frequently Asked Questions here. You may also call the COVID-19 Call Center at 2-1-1
with all non-emergency and non-medical inquiries. The Call Center is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
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4C
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Resolution Accepting the FY19/20 Audited Financial Statements

Board Action
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-02 attached hereto
authorizing the following action:
Accept the South Bayside Waste Management Authority’s audited Annual Financial Statements (see
Exhibit A to the Resolution) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 as prepared by the SBWMA’s audit
firm, Maze & Associates.
Summary
The purpose of the financial statements is to present a summary of the financial position of the Authority for the
fiscal year. These reports have been reviewed by the Board Finance Committee which recommends approval.
The final step in the formal process of preparing these financial statements is to present them to the Board for its
acceptance.
Analysis
The financial statements of the SBWMA for fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, have been prepared by the City of
Redwood City Administrative Services Department and examined by the independent auditing firm Maze &
Associates and SBWMA staff. It is the unqualified opinion of the audit firm that the financial statements present
fairly the financial position of the SBWMA as of June 30, 2020, and that the financial statements were prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. No exceptions or qualifications were found.
This financial audit is separate from the operational and financial audit engagement performed annually on the
Agency’s two largest contractors, Recology of San Mateo County and South Bay Recycling. The audit scope of
these two primary SBWMA operational contractors comprises reviewing, testing, and verifying the accuracy of
information self-reported by the contactors and includes, but is not limited to the following tasks:
•

Verifying the completeness and mathematical accuracy of the annual reports, gross revenue billed, net
revenue, commodity revenue, contractor compensation, pass-through costs and Member Agency fees.

•

Verifying the accuracy of tonnage data reported monthly. This data is a primary component of both
contractor’s compensation.
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Financial Condition Summary
As shown in Table 1 of the Audit report, total net position increased by $1.3 million to $22.6 million. The
unrestricted net assets (Unrestricted Reserve) remained flat at $16.2 million at June 30, 2020 (see Tables 1 and 4
in the Audit report). Operating income including depreciation increased $0.8 million.
General Operating Results
The operating results for FY19/20 are compared to FY18/19 in Table 1 below:
Table 1 – Operating Results

FY2019

FY2020

Variance
Better / (Worse)

T ip Fee Revenue $
Commodity Revenue $

46,377,395 $
6,140,314 $

45,660,060 $
5,856,511 $

(717,335)
(283,803)

Other Revenue 1 $
Total Revenues
$

28,329 $
52,546,038 $

19,299 $
51,535,870 $

(9,030)
(1,010,168)

Shoreway Operations Expense
SBWMA Program Expense
Franchise Fees
Depreciation Expense
Total Expenses
Operating Income
Investment Income, Other
Loss on sale of capital assets
Interest Expense
Grant Revenue
NET POSITION

42,195,199
3,019,870
2,206,790
3,075,887
50,497,746
2,048,292
621,287
(2,633,833)
1,020,000
1,055,746

40,325,760
3,199,159
2,178,179
3,011,979
48,715,077
2,820,793
768,838
(34,134)
(2,802,192)
500,000
1,253,305

(1,869,439)
179,289
(28,611)
(63,908)
(1,782,669)
772,501
147,551
(34,134)
(168,359)
(520,000)
197,559

$
$
$

$

$
$
$

$

$
$
$
$

$

1 Mainly rebate mattress rev enue

Variance explanations:
• Lower Tip Fee Revenue mainly due to “self-haul” public tipping fee decline of $1.0 million, offset by $0.3
million increase in franchise tipping fees. The decline in public tipping fees is a result of the closure of the
Shoreway Facility to public customers from mid-March 2020 to early May 2020 due to the COVID-19
Shelter-in-Place Order.
• Commodity Revenue decreased $0.3 million. The closure of the Buyback Center is estimated to have a
$0.7 million negative impact on commodity revenue, which is offset by decreased payment to Buyback
Center customers. Commodity markets continue to be soft due to China’s tightening of contamination
standards.
• Lower Shoreway Operations Expense primarily due to $1.1 million decrease in SBR compensation from
the reduced material volume. Buyback Center payments to customers reduced $0.7 million due to the
closure of the Buyback Center.
• Franchise Fees paid to the City of San Carlos decreased slightly due to the decrease tip fee revenue.
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•
•
•

Investment income increased due to higher balances and interest rates.
Interest expense increased due to the issuance of new debt as part of the 2019 Bond Refunding.
The agency received Grant Revenue from The County of San Mateo to help fund the Organics to Energy
Project.

Long-Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the SBWMA had bond debt outstanding of $59,519,033, an increase of $14.7
million. Long-term debt consists of Series 2019A and 2019B Refunding Revenue Bonds that were issued to refund
the 2009A Revenue Bonds and to finance the construction of various improvements and acquisition of certain
associated equipment to the material recovery facility and transfer station.
FY2019
Revenue Bonds 2009A $44,812,247

FY2020
$59,519,033

Payment of principal on the 2019 bonds began on September 1, 2020. Additional information on the SBWMA’s
long-term debt can be found in note (4) to the accompanying financial statements.
Fiscal Impact
There is no financial impact associated with the adoption of this Resolution.
Attachments:
Resolution 2020-02. Accepting the Authority’s FY19/20 Financial Statements
Exhibit A – SBWMA FY19/20 Audited Annual Financial Statements
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority contracted with the audit firm Maze &
Associates to conduct an audit of the Agency’s financial records in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34; and
WHEREAS, the financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 as prepared by said firm
have been completed and are attached as Exhibit A; and
WHEREAS, it is recommended that the Board accept the financial statements.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
approves the Annual Financial Report as prepared by Maze & Associates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the 28th day of January, 2021, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-02 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 28, 2021.

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Alicia Aguirre, Interim Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To Members of the Board of Directors of the
South Bayside Waste Management Authority
San Carlos, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority (Authority), California, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements as listed in the Table of Contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis as listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
1, 2021 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pleasant Hill, California
January 1, 2021
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section presents an overview and analysis
of the financial performance of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) for
the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2020. It should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements that follow this section.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The SBWMA’s financial statements include:
Statement of Net Position presents information on the SBWMA’s assets and liabilities as of the
fiscal year-end, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the
SBWMA’s operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position
changed during the fiscal year. These statements can be used as an indicator of the extent to which
the Authority has successfully recovered its costs through user fees and other charges.
Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational,
capital, non-capital, and investing activities. The statement summarizes the annual flow of cash
receipts and cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the
obligation or receipt and exclude non-cash accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of
assets.
Notes to Financial Statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the
financial statements that is not displayed on the face of the financial statements.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The following table summarizes the Authority’s change in net position from last fiscal year to
this fiscal year.
Table 1
Comparative Net Position
June 30, 2019 and 2020

Current and other assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Total assets
Long-term debt outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

FY 2019
$ 29,127,137
45,604,576
74,731,713

FY 2020
$ 39,417,871
50,518,853
89,936,724

44,812,247
8,592,570
53,404,817

59,519,033
7,837,490
67,356,523

14,706,786
(755,080)
13,951,706

32.8%
-8.8%
26.1%

5,008,608
16,318,288
$ 21,326,896

6,407,940
16,172,261
$ 22,580,201

1,399,332
(146,027)
$ 1,253,305

27.9%
-0.9%
5.9%

3

$ Change
$ 10,290,734
4,914,277
15,205,011

% Change
35.3%
10.8%
20.3%
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Net Position
The total net position increased by $1.3 million or 5.9% from the prior fiscal year. This increase
is comprised solely of an increase in net investment in capital assets of $1.4 million.
Total liabilities increased by $14.0 million or 26.1%. This increase is primarily attributed to the
issuance of the 2019A and 2019B series bonds, which refunded the 2009 bonds and generated an
additional $20 million in additional funds to be used for improvements. More information on this
is later explained in the “Long-term Debt” section. The decrease of $.8 million or 8.8% in other
liabilities is primarily related to a decrease in accounts payable, which is a result of the timing of
payments for the Shoreway operations.
The largest portion of the Authority’s assets is its investment in net capital assets totaling $50.5
million. These assets are comprised of land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure, less
accumulated depreciation, and are primarily located at the Shoreway Environmental Center. The
actual year-over-year comparison of the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, shows an
increase of $4.9 million or 10.8% due to capital asset additions of $6.6 million in construction in
progress and $1.4 million in buildings, improvements, and equipment, which are partially offset
by annual depreciation expense of $3.0 million. These changes are explained further in the
“Capital Assets” section.
The net investment in capital assets is $6.4 million as of June 30, 2020. It represents the
Authority’s investment in infrastructure and other capital assets, net of amounts borrowed to
finance that investment. It should be noted that these funds are not available for spending because
the capital assets cannot be liquidated to settle liabilities. Therefore, the resources needed to repay
the debt must be provided from other sources. Unrestricted net position totaling $16.2 million
represents the part of net position that can be used to finance operations.

Results of Operations
The following table summarizes the Authority’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
Table 2
Comparative Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2020

Revenues
Charges for services
Commodity revenue
Other operating revenues
Grant revenue
Investment Income
Total Revenues
Expenses
Operating expenses
Loss on sale of capital assets
Interest expense
Total Expenses
Increase (decrease) in net position
Beginning net position
Ending net position

FY 2019

FY 2020

$ Change

$ 46,377,395
6,140,314
28,329
1,020,000
621,287
54,187,325

$ 45,660,060
5,856,511
19,299
500,000
768,838
52,804,708

$ (717,335)
(283,803)
(9,030)
(520,000)
147,551
(1,382,617)

-1.5%
-4.6%
-31.9%
-51.0%
23.7%
-2.6%

50,497,746
2,633,833
53,131,579

48,715,077
34,134
2,802,192
51,551,403

(1,782,669)
34,134
168,359
(1,580,176)

-3.5%
n/a
6.4%
-3.0%

1,055,746
20,271,150
$ 21,326,896

1,253,305
21,326,896
$ 22,580,201

4

197,559
1,055,746
$ 1,253,305

% Change

18.7%
5.2%
5.9%
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While the Statement of Net Position (Table 1) shows the change in financial position, the Statement
of Activities (Table 2 above) provides answers as to the nature and sources of the changes.
Charges for services, also known as tipping fee revenue, decreased by $.7 million or 1.5%, from
$46.4 million in FY19 to $45.7 million in FY20. $1.0 million of the revenue decline was due to a
decrease in “self-haul” public tipping fees, which was offset by a $.3 million increase in franchise
tipping fees. Public revenue is the revenue generated from non-franchised waste that is delivered
to the Shoreway facility by members of the public, while franchise revenue is from solid waste
and organic materials collected by Recology San Mateo County from customers of SBWMA’s
member agencies and delivered to the Shoreway facility. Commodity revenue decreased by $.3
million, or 4.6% from $6.1 million in FY19 to $5.8 million in FY20. This decrease was driven by
the closure of the CRV Buyback Center, which is estimated to have a $.7 million negative impact
on commodity revenue and is offset by decreased payments to Buyback Center customers. FY20
was another challenging year for recyclable commodities due to the continued softness in
commodity market prices for mixed paper as a result of China’s tightening of contamination
standards. Other operating revenues were virtually unchanged from FY19 to FY20. Investment
income, which is nonoperating revenue, was $0.1 million higher in FY20 than FY19 due to
increased market values of currently held investments. This is common in a market with declining
interest rates. The Authority also received a grant in the amount of $.5 million in FY20 from the
County of San Mateo, as part of the CalRecycle program, for the Organics to Energy Project.
The primary component of operating expenses (82.8%) is related to the Shoreway operations that
include contractually obligated costs incurred to pay the Shoreway operator, and disposal and
processing expenses. The Shoreway operations expense (Table 3) decreased by $1.9 million, or
4.4%, from FY19 to FY20.
Table 3 below shows just the operating results of the Authority (excluding depreciation). It
excludes all revenue and expenditure not directly associated with operating activities such as
investment income, grant revenue, and interest expense. For the current fiscal year, operating
results were $5.8 million compared to $5.1 million for the prior fiscal year, an increase of 13.8%.
Table 3
Operating Results
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2020
FY 2019

FY 2020

Operating Revenue
Charges for Services
Commodity Fee
Other Operating Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

$ 46,377,395
6,140,314
28,329
52,546,038

$ 45,660,060
5,856,511
19,299
51,535,870

$ (717,335)
(283,803)
(9,030)
(1,010,168)

-1.5%
-4.6%
-31.9%
-1.9%

Operating Expense (excl Depn.)
Shoreway Operations
Program Admin
Franchise Fee
Total Operating Expense (excl Depn.)

42,195,199
3,019,870
2,206,790
$ 47,421,859

40,325,760
3,199,159
2,178,179
$ 45,703,098

(1,869,439)
179,289
(28,611)
(1,718,761)

-4.4%
5.9%
-1.3%
-3.6%

Total Operating Results (excl Depn.)

$

$ 5,832,772

5,124,179

5

$ Change

$

708,593

% Change

13.8%
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Reserves
Table 4 below reflects the amount of reserves that have been designated by the Board as of June
30, 2019 and 2020.
Table 4
Unrestricted Reserves Balances
FY 2019

FY 2020

Rate Stabilization Reserve
Emergency Reserve
Equipment Replacement Reserve
Capital Fund Reserve
Undesignated Reserve

$

4,100,000
4,454,754
1,397,514
4,886,222
1,479,798

$

4,615,999
4,729,984
766,789
6,059,489
-

Total Unrestricted Reserves

$

16,318,288

$

16,172,261

In 2002, the SBWMA Board established a cash reserve policy to set aside certain portions of
unrestricted net position for specific uses in order to protect the short and long-term financial
operation of the Authority. In May 2013, the Board revised the Cash Reserve Policy to accomplish
the goal of more clearly defining the reserve accounts. In November 2018, the Board further revised
the Cash Reserve Policy to include a Capital Reserve Fund to fund future capital projects that cannot
be absorbed in one budget period. The current policy consists of a Rate Stabilization Reserve,
Emergency Reserve, Equipment Replacement Reserve, Capital Fund Reserve, and Undesignated
Reserve. The Rate Stabilization Reserve & Emergency Reserve are calculated at up to 10% of
operating expenses. Operating expenses include Shoreway Operations expense, SBWMA program
expenses, bond interest expense, and franchise fees. Operating expenses exclude depreciation,
buyback, and household hazardous waste payments. The Emergency Reserve is to address
unexpected and sudden capital needs or significant one-time increases in Shoreway operating
expenses associated with “damage by natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other community
emergency scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance policies”. The current policy
prioritizes the order of the accounts so the Rate Stabilization Reserve is first in priority followed by
the Emergency Reserve.
All reserve fund levels are approved by the Board each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal
year budget.
Capital Assets
The following table summarizes changes in the Authority’s capital assets.
Table 5
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2020

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and systems
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets

$

$

FY 2019
14,000,000
2,435,552
35,884,604
23,579,722
(30,295,302)
45,604,576

6

$

$

FY 2020
14,000,000
8,739,355
36,441,591
24,333,572
(32,995,665)
50,518,853

$ Change
$
6,303,803
556,987
753,850
(2,700,363)
$ 4,914,277

% Change
0.0%
258.8%
1.6%
3.2%
8.9%
10.8%
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The net capital assets increased by $4.9 million, or 10.8%, from $45.6 million in FY19 to $50.5
million in FY20. This increase is the net of the annual $3.0 million depreciation charge, and $8.0
million in capital expenditures to replace equipment, numerous upgrades to the Shoreway facility
and Material Recovery Facility, and the continuation of the Organics-to-Energy pilot project.
Additional information on the capital assets can be found in Note (4) of the financial statements.
Long-term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had $59.5 million total debt outstanding, an
increase of $14.7 million, or 32.8%, from $44.8 million in FY 19.
Table 6
Outstanding Debt, Net of Amortized Costs
June 30, 2019 and 2020

2009A Revenue Bond
$
Net Premium 2009A
2019A Refunding Revenue Bond
2019B Refunding Revenue Bond
Net Premium 2019A/B
Total
$

FY 2019
44,685,000
127,247

FY 2020
$

44,812,247

$

31,860,000
16,915,000
10,744,033
59,519,033

$ Change
$ (44,685,000)
(127,247)
31,860,000
16,915,000
10,744,033
$ 14,706,786

% Change
-100.0%
-100.0%

32.8%

Long-term debt consists of Series 2019A and 2019B Refunding Revenue Bonds that were issued
to refund the 2009A Revenue Bonds and to finance the construction of various improvements and
acquisition of certain associated equipment to the Authority’s solid waste materials recovery
facility and transfer station located in the City of San Carlos, CA.
Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note (5) to the
accompanying financial statements.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our member agencies, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the
revenues and expenses in the course of doing business. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact the Executive Director, South Bayside Waste
Management Authority, 610 Elm Street, San Carlos, California 94070.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments for operations (Note 2)
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid items

$19,075,585
4,843,154
65,992
988

Total Current Assets

23,985,719

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Capital assets (Note 4):
Land
Construction in progress
Building
Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

15,432,152
14,000,000
8,739,355
36,441,591
24,333,572
(32,995,665)

Net capital assets

50,518,853

Total Noncurrent Assets

65,951,005

Total Assets

89,936,724

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Current portion of compensated absences
Long-term debt due in one year (Note 5)

5,639,558
812,917
81,031
1,338,365

Total Current Liabilities

7,871,871

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences due in more than one year
Accrued liabilities (Note 6)
Long-term debt due in more than one year (Note 5)

70,344
1,233,640
58,180,668

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

59,484,652

Total Liabilities

67,356,523
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

6,407,940
16,172,261

Total Net Position

$22,580,201
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Commodity revenue
Other

$45,660,060
5,856,511
19,299

Total Operating Revenues

51,535,870

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Shoreway operations
SBWMA program administration
Franchise fee - transfer station
Depreciation (Note 4)

40,325,760
3,199,159
2,178,179
3,011,979

Total Operating Expenses

48,715,077

Operating Income

2,820,793

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grant revenue
Investment income
Interest expense
Gain(loss) on disposal of capital assets

500,000
768,839
(2,802,193)
(34,134)

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

(1,567,488)

Change in Net Position

1,253,305

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF FISCAL YEAR
NET POSITION AT END OF FISCAL YEAR

21,326,896
$22,580,201

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

$51,135,170
(44,952,105)
(1,442,516)

Net Cash Flows (used for) Operating Activities

4,740,549

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

817,960

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

817,960

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets additions
Retirement of revenue bonds
Issuance of refunding bonds
Interest paid

(7,960,391)
(45,300,612)
60,007,398
(2,865,775)

Net Cash Flows (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

3,880,620

Net Cash Flows

9,439,129

Cash and investments for operations - beginning of fiscal year
Cash and investments - end of fiscal year

25,068,608
$34,507,737

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation
Net change in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Accounts payable
Compensated absences

$2,820,793

3,011,979
(400,700)
(26)
(719,896)
28,399

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

$4,740,549

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Amortization related to long-term debt
Loss on sale of capital assets

$488,365
(34,134)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2020
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Organization
The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the Authority) is a joint powers
authority formed on October 13, 1999 for the purpose of joint ownership, financing and
administration of the Facilities, currently the Shoreway Environmental Center in San
Carlos; and the planning, administration management, review, monitoring, enforcement
and reporting of solid waste, recyclable material and plant material collection activities
within Authority's service area.
Members of the Authority include the towns of Atherton and Hillsborough, and the
cities of Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Menlo Park, Redwood City,
San Carlos, San Mateo, as well as the West Bay Sanitary District and the County
of San Mateo.
The Authority is controlled by a twelve member board consisting of one elected
representative from each member. None of the member entities exercise specific
control over the budgeting and financing of the Authority's activities beyond their
representation on the board. Accounting services are provided by the City of Redwood
City.
Based on the franchise agreements with each member agency and Recology
effective January 1, 2011, the Authority collects service fees from Recology for the
processing and disposal of collected materials. The facility operator, South Bay
Recycling, also collects fees from public customers which are remitted to the
Authority. South Bay Recycling is paid by the Authority to operate the facility and
transport materials to disposal and processing facilities on a per ton basis
pursuant to the Operations Agreement. The compensation to both contractors is
adjusted annually based primarily on various CPI indices. The Authority also directly
pays for disposal and processing of solid waste and organics materials to vendors
such as BFI/Republic, Recology Grover, Zanker Road.
b. Enterprise Fund Accounting
The Authority is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its
activities for financial statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to account
for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and
expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges and the
sale of commodities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private
sector, where the proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the full
accrual basis of accounting is required. With this measurement focus, all assets and
all liabilities of the enterprise are recorded on its balance sheet, all revenues are
recognized when earned and all expenses, including depreciation, are recognized
when incurred. Enterprise fund equity includes retained earnings and contributed
capital.
c. Net Position Flow Policy
Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net
position in the proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
Authority’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted – net position is used.
d. Capital Assets
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated
fair market value on the date contributed. Expenditures which materially increase the
value or life of capital assets are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the asset. The Authority’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs
exceeding the $10,000 threshold and a useful life of more than one year.
All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets
equitably among all users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to
depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost of
capital assets.
Depreciation is provided using the straight line method; meaning the cost of the asset
is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each
year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has assigned the useful lives of
capital assets by type as listed below:
10 - 40 years
5 - 20 years
5 - 15 years

Building
Improvements
Equipment
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested
proceeds over the same period.
e. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation which is accrued as earned. All
employees who hold full-time regular positions are entitled to 15 working days'
vacation pay upon successful completion of their first year of continuous service. The
accrual rate increases as length of service exceeds 5 years. Maximum accumulation
of vacation is two years' vacation accrual. Upon termination or retirement, full-time
employees are entitled to receive compensation at their current base salary for all
unused vacation and 50% of their sick leave balance. The liability for compensated
absences is determined annually.
f.

Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans
The Authority offers its employees a retirement plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 401a. The employer contribution to the 401a is 10%
plus a match up to 2% of the employee contribution.
The Authority also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457b. Pursuant to the IRC
subsection (g), all amounts of compensation deferred under the deferred
compensation plan, all property, or rights are solely the property and rights of the
employee and beneficiaries of the Plan. Deferred compensation funds are not
subject to the claims of the Authority’s general creditors; consequently, the assets
and related liabilities of the plan are not included within the Authority’s financial
statements.

g. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. The Authority has no items that qualify for reporting in this
category.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The Authority has no items that qualify for reporting in this category.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
h. Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value
hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into
three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are
observable in the market.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that are
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level
of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest
priority level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Note 2:

Cash and Investments
The Authority pools cash from all sources except cash and investments held by fiscal agents
so that it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity, while
individual funds can make expenditures at any time.
a. Policies

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government
securities with a market value of 110% of the Authority's cash on deposit, or first trust
deed mortgage notes with a market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these
deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a separate investment pool by
another institution in the Authority's name and places the Authority ahead of general
creditors of the institution. The Authority Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement
for deposits that are fully insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC.
The Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by an
electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security,
called the book entry system. In order to increase security, the Authority employs the
Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain Authority managed investments,
regardless of their form.
The Authority's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted
accounting principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect
their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in
income for that fiscal year.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
b. Classification

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below,
based on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt
instruments or agreements.
Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments for operations

$

Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Total Cash and Investments

19,075,585
15,432,152

$

34,507,737

Cash and investments for operations is used in preparing proprietary fund
statements of cash flows because these assets are highly liquid and are
expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year.
c. Investment Authorized by the California Government Code and the

Authority’s Investment Policy
The Authority's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the
Authority to invest in the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are
acceptable to the Authority; and approved percentages and maturities are not
exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code, or the Authority's Investment Policy when the Authority's
Investment Policy is more restrictive.

Authorized Investment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit
Quality

Maximum
in Portfolio
50% to 70% of the investment portfolio,
as approved by the SBWMA Board but
no more than $75 million permitted by
LAIF

Maximum
Investment
In One
Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Upon
Demand

N/A

San Mateo County Investment Pool

Upon
Demand

N/A

30% to 50% of the investment portfolio,
as approved by the SBWMA Board

N/A

N/A

100%

N/A

N/A

100%

N/A

N/A

40%

(B)

25%

(A)

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills 5 Years
U.S. Government Agency and Federal
5 Years
Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances
180 Days

Commercial Paper

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Time Certificates of Deposit - Banks
or Savings and Loans
Medium Term Corporate Notes
(A)
(B)

Highest letter
and number
270 Days
rating by an
NRSRO

N/A

5 Years

N/A

30%

(A)

5 Years

N/A

30%

N/A

5 Years

A

30%

(A)

5% of outstanding paper of issuing corporation and 5% of the portfolio in one corporation
No more than 30% of the agency's money may be in bankers' acceptances of any one commercial bank.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
d. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The Authority must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with
trustees or fiscal agents under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are
unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the Authority
fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government
Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with Authority
resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The table below identifies the
investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Authorized Investment Type
Direct obligations of the Department of the Treasury of the
United States
Obligations issued or guaranteed by FMHA, FHA, General
Services Administration, GNMA, U.S. Maritime Administration,
HUD, and backed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America
Direct obligations of FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, REFCORP,
Farm Credit Enterprise, Federal Agriculture Mortgage
Association, Tennessee Valley Authority
Money Market Fund
U.S. dollar denominated Certificates of Deposit, savings
accounts, deposit accounts
Investment agreements, including GIC's forward purchase
agreements and reserve fund put agreements
Commercial Paper
General obligations of States or municipalities
Bankers acceptances
Medium Term Notes
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool

Minimum
Credit
Quality
None

None

None
AA
None
None
A-1
AAA
A-1+
AAA
None
None

e. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market
affect the fair value of an investment. Normally,
an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
interest rates. The Authority generally manages its
investments to maturity.

interest rates will adversely
the longer the maturity of
value to changes in market
interest rate risk by holding

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's
investments by maturity or earliest call date:
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
12 Months
or less

Investment Type
California Local Agency Investment Fund
$
San Mateo County Investment Pool
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Fund
Total Investments

$

Total Cash in Bank and Cash on Hand
Total Cash and Investments

9,538,212
7,520,126

Total
$

9,538,212
7,520,126

15,432,152

15,432,152

32,490,490

32,490,490
2,017,247
$ 34,507,737

Local Agency Investment Fund
The Authority is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of
the Treasurer of the State of California. The Authority reports its investment in
LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of
the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state
funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, governmentsponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations.
San Mateo County Investment Fund
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the San Mateo County Investment Fund
(SMCIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 53600
under the oversight of the treasurer of the County of San Mateo. The Authority
reports its investment in SMCIF at the fair value amount provided by SMCIF. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by SMCIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Included in SMCIF’s investment portfolio are U.S. Treasury Notes, obligations
issued by agencies of the U.S. Government, LAIF, corporate notes,
commercial paper, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed
securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by
federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. The
Authority reports its investments in SMCIF at the fair value amounts provided by
SMCIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
f.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investments in
California Local Agency Investment Fund and San Mateo County Investment
Pool are not rated and therefore no rating is shown.
Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2020, for each investment type
as provided by S&P ratings:
AAAm

Investment Type
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Fund
Totals

$

15,432,152

$

15,432,152

Total

$

15,432,152
15,432,152

Not rated:
California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool
Total Investments

9,538,212
7,520,126
32,490,490

Total Cash in bank and cash on hand
Total Cash and Investments

2,017,247
34,507,737

$

g. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of
investments of the Authority as of June 30, 2020:
Investment Type
Investments by Fair Value:

Exempt

California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool

$

9,538,212
7,520,126

Total Investments at Fair Value

$

17,058,338

Total
$

9,538,212
7,520,126
17,058,338

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Market Fund

15,432,152

Total Investments
Cash in banks

32,490,490
2,017,247

Total Cash and Investments

$

34,507,737

Both the California Local Agency Investment Fund and the San Mateo County
Investment Pool are external investment pools and exempted in the fair value
hierarchy, under GASB 72.
h. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority's Investment Policy contains certain limitations on the amount that
can be invested in any one issuer. In certain categories, these limitations surpass
those required by California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq.
Investments in any one issuer, other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and external investment pools that represent 5% or more of total Entitywide investments. There were no such investments at June 30, 2020.
Note 3:

Capital Assets and Facilities Operations
Pursuant to a sales agreement with Republic Services, Inc., the Authority purchased
land, and buildings and personal property amounting to $14 million and $5.228
million, respectively. These facilities comprise the Shoreway Environmental Center
in San Carlos. The Authority signed an agreement to lease back the facilities to
Republic Services, Inc. to operate them. This agreement expired on December 31,
2006 and the Authority had extended the agreement until December 31, 2010. The
Authority signed a new agreement effective January 1, 2011 with South Bay
Recycling to operate the facility. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority
paid $19,883,901 to South Bay Recycling to operate the Facility.
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Capital Assets and Facilities Operations (Continued)
Changes in capital assets were as follows for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020:
Balance at
June 30, 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$

Additions

14,000,000
2,435,552

$

6,579,431

Deletions
$

Balance at
June 30, 2020

Transfers
-

$

$ 14,000,000
8,739,355

(275,628)

22,739,355

Total non-depreciable assets

14,000,000

6,579,431

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment

35,884,604
23,579,722

281,359
1,099,600

(345,750)

275,628

36,441,591
24,333,572

Total capital assets being depreciated

59,464,326

1,380,959

(345,750)

275,628

60,775,163

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment

(14,319,951)
(15,975,351)

(1,175,775)
(1,836,204)

311,616

-

(15,495,726)
(17,499,939)

Total accumulated depreciation

(30,295,302)

(3,011,979)

311,616

-

(32,995,665)

29,169,024

(1,631,020)

(34,134)

Net capital assets being depreciated
Capital assets, net

Note 4:

$

45,604,576

$ 4,948,411

-

(275,628)

$

(34,134)

$

275,628

27,779,498

-

$ 50,518,853

Revenue Bonds
The Authority's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in
detail thereafter.
Balance
June 30, 2019

2009A Solid Waste
System Revenue Bonds
2009A Bond premiums
2019A Solid Waste
Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds
2019A Bond premiums
2019B Solid Waste
Enterprise Revenue Bonds
2019B Bond premiums

$

44,685,000
127,247
-

Additions
$

$

46,239,747

31,860,000
7,926,815

Retirements
$

16,915,000
3,305,583
$

60,007,398

(44,685,000)
(127,247)
(344,644)

Balance
June 30, 2020
$

(143,721)
$

(45,300,612)

31,860,000
7,582,171

Due Within
One Year
$

16,915,000
3,161,862
$

59,519,033

344,644
850,000
143,721

$

1,338,365

a. Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds Series 2009A

On September 2, 2009, the Authority issued $53,500,000 of Solid Waste Enterprise
Revenue Bonds Series 2009A. The 2009A Bonds were issued to pay for the
construction and renovation of a solid waste materials recovery facility and transfer
station and related equipment, to fund a Reserve Fund, to fund capitalized interest,
and to fund certain working capital and pay other costs, including issuance costs.
The bonds were fully refunded by 2019 revenue bonds as disclosed in Note 4b
below. As a result, the refunded bonds are fully defeased in September 2019, and
the liability has been removed from the statement of Net Position.
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Revenue Bonds (Continued)
b. Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds 2019A and Solid Waste

Enterprise Revenue Bonds 2019B
On July 9, 2019 SWBMA issued Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2019A, Non-Alternative Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of
$31.86 million and Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B,
Alternative Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $16.915 million. The
Series 2019A Bonds were issued to refund, in full, the Series 2009A bonds, pay a
portion of the cost of a debt reserve insurance policy, and pay costs of issuance of
the Series 2019A Bonds, including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond
insurance policy. The Series 2019B Bonds were issued to pay certain costs
incurred by SBWMA in connection with the construction of various improvements
and acquisition of certain associated equipment to SBWMA’s solid waste materials
recovery facility and transfer station located in the City of San Carols, CA, pay a
portion of the cost of the Reserve Policy, and pay costs of issuance of the
California series 2019B Bonds, including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond
insurance policy.
The refunding resulted in an overall debt service savings of $3,454,784 over the life
of the bond. The net present value of the debt service savings is called an
economic gain and amounted to $9,873,987.
The series 2019 bonds are solely payable from and secured by the net revenues
and debt service reserve fund held by the Authority's trustee, as defined under the
bond indenture. Net Revenues means, for any period, all of the revenues during
such period less all of the maintenance and operation costs during such period.
Revenues mean all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the
Authority.
The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the
Authority to be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if
any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure
of the Authority to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement
terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the Authority; or if any court or competent
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Authority. There were no such
events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.
c. Revenue Pledge

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the Authority’s Net Revenue as defined
under the bond indenture. For the 2019A bonds, the pledge of future net revenue
ends upon repayment of the 2019A bonds in the amount of $82,167,375 in
remaining debt service on the bonds which is scheduled to occur in fiscal year
2043.
According to the Rate Covenant in the 2019A Bond Indenture, the Authority will
maintain a Net Revenue to Debt Service coverage ratio of 1.40. As of the Fiscal
Year 2019, the Net Revenues to Debt Service Coverage ratio was 3.06.
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Revenue Bonds (Continued)
d. Debt Service Requirements

Annual debt service requirements on the bonds are shown below with specified
repayment terms:
For the Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035
2036 - 2040
2041 - 2043

Principal
$

$

Total

2,417,500
2,365,125
2,301,375
2,234,500
2,164,250
9,636,125
7,268,000
4,246,250
759,250

$

3,267,500
3,610,125
3,606,375
3,604,500
3,604,250
18,001,125
17,938,000
17,866,250
10,669,250

Total

48,775,000

33,392,375

82,167,375

Unamortized Bond Premium

10,744,033

-

-

$

Note 5:

850,000
1,245,000
1,305,000
1,370,000
1,440,000
8,365,000
10,670,000
13,620,000
9,910,000

Interest

59,519,033

$

33,392,375

$

82,167,375

Insurance
The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies to protect itself from claims
arising from the following types of losses:
Type of Coverage
General Aggregate Limit
General Liability deductible
Environmental Impact Liability aggregate
Environmental Liability deductible
Hired & Non-Owned Auto Limit
Employee Benefits Liability
Excess Liability
Property & Equipment Loss
Property & Equipment deductible
Directors & Officers, Employment Practices, and Fiduciary Liabilities
Aggregate for all loss combined, including defense costs
Directors & Officers Liability Retention
Employment Practices Liability Retention
Fiduciary Liability Retention
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Coverage Limits
$
2,000,000
2,500 SIR
2,000,000
25,000 SIR
1,000,000
1,000,000
10,000,000
60,000,000
1,500,000
7,000,000
50,000
75,000
2,500
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Note 6:

Pollution Remediation
In 2000 the South Bay Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) purchased the
property located at 225/333 Shoreway Road in San Carlos. The property had preexisting ground water contamination issues and the former property owner Allied
Waste (now Republic Services) was identified as the responsible party. The ground
water contamination is the result of hydrocarbon and petroleum products. Both Allied
Waste and the SBWMA have managed a remediation effort under supervision from
the County of San Mateo Department of Environmental Health.
The San Mateo County Health System (SMCHS) and the California Regional Water
Quality Control Board (RWQCB) have reviewed and approved the SBWMA’s “Closure
Report” submitted on January 29, 2013 to close the Shoreway Environmental Center
(“Shoreway”) groundwater remediation project and issued a NOTICE OF CASE
CLOSURE on April 29, 2014. This case closure letter is the final step in the Shoreway
remediation closure and “no further remediation action” is required at the Shoreway
facility. While no further remediation effort was deemed necessary, due to concerns
about potential residual contamination, the property has a deed restriction requiring it
to remain industrially zoned.
In March of 2010, the SBWMA received a lump sum settlement payment of
$1,500,000 from Republic Services (formerly Allied Waste and BFI). This money was
deposited into a SBWMA account dedicated to the ongoing clean-up efforts at
Shoreway (the remediation cost estimate was negotiated with Allied per methods
approved by County regulators and based on input from environmental engineers). At
the close of remediation efforts on April 29, 2014 the Shoreway Remediation Fund
had an unspent balance of $1,239,826. The unspent balance as of June 30, 2020 is
$1,233,640 and is reported as accrued liabilities.

Note 7:

Net Position
The Authority has designated $16,172,261 unrestricted net position for several
reserves which include: $4,615,999 for rate stabilization, $4,729,984 for emergency
reserve, $766,789 for equipment replacement, and $6,059,489 for capital items.
These designations may be modified, amended or removed by Authority Board
action.

Note 8:

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Litigation
SBWMA is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion
of legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of SBWMA.
Construction Commitments
There are no significant construction commitments as of June 30, 2020.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2020
Note 9:

Subsequent Events
Effective December 31, 2020, the town of Atherton has withdrawn from the Authority.
The Town of Atherton has paid approximately $2.2 million in costs associated with the
withdrawal.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors
South Bayside Waste Management Authority
San Carlos, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial
statements of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (Authority), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated January 1, 2021.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated January 1, 2021, which
is an integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Pleasant Hill, California
January 1, 2021
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4D
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Joe La Mariana, Executive Director
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Resolution to Approve the appointment of Citizen-at-Large Position to the Finance
Committee Ex-Officio Board Member Jay Benton

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No 2021-03 attached hereto
authorizing the following action:
Authorize the appointment of former SBWMA Board Chair, Jay Benton, to serve on the SBWMA’s Finance
Committee as a “Citizen at-Large” in an Ex-Officio capacity.
Summary
The SBWMA’s Finance Committee currently consists of three Board members and two Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) members. These current incumbents are:
•

Board Members (3):
Michael Brownrigg (Burlingame); Fran Dehn (West Bay Sanitary District); Vacant position

•

Member Agency Staff (2) :
Brenda Olwin (East Palo Alto; Finance Director) and Carol Augustine (Burlingame; Finance Director).

A Board-level Finance Committee vacancy currently exists due to the recent JPA exit by the Town of Atherton,
including former SBWMA Board and Finance Committee member Bill Widmer. Per past agency practice, this
vacancy will be filled by Executive Committee appointment.
In addition to filling this vacancy, the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee and Staff recommends the
creation of an additional, Ex Officio Board-level position specifically for former SBWMA Chair and Finance
Committee member Jay Benton (Hillsborough) who retired from public service on December 14th, 2020. Mr.
Benton brings the SBWMA rich and relevant experience from his previous leadership at the SBWMA, his 12 years
served as a local elected official and a highly successful C-Suite level career in private industry.
Analysis
The Finance Committee provides the SBWMA Board and Staff with essential oversight and fiscal planning
direction with its detailed review of the SBWMA’s:
•
•
•

Annual Operating Budget
5-year Capital Improvement Plan
Mid-year-budget and adjustments
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•
•
•

Independent financial and operational audits
Agency revenue and expenses compared to tip fee rates
Special financial projects, as assigned (i.e. CIP project components, debt service, facility planning, etc).

This committee’s composition represents an excellent mix of elected oversight and senior-level Staff technical
engagement. These individuals provide the Board and ratepayers with necessary guidance on the Agency’s
financial infrastructure.
Background
The agency and its ratepayers will directly benefit from Mr. Benton’s longstanding knowledge of the agency’s
operations, its facilities, its contractors and major contracts, its legal/mandated and, of course, its financial
priorities. This appointment will also provide the agency with critical continuity in financial planning during a time of
transition with three new elected officials have just been assigned to our 11 agency Board (Foster City; Menlo
Park and Hillsborough) and a current vacant Finance Committee position.
Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the agency with this action.
Attachments:
Resolution 2021-03
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-03
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
WHEREAS, the SBWMA’s Executive Committee, Finance Committee and Staff recommend the creation
of a “Citizen-at-Large” Ex-Officio position specifically for former SBWMA Board Chair and longtime Board Member
Jay Benton on the Agency’s Finance Committee, and
WHEREAS, Former Board member Jay Benton is uniquely qualified to serve the SBWMA in this
proposed capacity due to his distinguished career and service to his community and our country, includes serving
as a United States Naval Officer; 12 years as an elected official in a SBWMA Member Agency, the Town of
Hillsborough; many years as a C-suite level executive in private industry;; in additional to his outstanding eight
years of service to the SBWMA as a Board Member, Finance Committee, Vice Chair and Chair of the Board, and
WHEREAS, the SBWMA is in the midst of an important transitional period because 1. two highly
experienced and engaged Finance Committee members have just left our Board 2. three newly elected officials
(out of 11) have just been assigned to our Board and 3. the agency is currently engaged in a period of
transformative Capital Improvement Project planning for its facility and operations,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
approves
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the 28th day of January, 2021, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-03 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 28, 2021.
ATTEST:

____________________________________
Alicia Aguirre, Interim Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
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5A
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Jean Savaree, General Counsel
January 28,2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Election of Board Officers for 2021

Recommendation
The Board is required to annually elect a Board Chair and Vice Chair per Article 8, Governance, of the JPA
Agreement, Sections 8.5 and 8.6 which provide:
8.5
Chair. The Board shall annually select a Chair, by a vote taken in accordance with
Section 10.8 of this Agreement, who shall serve without compensation at the pleasure of the
Board. The duties of the Chair include, but are not limited to the following:
a. Conduct Board meetings.
b. Review and set meeting agendas with the Executive Director.
c. Sign any and all SBWMA official documents.
8.6
Vice Chair. The Board shall annually select a Vice Chair, by a vote taken in
accordance with Section 10.8 of this Agreement, who serves without compensation at the pleasure
of the Board. The Vice Chair shall act in the absence of the Chair, with full powers of the Chair.
This selection traditionally occurred at the Board’s January meeting. Staff recommends that the Board now select
the Chair and Vice Chair for 2021.
In addition to the duties enumerated in Section 8.5, as a matter of practice, the Board Chair and Vice Chair along
with the Executive Director, General Counsel and Board Clerk have traditionally met on a monthly basis as the
“Executive Committee” to conduct Board meeting agenda planning and discuss major items of note related to JPA
operations. The Executive Director also updates the Executive Committee on a regular basis on any major issues
that may come up in the course of day-to-day operations.
Background
Staff recommends the following process for the Board to follow in electing a Chair and Vice Chair for calendar
year 2021:
1. Interim Chair calls for nominations for the position of Chair (nominations do not require a second).
2. Motion is adopted to close nominations.
3. Board votes on nominations in the order in which the nominations were made until a Chair is elected.
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4. Sections 8.5 and 10.8 of the JPA Agreement require the successful vote to be by 2/3 of the Directors
present.
5. The new Chair takes the gavel and assumes the office and calls for nominations for Vice Chair and
the same procedure is followed for electing the Vice Chair.
Fiscal Impact
None.
Attachments:
None.
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5B
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Joe La Mariana, Executive Director
Julia Au, Sr. Outreach, Education and Compliance Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Resolution Approving the SBWMA 2020-2021 Legislative and Regulatory Platform

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No 2021-04 attached hereto
authorizing the following action:
Approval of the SBWMA 2020-2021 Legislative and Regulatory Platform (Platform)
Summary
Adopting a legislative and regulatory platform of important topics for the SBWMA will enable the agency to be
heard in Sacramento and statewide with a loud and preemptive voice, act more swiftly on pressing and emerging
legislative and regulatory issues that need prompt action, as well as help the agency prioritize our legislative
resources. The proposed Platform language is purposefully broad enough so that issues of importance that are
not currently conceived, which may unexpectedly arise that the agency and its members may need to contribute
to during this California legislative session, can still be addressed in a promptly manner. This Platform will cover
one California legislative session which covers two calendar years.
Analysis
The proposed Platform identifies 14 key topic areas of importance to the agency and our member agencies to
guide the identification of critically relevant bills and regulatory action that need attention during the legislative
session. This is two more than the last approved Platform due to the need to call out specific issues related to
lithium-ion battery collection and recycling and “right to repair” issues. This document was developed by staff in
conjunction with the Agency’s legislative and regulatory lobbyist firm, Environmental and Energy Consulting
(EEC).
Each year, numerous bills are proposed for legislative consideration and many more industry-specific regulations
are proposed for statutory implementation; therefore, bill and regulation identification and tracking are a critically
important step in the process.
Based on the approved Platform, the Executive Director and staff will work with EEC and partners to identify a list
of industry-specific bills to track and to determine which bills to take a position on, alongside any potential cosponsored legislation. To better meet the needs and time of the Board, staff and our lobbyists, the Platform will be
updated every legislative session or every two years.
Background
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SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
AGENDA ITEM: 5B - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 83 of 177

The SBWMA Board last approved a Legislative and Regulatory Platform for 2019-2020.
Fiscal Impact
There is no additional fiscal impact for development of this Legislative and Regulatory Platform.
Attachments:
Resolution 2021-04
Exhibit A – 2021-2022 SBWMA Legislative and Regulatory Platform
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 04
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL
OF THE SBWMA’S 2021-2022 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY PLATFORM
WHEREAS, the SBWMA’s adopted mission is to serve as solid waste industry leaders in public health,
safety and environmental stewardship by providing our ratepayers with innovative cost-effective zero waste
programs and Member Agency climate action plan alignment through education, engagement, infrastructure, and
policy development;
WHEREAS, the goals of the SBWMA and the environmental quality of life of our Member Agencies’
community members are strongly served by the establishment of a legislative and regulatory platform on
important issues; and
WHEREAS, the adoption of a legislative platform gives the SBWMA a strong, preemptive voice in on
pressing and emerging legislative and regulatory issues and it allows staff to functionally work with agency
partners and legislative and regulatory contacts to affect change that aligns with agency goals; and
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
approves the SBWMA 2021-2022 Legislative and Regulatory Platform.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the 28th day of January, 2021, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

West Bay Sanitary Dist

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-04 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 28, 2021.

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Alicia Aguirre, Interim Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021

AGENDA ITEM: 5B - p3

FULL PACKET PAGE 85 of 177

SBWMA 2021-2022
Legislative & Regulatory Platform
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Executive Summary
A pre-approved biennial Legislative & Regulatory Platform provides the SBWMA with a clear and concise
guiding document from which to focus all targeted activities during each Legislative session to achieve
agency goals and best represent its interests. With Legislative and Regulatory Subcommittee oversight,
this platform allows staff to strategically direct agency resources and marshal important external
partnerships with nimble, yet highly effective urgency to deliver successful outcomes in the fast-paced and
complex Sacramento legislative ecosystem.
The elements below provide the overarching direction for the SBWMA’s Legislative and Regulatory
Subcommittee and staff throughout the entire legislative session in the most time expeditious fashion. The
Legislative & Regulatory Platform model is a longstanding tool that has been adopted by numerous
governmental agencies, including the County of San Mateo, the City/County Association of Governments
(C/CAG), most counties and major cities, transit districts and many special agencies. Upon Board approval,
these are the 14 guiding principles that our Agency will work diligently to advance during this legislative
session:

1. Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR)

Extended producer responsibility (EPR) or product stewardship is a strategy that shifts the
responsibility for end-of-life management of a product or package to the manufacturer to finance the
end-of-life management costs by incorporating it in the price of a product.
Support laws and regulations that require manufacturers to take responsibility for the end-of-life
management of problematic (costly to handle, not easily recyclable, and toxic containing) products and
packaging that shift costs away from local governments. Support efforts to improve existing EPR
regulations to include as well as support new EPR efforts for products, including but not limited to:
batteries, solar panels and fluorescent lights. Support provisions that make EPR laws effective
including minimum collection rates, progressively increasing collection targets and no local preemption
clause.

2. Lithium-Ion (Li-ion) Battery Collection and Recycling

Support legislation, regulations, and programs that ensure the safe collection, management, and
processing of Li-ion batteries to reduce the serious fire, health, and safety hazard these batteries pose
when improperly disposed of.

3. Waste Diversion

Support the diversion of recyclables and organics from landfills through implementation of AB 939
(Chapter 809, Statues of 1989); AB 341 (Chapter 476, Statues od 2011); AB 1826 (Chapter 727,
Statues of 2014); and SB 1383 (Chapter 395, Statues of 2016) and support regulations that are
practical for local governments to implement. Support new legislative efforts to divert waste away from
landfilling and toward recycling, composting, and anaerobic digestion to support the state’s 75 percent
solid waste diversion goal.

Page 2
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4. Recycling and Organics Processing Infrastructure

Support new or additional funding for expanded recycling and organics processing infrastructure which
will be needed to fully implement AB 1826 and SB 1383. Support investment in expanded clean
composting, anaerobic digestion, and recyclable materials manufacturing to support diversion, jobs,
greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction and the green economy.

5. Packaging Reduction

Support legislation, regulations, and programs that provide a consistent approach to phasing out the
sale and distribution of products, materials, and packaging that cause significant land and ocean litter
problems, and that are known to be carcinogenic.

6. Diversion Funding

Support new or additional funding sources for implementation of Countywide Integrated Waste
Management Plan as well as local grants and funding for local government implementation of AB 939;
AB 341; AB 1826; SB 1383 and other solid waste and waste diversion related laws that affect local
governments. Support funding for CalRecycle to assist in the implementation of these laws and other
efforts to divert organic and recyclable waste from landfill.

7. Toxics Reduction / Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)

Support legislation that will reduce the amount of toxic chemicals released into our environment and
that impact worker health. Oppose legislation that preempts or supersedes local control over household
hazardous waste programs or supersedes local product stewardship/EPR ordinances and limits the
role of manufacturers and producers in product stewardship programs. Oppose state legislation that
weakens local ordinances without an adequately funded alternative.

8. Food Waste Reduction and Recovery

Support legislation to enable additional food rescue and recovery of edible food for human
consumption, including expansion of good samaritan laws, increasing infrastructure, and support
legislation that establishes funding for food recovery programs and develops policies for safe, but
consistent food date labeling.

9. Market and Economic Development

Support legislation that promotes innovative economic development policies and programs that create
green jobs and promote waste reduction. Support programs to improve California's Beverage Container
Recycling Program ("Bottle bill"), including the long-term continuation and expansion of this program as
well as ensuring Californians have convenient access to recycling centers. Support efforts to improve
markets for compost and mulch and for recycled content products, including increasing recycled
product purchasing. Support policies that develop new markets for recycled content materials and
compost and policies that establish fees and funding streams for large volume or hard to recycle
materials such as tires. Support legislation that promotes market development for wood and other
construction and demolition materials.

Page 3
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10. Green Purchasing

Support laws to purchase products and services that reduce the impact on human health and the
environment through their lifecycle when compared with competing products serving the same
purpose.

11. Right to Repair

Currently, manufacturers design products that are difficult or impossible to repair without damaging the
product, often making consumers purchase buy new products and discard old ones. Support Right to
Repair legislation that requires manufacturers to provide access to repair information and software, and
also sell spare parts and any required tools on fair and reasonable terms to consumers.

12. Healthy Soils

Support measures to advance the development and maintenance of healthy soils (which are expected
to decline because of climate change) through the use of natural infrastructure. Support measures to
increase use of compost and mulch as appropriate for new and expanded landscapes to improve soil
quality and compost socks, blankets and berms as a means of flood and erosion control and soil
improvement after fires.

13. Climate Adaption and Mitigation

Support legislation that funds and advances the use of natural vegetation to adapt to flooding, fire, and
drought and reduce the impact that urban areas have on the environment. This includes promoting the
appropriate use of compost berms, socks and blankets to control soil erosion after fires and to address
flooding, as well as the use of native plants and natural landscapes for water conservation. Support
measures to expand the use of compost and mulch as ways to improve climate resiliency locally and
statewide. Support legislation to reduce organics and recyclables in the landfill as a measure to reduce
greenhouse gases.

14. California Green Business Program Funding

Support flexible funding sources, such as Cap and Trade and other funding sources that support local
and statewide green business programs that address multiple environmental issues including toxics,
energy, water, solid waste, storm water, pollution prevention, and transportation.

Page 4
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COMPLIANCE
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6A
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Joe La Mariana, Executive Director
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Resolution Recommending Amendment One Modifications to the Member Agency
Franchise Agreements with Recology San Mateo County to add a 4th route to the Bulky
Item Collection and Abandoned Waste Collection program for an annual operating cost
not-to-exceed $631,371 in year one with contractually allowable adjustments in future rate
years

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No 2021-05 attached hereto
recommending that the SBWMA Member Agencies approve the Amendment One (see Attachment One) to their
Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement with Recology of San Mateo County (Recology) to bolster the
current Bulky Item Collection (BIC)/Abandoned Waste Collection (AWC) program to expand program capacity by
adding a fourth collection route. The currently identified annual operating cost for year one of the 4th route is
$631,371 with contractually allowable adjustments in future rate years. If proposed Amendment One providing for
this program adjustment is approved by eight (8) Member Agencies, the 4th route will begin on January 1, 2022.
Summary
During the past ten years, the SBWMA’s BIC/AWC programs have proven to be extremely popular with our
430,000 residents. Due to their popularity, both have significantly exceeded the planned capacity provided by
Recology. The BIC/AWC programs are described further in the “Analysis” and “Background” sections below.
As demand for these programs was expected to exceed capacity, the SBWMA and Recology initiated discussion
in 2019 to develop a joint solution that would create added capacity for these programs, thereby allowing
customers to receive BIC/AWC services in a timely fashion. As originally proposed, expanded capacity would
have been achieved by adding the proposed 4th route and by implementation of an electronic BIC/AWC voucher
pilot program within the SBWMA service area. The Board considered these two proposals, along with a separate
program to address litter abatement/stormwater April 25, 2019, June 27, 2019, and April 23, 2020. On each
occasion, the Board continued the item to allow for additional analysis by staff regarding the proposed electronic
voucher pilot’s implementation methodology and startup costs.
Staff has now completed its analysis of the three (3) proposed programs and brings this item forward with the
following recommendations for expansion and implementation of the BIC/AWC programs:
1. Staff does not recommend proceeding with a previously proposed electronic voucher pilot program due to
an increase in proposed pilot startup and operating costs (now estimated at $446,363). Staff makes this
recommendation for deferral of that program given severe economic impacts that our communities are
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currently experiencing due to the COVID crisis. Staff wishes to acknowledge the significant effort that the
Recology team put into preparing the financial model for this program.
2. Staff recommends that the litter abatement/ stormwater measures no longer be considered due to the
Board’s previously stated position that these items are best addressed locally by each individual Member
Agency.
3. Staff recommends that the Board review and recommend implementation of a 4th route for BIC/AWC and
recommend to the Member Agencies that their Franchise Agreements with Recology be amended to
provide for this 4th route by approval of Amendment One (Attachment A).
Analysis
Given that Recology is now at its maximum service level capacity for the BIC/AWC programs we must plan
to meet future customer expectations and maintain high service standards for these programs. As noted
above, the proposal now before the Board to achieve added capacity has developed through discussions
between the SBWMA and Recology during which this joint solution was identified. It creates the added
capacity and fairly compensates Recology for these expanded services.
From an operational perspective, the BIC/AWC are one and the same.Recology workers provide at-curb BIC
collection on an appointment basis within ten days after the customer’s call to the Recology Customer
Service Center scheduling pick up of their oversized materials. Added information about the BIC/AWC
program can be found at this link: https://www.recology.com/recology-san-mateo-county/bulky-items/. Once
the BIC scheduled appointments are completed each day, the same workers/crews and vehicles are then
reassigned to collect abandoned waste materials throughout the entire SBWMA service area as identified
and authorized by designated Member Agency staff (usually Public Works staff). A formal identification and
authorization process exists with each Member Agency to provide AWC program structure integrity and cost
containment.
If the current proposal to add a fourth route is recommended by this Board and then approved by 2/3 of the
Member Agencies, it would expand program capacity from the current daily cap of 150 BIC appointments to 210
BIC appointments; and AWC collection capacity would also expand from 30 pickups per day to 40 per day. The
financial impact is projected not-to-exceed $631,371 in year one, with contractually allowable adjustments to be
applied during the annual Contactor’s Compensation Application review process each rate year, beginning on
January 1, 2022. Two attachments are provided to support this recommendation:
1. Proposed Restated and Amended Franchise Agreement Amendment One language is reflected in
“Attachment A”.
2. Recology’s financial assumptions regarding their annual cost projections for adding a 4th BIC/AWC
collection route, including staffing and support vehicles (see Attachment U). About 75 percent of these
costs are direct labor expenses, with the balance constituting equipment depreciation and Recology’s
contractually allowable 9.5% profit margin.
Background
Pursuant to the terms of the Member Agencies’ Franchise Agreements, Recology is contractually required
to provide up to two BIC services annually without charge to each single-family residence and multi-family
property (MFDs require advanced planning for delivery of roll-off containers for collection). This service is
required to be provided within 10 business days of the owner or occupant’s request, unless Recology’s BIC
service capacity has been reached. Based on current Franchise Agreement parameters, Recology’s service
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capacity is limited to 150 bulky item collections system-wide per day. Recology currently makes approximately
130 to 140 bulky item collections per day, so the program is operating at about 90% capacity. Recology also
collects abandoned waste with a cap of 30 pick-ups per day. Operationally speaking, these two services are one
program; the same trucks and drivers/crews service both the BIC and AWC program. Each route includes a box
truck and driver for recyclables, and a rear-load truck and driver for the other items. There are currently three
such routes.
The BIC/AWC (including Illegal Dumping) programs are very popular. Because of this, Staff and Recology noted
in 2018 that both programs were nearing operational capacity. At Board direction, Staff met with Recology’s
senior management team to discuss and develop new programs for Board consideration. The current proposal for
addition of a 4th route comes as a result of these discussions. If the Board recommends adding a 4th route by
Amendment One to the Member Agencies’ Franchise Agreements, that recommendation will be sent to all
Member Agencies with a request that Amendment One be considered and approved by the Member Agencies. If
approved by eight (8) Member Agencies, the program would be implemented on January 1, 2022. 1
Fiscal Impact
Proposed Program Costs:
Adding a fourth BIC/AWC route will cost $631,371 in the initial year. Contractually allowable pass-through
adjustments will be evaluated each rate year thereafter during the Contractor’s Compensation Application
review process. This is anticipated to be an ongoing base service expense through the end of the restated
and amended franchise agreement term (December 31, 2035).
Proposed Program Cost Allocation:
BIC/AWC costs are allocated among the Member Agencies according to the number of single-family and
commercial accounts in the community. For example, if a Member Agency currently has 18% of the singlefamily accounts, then it will receive an allocation of 18% of the single-family BIC/AWC program costs. If a
Member Agency has 10% of the commercial accounts, then it will receive 10% of the multi-family BIC/AWC
program cost allocation. Figure 1, below, shows the cost allocation for BIC/AWC services for 2015
compared to the allocation that is currently being used each fiscal year according to the number of residents
and commercial businesses per Member Agency. It is recommended that costs be allocated in the same
manner, given how closely the BIC/AWC and residential percentages track each other.
Figure 1. Cost Allocation Bulky Item Collection Services in 2015

Initially, Staff recommended that the Board consider incorporating amendments to the Franchise Agreement to address stormwater
regulations as part of Amendment One.

1
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Costs will increase only when a fourth route is added (proposed for January 1, 2022). The first year financial
impact of $631,371 includes the cost for an additional annual route (covers one new truck and driver for
recyclables, and one rear-loader and driver for other items).

Attachments:
Resolution 2021-05
Attachment A - Proposed Amendment One Language, includes “Attachment U” Projected 4th BIC Route Cost
Model
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-05
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD
OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDING AMENDMENT ONE MODIFICATIONS TO THE
MEMBER AGENCY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS WITH RECOLOGY SAN MATEO
COUNTY TO ADD A 4th ROUTE TO THE BULKY ITEM COLLECTION PROGRAM FOR
AN ANNUAL NOT_TO_EXCEED $631,371 WITH CONTRACTUALLY ALLOWABLE
ADJUSTMENTS IN FUTURE RATE YEARS, TO BEGIN ON JANUARY 1, 2022.
WHEREAS, on June 22, 2017, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Board of
Directors approved a model Franchise Agreement template, as the recommended Franchise Agreement for each
Member Agency to individually execute for hauling services to be performed by Recology San Mateo County for
the years 2021 through 2035; and
WHEREAS, eight (8) Member Agencies fully executed Franchise Agreement Amendments with Recology
San Mateo County by April 24th, 2018, which satisfied the Joint Powers governance requirement to contractually
proceed with Recology San Mateo’s Franchise Collection services after the expiration of its existing franchise
agreement, which expired on December 31, 2020; and
WHEREAS, the popular Bulky Item Collection and Abandoned Waste Collection programs provided by
Recology San Mateo County are near capacity due to strong customer demand; and
WHEREAS, the attached proposed Amendment One to the Member Agencies’ Amended and Restated
Franchise Agreements will address the need for additional Bulky Item Collection and Abandoned Waste Collection
service capacity, and clarify and modify administrative provisions in the model Franchise Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
recommends to its Member Agencies, that they approve the attached Amendment One to the Amended and
Restated Franchise Agreement providing for the addition of a fourth (4th) route to increase Bulky Item and
Abandoned Waste Collection Services during the term of their Franchise Agreements which run from January 1,
2021 to December 31, 2035, to be effective upon ratification by at least eight (8) Member Agencies.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority,
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 28th day of January, 2021, by the following vote:

Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
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Hillsborough
Menlo Park

West Bay Sanitary Dist

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-05 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting
of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 28, 2021.

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Alicia Aguirre, Interim Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
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AMENDMENT ONE
BY __________________ {Insert Member Agency name} AND
RECOLOGY SAN MATEO COUNTY
TO THE
AMENDED AND RESTATED FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN ___________ {Insert Member Agency name} AND RECOLOGY SAN MATEO COUNTY FOR
RECYCLABLE MATERIALS, ORGANIC MATERIALS, AND SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES
This first Amendment (“Amendment One”) to the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement between
___________ {insert Member Agency name} and Recology San Mateo County for Recyclable Materials,
Organic Materials, and Solid Waste Collection Services (“Agreement”), effective as of ___________, ____
{insert date} (“Effective Date”), is made by and between _______________ {Insert Member Agency
name}, a Municipal Corporation of the State of California (“Agency”), and RECOLOGY SAN MATEO
COUNTY, a California corporation (“Contractor”).

RECITALS
A. WHEREAS, Section 5.05 of the Agreement requires Contractor to provide On-Call Bulky Item
Collection Service for residents and specifies that Contractor shall schedule a maximum of one
hundred fifty (150) On-Call Curbside Bulky Item Collection Service events per service day for the
SBWMA Service Area (“daily limit”), and Section 5.09 of the Agreement requires Contractor to provide
abandoned waste cleanup Collection service for a maximum of thirty (30) abandoned waste Collection
events per service day for the SBWMA Service Area (“daily limit”); and,
B. WHEREAS, Contractor conducts the On-Call Bulky Item Collection Service and abandoned waste
cleanup Collection service using the same Collection routes; and, as a result, the total combined daily
limit of On-Call Curbside Bulky Item Collection Service events and abandoned waste cleanup
Collection service events (collectively, “On-Call Pick-ups”) is one hundred eighty (180) On-Call PickUps per day; and,
C. WHEREAS, anticipating that the combined daily limit would not be sufficient to handle actual demand
for On-Call Pick-Ups, the SBWMA and Contractor met and conferred and negotiated a Model
Amendment One to the Agreement, which sets forth a strategy to address the problem; and,
D. WHEREAS, Parties identified minor items in the Agreement that warranted clarification or revision;
and,
E. WHEREAS; the SBWMA presented the Model Amendment One to the SBWMA’s Board of Directors
on January 28, 2021; and, the Board took action recommending that each Member Agency enter into
Model Amendment One in the form presented to the Board; and,
F. WHEREAS, the Agency and Contractor have agreed to the revisions to the Agreement as stated in this
Amendment One.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the Agency and Contractor hereby agree to amend the Agreement through this
Amendment One as follows:
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TERMS OF AMENDMENT ONE
1.

DEFINITIONS

1.1

Attachment A, Definitions. The following definitions are hereby added to Attachment A:
a. 2021 Amendment means the amendment to the Agreement that the SBWMA Board
approved, and recommended that each Member Agency enter into, on January 28,
2021.
b.

On-call Pick-Up means an On-Call Curbside Bulky Item Collection Service event or an oncall abandoned waste Collection service event.

2.

BULKY ITEM AND ABANDONED WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES

2.1

Residential On-Call Bulky Item Collection Service. Section 5.05.H shall be amended to read as
follows:
H.
Maximum Number of Daily Events. Contractor shall schedule up to a maximum of two
hundred and ten (210) On-Call Curbside Bulky Item Collection Service events per service day for
the SBWMA Service Area (“daily limit”). The maximum number of daily events includes On-Call
Bulky Item Collection Service events provided to both Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential
Complexes, and those events provided at no charge and events paid for by the Customer, Owner,
or property manager. Contractor shall schedule On-Call Curbside Bulky Item Collection Service
events no more than ten (10) Business Days after the Owner’s or Occupant’s request up to the
maximum number of daily events. Upon reaching the maximum number of daily events,
requested On-Call Curbside Bulky Item Collection Service event shall be scheduled on the next
available regularly scheduled Solid Waste Collection Day.
SBWMA may adopt an allocation system for On-Call Bulky Item Collection Service events, in order
to allocate the “daily limit” for such events among Member Agencies. If adopted, Contractor shall
comply with the allocation system. The Agency agrees not to assess Liquidated Damages if
Contractor does not meet the ten (10) Business Day requirement if the delay has resulted from (i)
the volume of On-Call Bulky Item Collection events being in excess of the “daily limit” for the
SBWMA Service Area or Agency, or (ii) the Customer’s request to schedule the event on a date
more than ten (10) Business Days in the future.
Contractor shall notify the SBWMA when the daily average number of On-Call Pick-Up events
reaches two hundred twenty-five (225) events, or any subsequently increased number of events
mutually agreed by the SBWMA Board and Contractor, combined for Residential On-Call Bulky
Item Collection service and abandoned waste Collection service, including On-Call Pick-ups
provided at no charge and On-Call Pick-ups paid for by Customers, Owners or property managers)
for the SBWMA service area. For the purpose of this Section, the daily average number of On-Call
Pick-ups shall be calculated on a weekly basis as the total number of On-Call Pick-Ups performed
Monday through Friday divided by the number of Collection days in the week (e.g., typically five
(5) days, except four (4) days for weeks with a Holiday). When this threshold occurs for four (4)
consecutive weeks, Contractor shall provide SBWMA with reports documenting these statistics
and, upon confirmation of that fact, SBWMA staff shall notify the SBWMA Board of Directors that
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the service capacity has been filled and to present options, described in this section. Contractor
shall continue to supply monthly reporting of the average service count from the time of the
original notice until action is taken by the SBWMA Board of Directors.
Upon a confirmed notice from Contractor, the SBWMA Board may consider options, including,
but not limited to: (i) authorizing Contractor to implement and perform on-going operation of an
additional Bulky Item and abandoned waste Collection route; (ii) adjustment of the ten (10)
Business Day required provision of the On-Call Pick-ups; and/or (iii) reduction in the number of
On-Call Bulky Item pick-ups allowed for each Customer each year.
The SBWMA Board is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to determine if future changes
are required for the Residential On-Call Bulky Item Collection services described in Section 5.05
and abandoned waste Collection service described in Section 5.09. Such changes, if any, shall be
implemented and incorporated into this Agreement in accordance with Section 15.12, Right of
Agency to Make Changes in Services and Service Levels. If the SBWMA elects to implement an
additional Bulky Item and abandoned waste Collection route, the route shall include two trucks
and two drivers, and the annual cost for the route shall be that specified in Attachment U for Rate
Year 2021 (subject to adjustment in accordance with the methodology set forth in Attachment K,
if the new route is implemented in a later Rate Year). Each additional route approved by the
SBWMA shall provide capacity for sixty (60) additional daily Bulky Item Collection and/or
abandoned waste Collection services. In the event that the creation of a new route provides for
more capacity than there is demand for the Bulky Item Collection services, Contractor shall permit
additional collections of abandoned waste up to the total capacity.
2.2

Abandoned Waste Clean-Up Collection Service. Section 5.09.A shall be amended to read as
follows:
A. General. Contractor shall provide abandoned waste cleanup Collection service to Agency as
provided herein. Contractor shall schedule up to a maximum of forty (40) abandoned waste
Collection events per service day for the SBWMA Service Area. Contractor shall make every
effort to collect abandoned waste within one (1) Business Day of being notified by Agency,
SBWMA, Customer, or Contractor’s vehicle drivers and route supervisors of the occurrence of
abandoned waste or illegal dumping. Upon reaching the maximum forty (40) events,
Collection of abandoned waste event shall be scheduled and performed by Contractor on the
next available service day. This service shall require Contractor to Collect abandoned or
illegally dumped Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials. This service does
not include Collection of litter or litter abatement activities.
Section 5.05.H describes a process for notification and consideration of program changes
when the daily average number of On-Call Pick-Up events reaches two hundred twenty-five
(225) events combined for Residential On-Call Bulky Item Collection service and abandoned
waste Collection service, including On-Call Pick-ups provided at no charge and On-Call Pickups paid for by Customers, Owners, or property managers).

3.

CONTRACTOR’S COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENTS FOR VOUCHER PROGRAM

3.1

Attachment K, Contractor’s Compensation and Rate Setting Process. Attachment K shall be
amended as follows:
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Section 4, Table 1, Contractor’s Compensation Adjustment Methodology. In the section
of Table 1 labeled “Contractor Pass-Through Costs,” a new row shall be added
immediately after the “Cap Carry Forward” row, to read as follows:
4.

OVERAGE TAGS

4.1

The following changes shall be made:

4.2

Collection of Excess Materials (Overages). Section 8.02.G shall be amended to read as follows:
Contractor shall direct its employees to Collect an Overage on two (2) occasions each Rate Year
at no additional cost to Customer. Contractor must provide a notice to Customer documenting
the Overage in order to count the Overage Collection towards the (2) per Rate Year for each
Customer. Customers that place an Overage for Collection for a third and subsequent events may
be assessed an Overage fee by Contractor if Contractor has directly contacted the Customer via a
phone call, voice message or other means of communication to notify them of the Overage
Collected. Contractor shall bill Customer for a third and subsequent Overage events at Agencyapproved Charges specified in Attachment Q. Contractor shall provide Customers the opportunity
to request an Overage Collection service in advance. In such case, Contractor shall bill the
Customer at the Agency-approved Charge specified in Attachment Q.
Contractor shall provide Customers the opportunity to subscribe to Overage Collection service, in
advance, or purchase Overage tag(s) from the Contractor. Each Overage tag permits the Customer
to set out one (1) thirty-two (32) gallon garbage bag of Solid Waste next to their Solid Waste
Container on the Customer’s regularly scheduled collection day, for Collection by Contractor.
Contractor shall provide Customers the opportunity to purchase Overage tags through its
Customer service department or electronically via Contractor’s website. Contractor shall mail or
deliver Overage tags to Customers within three (3) Business days of Customer’s request. The
Charge for Overage tags is specified in Attachment Q and includes all aspects of purchasing the
tags, printing, and distribution (i.e., mailing or direct delivery by Contractor). Customers shall also
be provided the opportunity to purchase Overage tags at Contractor’s local office. The quantity
of Overage tags per request from Customer shall be limited to five (5) per request.
If the Agency and/or Contractor receive numerous Complaints (as determined by the Agency)
from Customers regarding Customer dissatisfaction with the requirement to purchase Overage
tags, the Agency reserves the right to require the Contractor to modify its Overage program to
better serve its Customers and/or require the Customer to subscribe to additional Collection
service.

5.

CLARIFICATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS

5.1

The following changes shall be made to provide clarification and administrative modifications to
the Agreement:

5.2

Right of Agency to Make Changes in Services and Service Levels. Section 15.12.A shall be amended
to read as follows:
A.
Agency may, without amending this Agreement, direct Contractor to cease performing
one or more types of service described in Articles 5 or 6, or may direct Contractor to modify the

SBWMA/Recology

Page 4

_________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
AGENDA ITEM: 6A ATTACHMENT A - p4
FULL PACKET PAGE 102 of 177

scope of one or more such services, may direct Contractor to perform additional Solid Waste,
Targeted Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, Used Motor Oil, Used Motor Oil Filters,
Household Batteries and Cell Phones or Plant Materials handling services, or may otherwise direct
Contractor to modify its performance under any other Section of this Agreement. In addition,
SBWMA may, without amendment of this Agreement, direct a change: (i) in the number of Waste
Zero Specialists as provided in Section 7.04.A, (ii) in Other Services as provided in Section 7.13,
(iii) in the Residential On-Call Bulky Item Collection service described in Section 5.05, and/or (iv)
in the abandoned waste Collection service described in Section 5.09. In the event of an SBWMAdirected change under items (iii), (iv) or (v), the provisions of Section 11.06 shall apply, but with
the SBWMA substituted in the place of Agency. In the event of any conflict between an Agencydirected change and an SBWMA-directed change, the SBWMA-directed change shall govern.
Agency hereby authorizes the SBWMA, with the approval of the SBWMA Board, to do the
following on behalf of Agency: (a) to establish the terms and conditions of any program or service
changes under items (iii), (iv) or (v) above, (b) to include any costs associated with an SBWMAdirected change in Contractor’s Compensation and/or Pass-Through Costs, (c) to determine
Agency’s share of such costs and to allocate such share to Agency, and (d) to amend this
Agreement as mutually agreed with Contractor to give effect to the foregoing. An SBWMAdirected change shall be deemed to be an Agency-directed change for purposes of this
Agreement. Contractor shall promptly and cooperatively comply with such direction.
6.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

6.1

Recitals and Headings. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference and are made a
part of this Amendment One. However, headings in this document are for convenience of
reference only and are not to be considered in any interpretation of this Amendment One.

6.2

Entire Agreement. This Amendment One contains the entire understanding of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements
and commitments with respect thereto. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment One,
all other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect, unmodified, and
apply to this Amendment One as though fully set forth herein.

6.3

Counterparts. This Amendment One may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original, and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

6.4

Effectiveness. It shall be a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this Amendment One that
at least eight (8) of the SBWMA’s Member Agencies enter into Amendment One.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Agency and Contractor have executed this Amendment One as of the day and
year first above written.
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AGENCY NAME

RECOLOGY SAN MATEO COUNTY

By: ____________________________
XXXX
City Manager

By: __________________________
Salvatore M. Coniglio
President and CEO

ATTEST: _______________________
XXXX
City Clerk

By: __________________________
Cary Chen
Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
_______________________
XXXXX
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ATTACHMENT U
RESIDENTIAL ON-CALL BULKY ITEM COLLECTION SERVICE
AND ABANDONED WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE ROUTE COST
Bulky Item Collection Costs

Additional BIC Route
2021 Dollars

Annual Cost of Operations
Direct Labor-Related Costs
Wages for CBAs

$269,064

Benefits for CBAs

$148,795

Payroll Taxes

$21,889

Workers Compensation Insurance

$27,294

Total Direct Labor Related-Costs

$467,042

Direct Fuel Costs

$20,748

Other Direct Costs

$20,223

Depreciation
- Collection Vehicles
- Containers
Total Depreciation

$51,433
$0
$51,433

Allocated Indirect Costs excluding Depreciation
General and Administrative

$0

Operations

$0

Vehicle Maintenance

$0

Container Maintenance

$0

Total Allocated Indirect Costs excluding Depreciation

$0

Total Allocated Indirect Depreciation Costs

$0

Total Annual Cost of Operations

$559,446

Profit

$58,726
Operating Ratio

Total Operating Costs before Pass-Through Costs

90.5%
$618,173

Contractor Pass-Through Costs
Interest Expense

$13,198

Total Contractor Pass-Through Costs

$13,198

TOTAL BASE CONTRACTOR'S COMPENSATION

$631,371

Note - Collection Vehicle Depreciation and Interest Expense are flat beginning in the
of implementation. Purchase price will inflate until the purchase date.
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7A
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Hilary Gans, Senior Operations and Engineering Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Resolution Approving Contingency Measures to Dispose of Paper in Case of Shipping
Emergency

Summary
Since the end of December, the Nation’s recycling industry has had troubles shipping recyclables commodities to
Asia due to a shortage of overseas cargo container capacity. SBR is currently storing fiber bales on-site but given
the limited storage space at Shoreway, staff is requesting approval of a contingency plan for disposing of fiber
bales should the on-site storage capacity run out.
Analysis
All fiber commodities (mixed paper and cardboard) generated at the MRF are exported to Asia and transported to
the Port of Oakland where they are loaded onto overseas container ships. Due to surging imports of products
from Asia shipping companies are struggling to keep up product shipments from Asia to the US. As a result, the
shipping companies are speeding up their return trip to Asia for more cargo by skipping the usual step of loading
up with scrap paper. Since nearly all west coast recycling facilities export paper to Asia on overseas cargo
containers ships, recyclables exports are being stockpiled by recyclers until the surge is over (see Attachment A
- Wall Street Journal article)
Shoreway Environmental Center usually does not have “extra-space” on which to store commodities, parking
areas that administrative employees used during non-COVID time are available, providing temporarily storage
space for SBR to store bales of paper. The regulatory agencies that oversee the Shoreway Facility have been
notified of the situation and have approved the temporary storage of recyclables outside the MRF.
The MRF generates approximately 8 shipping container loads of fiber per day (or about 160 tons per day). There
is outdoor storage capacity for a total of ~8-days of paper generation. Since commodity shipping has recently
been erratic, SBR has needed to use outdoor storage when containers cannot be obtained from the Port. At the
time of writing this report 3-days of materials are stored under industrial-sized tarps and stored outside the MRF
building. See photos below. Related Note: if this material gets wet it will be rejected by the markets and, therefore,
becomes unsellable.
Staff is requesting Board approve to landfill baled paper as a contingency should Shoreway’s capacity to store
bales runs out. The financial impact to the Agency of landfilling paper is estimated at $85 - $100 per ton or $20K
per day (includes transportation, landfilling, and lost commodity revenue).
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Background
This is the first instance where shipping containers have not been available due to a shortage of container ship
capacity. However, as the SBWMA’s marketing agent, SBR has had to stockpile commodities outside for other
reasons including market disruptions, labor unrest at the Port of Oakland, truck and container shortages.
Fiscal Impact
Estimated unbudgeted cost impact to the SBWMA estimated at $85 - $100 per ton or $20K per day (includes
transportation, landfilling, and lost commodity revenue).
Attachments:

Resolution 2021-06

Attachment A – Wall Street Journal Article - Covid-19 Shipping Problems Squeeze China’s Exporters
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF
DIRECTORS APPROVING CONTINGENCY MEASURES TO DISPOSE OF PAPER IN CASE
OF SHIPPING EMERGENCY.
WHEREAS, SBR is contractually responsible for marketing and arranging transportation for all MRF commodities
on the SBWMA’s behalf;
WHEREAS, SBWMA is responsible for the compliance of the Shoreway Environmental Center and maintains the
solid waste permit which prohibits storage of recyclables except in designated areas at the Shoreway Facility and the SBWMA
has notified the enforcement agencies of the need to implement the contingency storage area that can hold roughly one week
of paper:
WHEREAS, shipments of fiber on overseas container ships is temporarily problematic and unreliable due to ship
container capacity shortage and materials may accumulate beyond the contingency storage capacity and require disposal.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby approves
contingency measures to dispose of paper in the case of shipping emergency.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the 28th day of January, 2021, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-06 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 28, 2021.

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Alicia Aguirre, Interim Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
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Covid-19 Shipping Problems Squeeze China’s Exporters - WSJ

This copy is for your personal, non-commercial use only. To order presentation-ready copies for distribution to your colleagues, clients or customers visit
https://www.djreprints.com.
https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204

WORLD

Covid-19 Shipping Problems Squeeze
China’s Exporters
Surging demand in the West and port delays drive up costs for companies that have fueled the country’s
economic recovery

Shipping containers are stacked near gantry cranes at the Port of Nansha, operated by Guangzhou
Port Group.
PHOTO: QILAI SHEN BLOOMBERG NEWS

By Stella Yifan Xie
Updated Jan. 3, 2021 11 34 pm ET

Listen to this article
7 minutes

https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204?st=k9hqvckptpncl4h&reflink=article_email_share
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Covid-19 Shipping Problems Squeeze China’s Exporters - WSJ

HONG KONG—A logjam in the global shipping industry is testing the resilience of China’s
exporters, who have driven the country’s economic recovery by churning out goods to

meet surging global demand during the Covid-19 pandemic.
That demand in recent months has outpaced the capacity of a global shipping industry
that has been slowed by pandemic safety measures. Chinese exporters have been paying
sharply higher rates and struggling to ﬁnd containers for their goods.
Chen Yang, who runs a textile trading unit at a state-owned enterprise in the southern
city of Hefei, said the business, which mostly exports to the U.S., has weathered the
pandemic and the China-U.S. trade war, but he expected to lose money in 2020 in part
because of a sharp rise in shipping costs.
A 40-foot container arriving at the port of Charleston, S.C., in December cost Mr. Yang
around $7,500, up from $2,700 in April, he said. He also has to book space on the vessel at
least 20 days in advance, more than double the usual time.
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“I have never seen anything like this in my 18 years of experience as an exporter,” said Mr.
Yang. “We’ve been operating at a loss since August.”

https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204?st=k9hqvckptpncl4h&reflink=article_email_share
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Container ships moored near Guangzhou, China, in November.
PHOTO: QILAI SHEN BLOOMBERG NEWS

The problem has been aggravated by a worsening imbalance in global trade. In November,
China logged a record trade surplus of $75 billion, fueled by strong consumer demand

from Western countries ahead of the holiday season for everything from electronic
gadgets to furniture and bikes.
Major U.S. ports imported 2.21 million 20-foot containers in October, up 17.6% from a year
earlier and setting a record since the National Retail Federation began tracking imports in
2002. Container freight rates from Asia to the U.S. surged to a record in September and
rates from Asia to Europe reached a 10-year high in December.
Pandemic-related safety measures have lowered eﬃciency at ports, leading to delivery
delays and containers getting stuck all over the world. In November, only half of global
carriers managed to stay on schedule, compared with 80% a year ago, according to a
service-reliability index from Sea-Intelligence.
The average turnaround time for containers returning to China was up to 100 days in
December from the more typical 60 days, according to the China Container Industry
Association.
“The logjam is completely unprecedented, both in terms of the scale of the surge and the
duration,” said Tan Hua Joo, a Singapore-based consultant at Liner Research Services.

https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204?st=k9hqvckptpncl4h&reflink=article_email_share
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High Seas
The average cost of container shipping from
Shanghai to other parts of the world surged to
a record in December.
Shanghai Containerized Freight Index

Jan. 2019

'20

Source: Wind Information

While economists say that shipping problems haven’t derailed China’s solid recovery yet,
they pose a challenge to sustaining the export growth that has driven it.
China’s oﬃcial manufacturing purchasing managers index, a gauge of China’s factory
activity, suggested that growth slowed in December. A subindex for new export orders

edged down from the previous month to 51.3%, though still in expansion territory.
China’s rapidly appreciating currency, the yuan, which has risen more than 8% against the
U.S. dollar in the past six months, is also eroding the proﬁt margins for Chinese traders,
most of whom still accept payments in U.S. dollars.

Bruce Pang, head of macro and strategy research at China Renaissance Securities, said
that high shipping costs would likely remain a major headache for most Chinese exporters
until the Lunar New Year holiday in February, when most factories will close for at least
two weeks.
https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204?st=k9hqvckptpncl4h&reflink=article_email_share
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“It will certainly strain cash ﬂow for some smaller exporters, especially those trading in
low-margin goods,” said Mr. Pang. Many manufacturers have been reluctant to expand
capacity and are cautious about taking new orders, he added.

Uneven Recovery
China's exports have rebounded much
stronger than imports through 2020.
China's imports and exports, change from a
year ago
Exports

Imports

%

Feb. 2020

Nov.

Source: Wind Information

Tony Chen, a toy exporter in the southern Chinese city of Shantou, said many of his clients
in the U.S. and Europe have told him to halt delivery, because the hefty logistics costs have
eroded their proﬁt margins.
“It has been very frustrating,” he said, adding that he has stopped accepting new orders
from customers in recent weeks because he can’t guarantee when he will be able to
deliver.
In early December, China’s ministry of commerce vowed to increase production of
containers to ease the supply shortage, as well as monitor the shipping market more
closely to stabilize costs.
But ﬁxing the problems won’t be easy. China International Marine Containers (Group) Co.,
the world’s largest container producer, told investors in November that its factories are
fully booked until the end of March. More than 95% shipping containers are built in China.
Churning out more container boxes could lead to a glut down the road, but some say that
is the only viable option to ease the shortage now.
https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204?st=k9hqvckptpncl4h&reflink=article_email_share

_________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
AGENDA ITEM: 7A ATTACHMENT A - p5
FULL PACKET PAGE 117 of 177

5/7

1/4/2021

Covid-19 Shipping Problems Squeeze China’s Exporters - WSJ

A logistics center near Tianjin port.
PHOTO: SUN YILEI REUTERS

“You are damned if you do and you are damned if you don’t,” said Charles Du Cane,
commercial director at Seastar Maritime Ltd., which operates dry bulk vessels. “The real
solution to all of this is to deal with the pandemic and the global logistics system.”
The logistics challenges are also prompting some exporters to rethink their supply chains.
Shenzhen Xuewu Technology Co., an e-cigarette producer based in the southern Chinese
city of Shenzhen, sells mostly to consumers abroad. While 90% of its vaping products are
shipped by air, those rates had risen by about 30% in December compared with a year
earlier, with the shortage of shipping containers forcing more exporters to send their
goods by air, said Fiona Fu, who leads the company’s overseas logistics. Logistics costs
now account for about 5% of the company’s overall costs, up from 1% to 2% before the
pandemic, she said.

Demand in existing markets such as Canada and Southeast Asia has grown during the
pandemic as more people spend time indoors, according to Derek Li, co-founder of
Shenzhen Xuewu. That has accelerated the company’s plan to source more products
locally to reduce reliance on exports from China.
“We want to be closer to our consumers as well as be subject to less pressure in logistics,”
said Mr. Li, “We won’t let the pandemic stop us from expansion.”

https://www.wsj.com/articles/covid-19-shipping-problems-squeeze-chinas-exporters-11609675204?st=k9hqvckptpncl4h&reflink=article_email_share
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SHARE YOUR THOUGHTS

What impact could the current logjam have on the global shipping industry in 2021? Join the
conversation below.

Write to Stella Yifan Xie at stella.xie@wsj.com

Corrections & Ampliﬁcations
Chen Yang expected to lose money in 2020 in part because of a sharp rise in shipping
costs. An earlier version of this article incorrectly said he expects to lose money this year.
(Corrected on Jan. 3.)
Appeared in the January 4, 2021, print edition as 'China Export Rise Faces Jam.'

Copyright © 2021 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. All Rights Reserved
This copy is for your personal, non-commercial use only. To order presentation-ready copies for distribution to your colleagues, clients or customers visit
https://www.djreprints.com.
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:

Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Emi Hashizume, Environmental Education Manager
Adele Halili, Environmental Education Associate
Janelle Osteen, Environmental Education Fellow
Nadia Thompson, Environmental Education Fellow
Laura Wessberg, Environmental Education Fellow
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
2019-2020 School Year Report

Recommendation:
This staff report is for discussion purposes only and no formal action is requested of the Board of Directors.
Summary
The purpose of this report is to provide the Board and the public with a summary of the RethinkWaste In-Schools
Program activities during the 2019-2020 School Year.
After the pilot program closed in April 2019, the RethinkWaste Environmental Education team kicked-off the
permanent program in Fall 2019 by re-educating six participating Redwood City schools. Staff expanded the
program to 12 elementary school campuses in Burlingame, Foster City, San Carlos, and San Mateo before inperson services were suspended in March 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Staff pivoted to host virtual
presentations and develop a series of distance-learning materials to continue serving students during shelter in
place.
The In-Schools Program complements the Shoreway Tour Program by delivering additional waste reduction
education and increasing recycling and composting rates at school sites within the SBWMA service area. Staff
coordinated with a variety of faculty members (principals, custodians, yard duty monitors, teachers, and others) to
identify the needs of each campus and build individualized action plans. In addition to site visits and technical
assistance, participating schools received waste infrastructure (bins, dollies, etc.) paired with training and
education (classroom presentations and assemblies) at no-cost.
Program implementation was conducted in close collaboration with the school sites’ current collection service
providers, Recology San Mateo County and Peninsula Services. Staff also collaborated with counterparts at the
County of San Mateo’s Office of Sustainability and the County Office of Education to avoid program redundancy,
address gaps in services, and collaborate on shared resources.
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RethinkWaste Staff collected data during this period to track school progress and identify areas for improvement
moving forward. Key data points are summarized below:
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

18 schools participating in the program as of March 2020
Average diversion rate of 75% after the first week of program implementation
7,794 students and faculty educated in six SBWMA Member Agencies: Belmont, Burlingame, Foster City,
Redwood City, San Carlos, and San Mateo
Reduced cost per campus, due to elimination of storage costs, existing waste infrastructure on campuses,
and surplus of materials purchased during the pilot
Development of virtual learning materials, including original student lessons and online presentations
Additional Environmental Education Fellow boosted staff capacity and level of service provided to schools

The In-Schools Program 2019-2020
School Year Report (Attachment A) will
inform future program planning and
continued agency-wide expansion,
which align with the goals of the
SBWMA 2020-2025 Long Range Plan
and 2021-2023 Public Education Plan.
Program costs are included into the
CY21 budget. Feedback is welcome
with regards to the report content and
future planning.
Analysis
During the 2019-2020 School Year, the
Environmental Education Team
launched the In-Schools Program at 12
new schools and provided refresher
education to six schools that
participated in the pilot (Table 1).
Schools were equipped with a range of
no-cost services and materials:

Table 1: Participating Schools

School
Our Lady of Mount Carmel*
Redeemer Lutheran School*
Hoover Community School*
Connect Community Charter*
KIPP Excelencia Community Prep*
Redwood Shores Elementary*
Baywood Elementary
Foster City Elementary
Arundel Elementary
McKinley Elementary
Brittan Acres Elementary
Arroyo Elementary
Washington Elementary
San Mateo Park School
Roosevelt Elementary
Franklin Elementary
Heather Elementary
White Oaks Elementary

Public/Private
Private
Private
Public
Charter
Charter
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public

Grades
K-8
K-8
K-8
K-8
5-8
K-5
K-5
K-5
TK-3
TK-5
K-3
4-5
K-5
TK-5
TK-5
K-5
K-4
K-3

*Schools from the pilot

Training and Education
▪ Student education about the 4R’s with an emphasis on the importance of waste reduction
▪ 176 assemblies and sorting lessons in individual classrooms (Attachment A, Chart 1)
▪ Coaching of over 7,700 students and faculty on proper sorting technique (Attachment A, Chart 2)
▪ 130 hours of bin monitoring during lunch periods (Attachment A, Table 2)
▪ Recruitment and training of green teams and student groups
No-Cost Materials
▪ Delivery and installation of bins, dollies, signage, etc. at no cost to the schools
▪ Educational resources, including newly developed distance learning lessons
▪ Average value of $889 in materials provided to each school (Attachment A, Table 4)
On-Site Technical Assistance
▪ Evaluation of existing campus waste infrastructure and guidance on implementation of new bin system
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
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▪
▪
▪

20 site visits and waste audits
Tracking and analysis of baseline and post-program roll-out data
Collection of feedback from stakeholders and recording of best practices

The program-provided education, technical assistance, and waste-related materials cost SBWMA an average of
$889 per school. These combined services drastically reduced the amount of trash sent to the landfill. Schools
achieved an average diversion rate of 75% after the first week of participating in the program.
In addition to increased waste diversion, schools received
other program-related benefits, such as:
▪ Increased campus pride and boost in school
community spirit
▪ Liquid buckets prevented liquid from going into bins
(reduced bag weight and eliminated need for doublelined bins)
▪ Litter reduction around campus through student use
of pickers and increased green team activity
▪ Less food waste due to clearer communication about
what school-provided lunch items students are
required to take
▪ Improved school compliance with waste hauler
Students sort at new bin station and food share table
policies, such as bin liner requirements
Testimonials
The accomplishments of the In-Schools Program could not have been achieved without the support and
coordination of many devoted stakeholders.
“We were very excited to launch our Green Team and our composting program at Baywood Elementary last
school year. RethinkWaste supported us throughout the whole process, which made our team very successful!
They met with us to help launch our team, they attended monthly meetings with students and adults, they led
informative staff meetings, helped us think through the supplies we needed, made crucial infrastructure donations,
and their interns even led recycling games with our students during lunch. We are very thankful that we had the
opportunity to work with RethinkWaste and they made a huge impact on our zero waste efforts as a school and as
a district.”
- Deborah Roberts, Assistant Vice Principal, San Mateo

RethinkWaste Staff plays sorting game with students
during lunch

“I want to thank you and the RethinkWaste staff for providing
the educational tools about composting and recycling to the
students at Arundel Elementary School. It's incredible that in
just one year the students have recycled and composted 90%
of the trash. I believe this is due to the way you and your staff
educated the students in how to identify the differences
between composting and recycling in a very easy way for
everyone to understand. Everyone misses all the fun you and
your staff brought during lunch time to teach about recycling
and composting. Hopefully, after COVID-19, we will have the
opportunity to work together again."
- Ray Turner, Lead Custodian, San Carlos
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Additional Information
The 2019-2020 In-Schools Program Report (Attachment A) includes more detailed observations, notes, and
metrics, including the following:
▪ Metrics and Data Tracking
▪ Green Team Establishment and Maintenance
▪ Coordination w/ Partner Organizations
▪ Challenges, Lessons Learned, and Best Practices
▪ Next Steps
Background
The 2015 Long Range Plan identified an opportunity to spread awareness of SBWMA services and increase
school participation in waste diversion programs by more directly supporting campus initiatives. Students and
faculty receive waste reduction education and resources to sort correctly at school and are empowered to also
recycle and compost at home.
As directed by the Board, the team worked with 9 schools located in Redwood City during the pilot program during
the 2018-2019 School Year.
The goals of the pilot program were to:
▪ Expand and complement the environmental education provided during the Shoreway Tour Program
▪ Increase waste reduction, recycling, and composting at six school sites in Redwood City
▪ Develop a template for the program roll-out to be used throughout the SBWMA service area
After a presentation about the results of the pilot at the May 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved Staff to
move forward in establishing the permanent In-Schools Program.
The In-Schools Program supports school compliance with the state requirements of Assembly Bill (AB) 341 and
its 75% statewide recycling goal by 2020, as well as AB 1826, which mandates commercial composting of
organics. The program is aligned with overarching SBWMA objectives and is directly tied to agency goals.
Fiscal Impact
All program expenses incurred were included in the adopted FY19/20 budget and within the approved line-item
amounts.
Attachments:
Attachment A – In-Schools Program Report, 2019-2020
Attachment B - In Schools Program 2019 – 2020 School Year Presentation
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RETHINKWASTE
IN-SCHOOLS PROGRAM
REPORT
2019-2020 School Year

Emi Hashizume, Environmental Education Manager
Adele Halili, Environmental Education Associate
Janelle Osteen, Environmental Education Fellow
Nadia Thompson, Environmental Education Fellow
Laura Wessberg, Environmental Education Fellow
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Overview
The RethinkWaste Environmental Education Team launched the In-Schools Pilot Program in Fall 2018, recruiting and
engaging nine schools located in Redwood City. With approval from the SBWMA Board of Directors at its board meeting in
May 2019, Staff continued to work with pilot schools and expanded the program to 12 additional campuses during the 201920 School Year.
The In-Schools Program increases awareness of SBWMA services and boosts waste diversion among schools by directly
supporting campus communities with waste prevention initiatives. RethinkWaste provides students and faculty with
education and resources to sort correctly both at school and at home. By encouraging students to share waste-related
information with their families, households throughout the SBWMA service area receive consistent messaging about
appropriate sorting habits and the importance of waste reduction.
RethinkWaste Staff coordinated with a variety of stakeholders (district facility managers, principals, custodians, yard duty
monitors, green team leaders, and teachers) to identify the needs of each campus and build individualized action plans. In
addition to on-site technical assistance, participating schools received waste infrastructure (bins, dollies, etc.) paired with
training and education at no cost.

Timeline
Pre-Program: The In-Schools Program was first included in the 2015 Long Range Plan and implemented during the 201819 School Year.
Pilot Program: RethinkWaste Staff conducted initial site visits at schools in Redwood City before kicking-off the pilot
program at two private schools in Fall 2018. Nine public and private schools participated in the pilot phase of the program.
The SBWMA Board of Directors approved transitioning the pilot to a permanent program in May 2019.
Permanent Program: The 2019-2020 School Year marked the first year of the In-Schools Program. Twelve new schools in
the Burlingame, San Carlos, and San Mateo-Foster City School Districts joined the program. In addition, RethinkWaste Staff
re-educated six Redwood City schools from the pilot (Staff did not return to the two middle schools and one school closed).
In-person presentations and trainings were suspended in March 2020 due to COVID-19 pandemic restrictions.

Program Goals
▪

Increase waste reduction, recycling, and composting at 10 new public elementary schools
a. Prioritize schools according to their readiness and expressed interest, while considering individual schools’
and districts’ levels of need

▪

Provide training and education to schools for three consecutive years to ensure long-term success of the
program
a. Partner with green champions and green teams at schools whenever possible to establish program
permanence

▪

Support school compliance with state requirements of Assembly Bill (AB) 341 (75% statewide recycling
goal by 2020) as well as AB 1826 (commercial composting of organics mandate)
a. Emphasize urgency of compliance to motivate participation

▪

Develop program procedures and processes
a. Streamline data collection methods
b. Record and organize metrics
c. Document roll-out processes

▪

Refresh educational materials and resources

In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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a. Develop follow-up and complementary waste-related lessons for students
b. Continuously update presentation materials
c. Pivot to provide resources for individual classes rather than entire schools during distance learning
▪

Continue to coordinate with agency partners to standardize messaging, maximize resources, and reach the
most students in the shortest amount of time

▪

Focus on upstream waste reduction opportunities (providing technical assistance)
a. Work with district Nutrition Services staff to request that meal vendors provide food items with less
packaging
b. Recommend non-wrapped, individual utensils over pre-packaged utensil kits
c. Encourage kitchen staff to prepare meals in bulk when possible and practice proper sorting

Budget
Program expenses incurred were included in the adopted FY 2019-20 budget. All expenditures were within the approved
line-item amounts.
Adopted FY 2019-20 budget: $65,000
Mid-Year Adjusted FY 2019-20 budget: $45,000
Actual FY 2019-20 budget: $25,500
▪ Includes one-time purchase of $13,000 shipping container to store equipment and surplus materials at the
Shoreway Environmental Center, eliminating monthly rental storage costs (after installation in September 2019)
▪ Unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic impacted cost actuals and spending for the FY
The provision of recycling and composting equipment is one of the most effective public outreach tools that RethinkWaste
can provide to schools in the service area. Compared to the pilot year, the cost of fully equipping a school decreased from
an average of $1,389 to $889 in the 2019-20 School Year.
▪
▪
▪
▪

The majority of materials and equipment given to schools were purchased the prior year during the pilot phase or
pre-pilot
New schools participating in the program had more existing infrastructure on campus and required less equipment
Schools from the pilot needed replacement materials (such as signage, trash pickers, and bins) instead of new, full
sets of equipment
The cost for storage was eliminated when surplus materials were moved from a pay-per-month rental storage
facility to a shipping container located at the Shoreway Environmental Center

Staff estimates the average cost of program implementation per school will remain approximately the same moving forward.
Some school districts within the SBWMA service area have already provided schools with waste infrastructure, so the
schools will mainly require education, technical assistance, and smaller quantities of waste-related accessories (such as
dollies and liquid buckets). As more schools join the program, materials will need to be replaced over the years. However,
some newly recruited schools (particularly those in underserved communities) may require new, full sets of waste
infrastructure.

Summary of Results
Throughout the year, RethinkWaste Staff gathered data to measure the collective impact of the program and understand
how to improve the efficiency, effectiveness, range, and reach of program services. Highlights from the data and this report
are summarized in Table 1 and below:

In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪
▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

Staff worked with 12 new public elementary schools during the 2019-2020 School Year, in addition to revisiting and
re-educating six schools that participated in the pilot (total of 18 participating schools)
Staff educated 7,794 students and faculty in six SBWMA
Table 1: Key Performance Metrics
Member Agencies: Belmont, Burlingame, Foster City,
Redwood City, San Carlos, and San Mateo (Appendix,
Chart 2)
Participating schools were equipped with no-cost waste
infrastructure (Appendix, Table 3), resulting in an average
lunchtime diversion rate of 75% by the end of the first week
in the program
Staff coordinated 20 site visits and bin deliveries, in addition
to participating in 130 hours of bin monitoring and 108 hours
of presentations and assemblies (Appendix, Table 2)
Schools were gifted an average of $889 worth of materials
(Appendix, Table 4), with an average cost per city of
$4,062.23 (Appendix, Table 5)
During the COVID-19 pandemic, Staff pivoted to virtual
learning by developing a series of original student lessons
and adapting presentations to virtual classroom settings

COVID-19 Pandemic Impacts
In-person components of the In-Schools Program were suspended in March 2020 due to COVID-19 Shelter-in-Place orders.
RethinkWaste Staff shifted to offering services virtually to accommodate student distance learning. By late Spring 2020,
Staff had created a collection of educational materials that could be used from home, such as presentation videos, student
worksheets, and full lesson plans and activities for classes. Special care was given to ensure materials could be accessed
and utilized by a wide range of learners - lessons were translated into Spanish, digital and printable versions were made
available, and video instructions were provided for certain lessons. Video captions and audio instructions for all lessons are
in progress.
The Environmental Education Team
developed the following distance
learning resources:
▪
▪

▪

▪

20-minute Refresher
Presentation video
Eight full lessons with
educator and student
instructions, worksheets,
related videos, and
accompanying graphics
Three lessons for
environmental justicerelated books
Interactive games, including
Waste Pictionary and
RethinkWaste and County of San Mateo Office of Sustainability Staff host a virtual presentation
Waste Scavenger Hunt

RethinkWaste Staff also held virtual presentations, green team celebrations, and Earth Day festivities for individual classes
and school groups.

Analysis

In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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In addition to re-engaging six schools from the In-Schools Program pilot phase, the Environmental Education Team recruited
and worked with 12 additional schools during the 2019-20 School Year. New schools are listed in order of program
implementation:
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Baywood Elementary School (San Mateo-Foster City School District, public, K - 5)
Foster City Elementary School (San Mateo-Foster City School District, public, K - 5)
Arundel Elementary School (San Carlos School District, public, TK - 3)
McKinley Elementary School (Burlingame School District, public, TK - 5)
Brittan Acres Elementary School (San Carlos School District, public, K - 3)
Arroyo Elementary School (San Carlos School District, public, 4 - 5)
Washington Elementary School (Burlingame School District, public, K - 5)
San Mateo Park School (San Mateo-Foster City School District, public, TK - 5)
Roosevelt Elementary School (Burlingame School District, public, TK - 5)
Franklin Elementary School (Burlingame School District, public, K - 5)
Heather Elementary School (San Carlos School District, public, K - 4)
White Oaks Elementary School (San Carlos School District, public, K - 3)

RethinkWaste Staff playing sorting game with students

RethinkWaste Staff leading an assembly

The program-provided education, technical assistance, and waste-related materials combined to drastically reduce the
amount of trash campuses sent to landfills. Schools achieved an average diversion rate of rate of 75% by the end of the first
week of the program.
Training and Education
▪ Custodial and faculty member trainings and presentations
▪ Held staff meeting presentations
▪ Led custodian and facility management meetings
▪ Student education about the 4R’s with an emphasis on the importance of waste reduction and sorting
▪ Hosted 176 assemblies and sorting lessons in individual classrooms (Appendix, Chart 1)
▪ Coached over 7,700 students and faculty on proper sorting technique (Appendix, Chart 2)
▪ Participated in 130 hours of bin monitoring and assisting students with bin sorting during lunch periods for
1-2 weeks following implementation of new bin system or as refresher training for schools that were a part
of the pilot program (Appendix, Table 2)
▪ Green team and student group trainings, presentations, and celebrations
▪ Worked with eight active green teams
▪ Distance-learning resources
▪ Created eight original distance learning lessons
▪ Developed three environmental justice book lessons
▪ Adapted presentations to virtual settings
▪ Presentation updates
In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪

Tailored presentation format and content to better fit the needs of specific schools and classes (Appendix,
Chart 3)

No-Cost Materials
▪ Delivered and installed bins, dollies, liquid buckets, signage, and accessories (Appendix, Table 3)
▪ Gifted an average of $889 worth of materials to each school (Appendix, Table 4)
▪ Equipped campuses with waste-related materials (Appendix, Table 3)
▪ Supplied educational resources for school administrators, custodians, students, and families
On-Site Technical Assistance
▪ Evaluated existing campus waste infrastructure and provided guidance on implementation of new bin system
▪ Conducted 20 site visits and bin deliveries, as well as multiple follow-up meetings with custodians, school
administrators, and students
▪ Assisted with necessary adjustments and improvements after initial program roll-out phase
▪ Collected feedback from stakeholders and tracked best practices
Note: Due to COVID-19 pandemic restrictions implemented in March of 2020, the Environmental Education Team was
unable to reevaluate the waste hauler collection service needs of schools or complete full tracking and analysis of baseline
and post-program roll-out data for the school year.
Additional Program Benefits
▪ Boost in school community spirit and increase in campus
pride
▪ Greater environmental and scientific engagement amongst
teachers, administration, students, and families
▪ Reduced weight of waste bags (due to introduction of liquid
buckets), eliminating the need for custodians to double line
bins
▪ Litter reduction around campus through student use of
pickers and more consistently active green teams
▪ Reduced food waste as a result of clearer messaging about
A student sorting at the new 3-bin system and food share
what school-provided lunch items students are required to
table
take
▪ Improved school compliance and reduction of service fines
from waste haulers due to more direct communication about updates to Recology bin liner policies (clear bags for
compost and recycling are currently accepted)

Metrics & Data Tracking
To measure the success of the In-Schools Program,
RethinkWaste Staff regularly check-in with schools. The data
points listed below were collected over the course of the pilot
and during program implementation. Prior to the suspension of
in-person services in March of 2020, Staff had been continuing
to track schools, conduct on-site visits, and gather detailed
notes and observations to improve the program moving forward.
Metrics include:
▪
▪
▪
▪

Bag count by waste stream (compost, recycling, and
landfill)
Waste diversion rate through cafeteria bag counts
Number of students and teachers engaged
Number of presentations and assemblies

In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪
▪
▪

Number of waste audits and site visits performed
Material inventory (number, type, and cost)
Costs per school

Unfortunately, Staff did not have adequate opportunity to collect and analyze data to recommend adjustments in waste
hauler service levels for schools due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Baywood Elementary School in San Mateo added a 1-yard
compost bin but was the only campus with service level adjustments as of March 2020.

Testimonials
While working closely with school communities, the RethinkWaste Environmental Education Team established strong
relationships with principals and school administrators, custodians, teachers, students, and their families. Their support was
essential to program accomplishments! A few shared their thoughts on the program:
“I really enjoyed the interactive and informative lessons that the RethinkWaste staff presented. My students increased their
knowledge of proper waste sorting and also learned about ways to reduce their waste. I look forward to working with
RethinkWaste again in the future as their lessons are impactful and essential for all learners!”
- Melanie LaGory, Teacher, Burlingame
“RethinkWaste has been a true community partner in every sense of
the word. From school and classroom visits and helping design
curriculum to assisting in implementations of programs and school-wide
events, it's been great at every level. It is a pleasure to work with such
dedicated and thoughtful people who are helping us educate and
motivate our students to be stewards of the earth and to think about the
impact each and every one of us has on the environment on a daily
basis.”
- Jadelyn Chang & Jo O’Brien, Teacher, Librarian & Green
Team Leads, Foster City
“We were very excited to launch our Green Team and our composting
program at Baywood Elementary last school year. RethinkWaste
Green Team members help students sort at the bins
supported us throughout the whole process, which made our team very
successful! They met with us to help launch our team, they attended
monthly meetings with students and adults, they led informative staff meetings, helped us think through the supplies we
needed, made crucial infrastructure donations, and their interns even led recycling games with our students during lunch.
We are very thankful that we had the opportunity to work with RethinkWaste and they made a huge impact on our zero
waste efforts as a school and as a district.”
- Deborah Roberts, Assistant Vice Principal, San Mateo
“I would like to give thanks along with a testimonial experience I have had with the RethinkWaste team. I was amazed by the
ideas the team had and how they coordinated and worked with myself, staff and students at Roosevelt Elementary BSD. We
were all satisfied with the knowledge the team had with showing the student how to separate items into their correct location.
The color-coded cans and signs made it easy to separate not only with the upper grades but with the smaller students and
staff also. I must say job well done, and we at the Burlingame School District really appreciate your service in teaching our
students and staff the proper way of recycling.”
- James Jones, Lead Custodian, Burlingame
“I want to thank you and the RethinkWaste staff for providing the educational tools about composting and recycling to the
students at Arundel Elementary School. It's incredible that in just one year the students have recycled and composted 90%
of the trash. I believe this is due to the way you and your staff educated the students in how to identify the differences
between composting and recycling in a very easy way for everyone to understand. Everyone misses all the fun you and your
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staff brought during lunch time to teach about recycling and composting. Hopefully, after COVID-19, we will have the
opportunity to work together again."
- Ray Turner, Lead Custodian, San Carlos

Green Teams
During the 2019-20 School Year, the Environmental Education
Team worked closely with eight green teams to provide training,
education, and support to these student leaders. The eight
participating green teams are listed below:
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Baywood Elementary Green Team in San Mateo
Foster City Elementary Green Team in Foster City
Franklin Elementary Green Team in Burlingame
McKinley Elementary Green Team in Burlingame
Redwood Shores Green Team in Redwood City
San Mateo Park School Green Team in San Mateo
Washington Elementary Green Team in Burlingame
White Oaks Elementary Green Team in San Carlos

RethinkWaste Staff lead a game during a green team
celebration

Staff worked with the green teams in three capacities: training, presentations, and celebrations (Appendix, Chart 4).
▪

▪

▪

Staff developed a tailored training for green team members, focusing on giving students the knowledge and skills to
help others sort properly during lunchtime. In addition to providing training, Staff hosted complementary, wasterelated presentations and assisted with regular green team meetings to keep students energized and motivated
throughout the year.
For White Oaks Elementary in San Carlos, Staff modeled a presentation about waste sorting for the Green Team
and assisted team members in creating their own presentations to teach their fellow students at the school how to
sort properly.
To show appreciation for the hard work and dedication of green team members, Staff assisted with several
celebrations, both virtually and in-person. For these celebrations, Staff developed and led educational activities and
games that are compiled in a Green Team Menu of Activities.

Partner Organizations
RethinkWaste Staff partners with several local agencies to collaborate on waste-focused efforts within the SBWMA service
area and greater San Mateo County. During the 2019-20 School Year, Staff regularly participated in working groups and
committees hosted by the San Mateo County Office of Education’s Community Based Environmental Literacy Partners
(CBELP) and Zero Waste Education Alliance (ZWEA). These working groups provided updates on the state of schools in the
County and gave Staff insight into the challenges and opportunities experienced by similar organizations in the area. The
working groups have collaborated on building shared resources and outreach networks, as well as strengthening wasterelated messaging and environmental education across the County.
RethinkWaste Staff continued to work closely with Recology San Mateo County and Peninsula Services. Staff coordinates
with Zero Waste Specialist teams from both Recology branches: Recology Peninsula Services holds contracts with public
schools and Recology San Mateo County services private schools in the Agency’s service area.
In addition, Staff supported the San Mateo County’s Environmental Health Services department in implementing the Food
Share Table Program at several campuses.
When the shelter-in-place mandate prevented Staff from working on campuses beginning in March 2020, RethinkWaste
Fellows pivoted to volunteering with community organizations such as Second Harvest and Nuestra Casa to redistribute
food during Spring and Summer 2020.
In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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RethinkWaste Staff partnered with the following agencies and organizations:
San Mateo County Office of Education (SMCOE)

Key Contacts – Andra Yeghoian, Environmental Literacy Sustainability Coordinator
Naomi Stern, Green Facilities and Operations Analyst
▪

CBELP (Community Based Environmental Literacy Partners)
▪ Participated in learning collaboratives and provided support at stakeholder meetings
▪ Led educational workshops and assisted with educator fellowships, such as the San Mateo Environmental
Learning Collaborative (SMELC) Teacher Fellowship Program
▪ Partnered on lesson and curriculum development, including a Zero Waste Exemplar Unit on recycling
▪ Shared distance learning offerings on collective resource portal

▪

ZWEA (Zero Waste Education Alliance)
▪ Participated in working groups focused on standardized messaging, pandemic school waste guidelines,
and campus waste reduction best practices
▪ Co-led joint presentations and meetings with school and district administrators
▪ Developed waste-focused Data Nuggets lesson instructing students about the scientific method
▪ Supported district efforts to comply with mandatory recycling and composting requirements mandated by
Assembly Bill 341 and 1826

County of San Mateo Office of Sustainability (OOS)

Key Contact – Gerald Schwartz, Sustainability
Coordinator
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Shared resources and educational tools
Established referral process for different program
offerings
Aligned materials and presentations to achieve more
consistent messaging about the 4R’s
Co-hosted classroom presentations and lunch
monitoring
Provided grant writing support for four schools and a
district for OOS’ 4 R’s Grant

County of San Mateo Environmental Health Services

Key Contact – Allison Milch, Pollution Prevention
Program
▪
▪

RethinkWaste Staff and ZWEA partners celebrating the
education community on Earth Day

Provided staffing and materials for Food Share Table Program roll-outs at schools located in SBWMA service area
Shared information about Hazardous Waste programs and resources with schools when applicable

Recology – San Mateo County (SMC) and Peninsula Services

Key Contacts – Mia Rossi, Waste Zero Manager (SMC)
Reyna Oceguera, Waste Zero Specialist (Peninsula)
▪
▪
▪

Conducted joint presentations and updates at school site trainings about sorting practices and waste reduction
Co-hosted webinars such as the Earth Day Q&A session
Communicated updated waste hauler policies regarding bag liners, items accepted in the three waste streams, etc.

Challenges
While RethinkWaste Staff implemented many best practices learned during the pilot, Staff encountered similar and new
hurdles during the 2019-20 School Year. Challenges included:
Stakeholder Engagement
In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪
▪

▪

▪

Campus Layout
▪

▪

Establishing waste as a high-priority issue
▪ Difficulty in convincing stakeholders of the importance and urgency of waste management
Scheduling with busy stakeholders
▪ Inability to efficiently coordinate with multi-level administration about timing and education
expectations slowed down the roll-out process
▪ Difficulty identifying and maintaining a green champion who was committed to continuing waste
education and implementation after RethinkWaste Staff leaves campus
Lack of student buy-in
▪ Older students continued to be less receptive to waste education than younger students
▪ Three-stream waste bins were often only available during lunch, and students lost interest in
sorting depending on when/where necessary bins are available
Personalizing waste education
▪ Students were be less likely to focus or internalize waste education when learning in a large
assembly setting
Limitations of campus geography
▪ Eating areas confined to particular spaces that did not have adequate room for three-stream
waste bins
▪ Bins placed in areas that were highly utilized throughout the day (i.e. hallways) saw higher rates
of contamination
Existing waste infrastructure
▪ Permanent bin systems and other existing bins around campuses that were not aligned to the
three-system bin system confused students, making education and sorting more difficult
▪ Students displayed less understanding of sorting when presented with bins lacking consistent
signage or coloring

School-Provided Meals
▪ Excessive plastic packaging and less desirable school-provided food options from meal vendors
▪ Many students already considered waste sorting time consuming and difficult, and extra
packaging further deterred them from trying to participate
▪ Students often took food out of obligation (due to habit or because they were instructed to) and
did not eat it because they did not like the quality of the food, the portions were too large, or they
had inadequate time to eat and cannot take food home
Staff Capacity
▪

Limited time capacity of RethinkWaste Staff
▪ Time conflicts caused by scheduling overlaps of interested schools
▪ Difficulty aligning the Shoreway Tour Program schedule and the In-Schools Program schedule

RethinkWaste Staff hosts multiple assemblies and presentations at two different schools on the same day
In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪

Roll-out weeks necessitated time commitment of entire
Environmental Education Team, leaving very limited
availability for other projects and responsibilities

COVID-19 Pandemic
▪ RethinkWaste Staff had a very short timeline to identify the unmet
needs of schools and educators, transition offerings to virtual
learning, and maintain proper waste sorting habits for students
learning from home
▪ Staff had no prior experience with distance learning or supporting
schools without in-person contact
▪ Staff had to determine how to best educate students in new virtual
format while also adjusting to working from home themselves

Best Practices
The Environmental Education Team collected many valuable lessons during the
2019-20 School Year that will improve the program moving forward. Helpful best
practices include:
Stakeholder Engagement
▪ Custodians
▪ Recognize efforts of custodial staff
▪ Show gratitude with a small gift or token of
appreciation at the end of the school year
▪ Follow up with custodians regularly
▪ Ensure that they are adjusting well to the new
waste system and have all necessary supplies
▪ Administrators
▪ Remind administrators of their school’s waste reduction
progress (or lack of)
▪ Communicate progress with informative graphics Examples of a K-5 distance learning
▪ Encourage administrators to check-in regarding their
lessons developed by RethinkWaste
school’s needs throughout the year
▪ Constant follow-up (in-person, phone calls, emails, texts)
▪ Help ensure consistent and ongoing effort
▪
Be persistent and concise
▪ Short messages with clear “ask”
▪ Better to send too many emails and include
too many people
▪ Nutrition Services and Kitchen Staff
▪ Clarify with Nutrition Services about what food items
must be taken and then remind students (particularly
milk)
▪ As students move through the lunch line,
remind them of which items they are not
required to take
Green Teams
▪

▪

Identify a champion for the Green Team, usually an adult that is
closely connected to the school for a prolonged period of time
o Champion is responsible for managing the Green Team Green team sign-up poster
after Staff leaves
Create a menu of offerings that the Green Team organizer can choose from

In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪
▪
▪

Develop schedules and assign shifts for green team members
Hold regular meetings to keep students engaged
Recognize the effort of green teams through celebrations
o Encourages continued participation
o Incentivizes new students to join

Waste Infrastructure & Processes
▪ Utilize the most up-to-date signage
▪ If schools opt to use their existing bins (such as permanent bin structures), be sure to post clear
and consistent signage to support proper sorting
▪ Wherever possible, provide designated area for students to set their lunch trays while sorting (i.e. bench)
▪ Especially important for younger students who cannot hold their trays and sort at the same time!
▪ Encourage students to focus on one bin at a time while sorting
▪ Enables students to sort more easily
▪ Helps prevent students from holding up the line by moving back and forth between bins
▪ Strongly recommend schools utilize liquid buckets during lunch
▪ Liquid buckets help reduce weight of the compost bin and results in less clean-up for custodial
staff
▪ If custodians are skeptical or unsure about liquid buckets, offer to let them test it out before
committing
COVID-19 Pandemic
▪ Diversify educational offerings
▪ Have a collection of lessons that can be completed at school or home with or without educator
facilitation, along with live and pre-recorded virtual presentations
▪ Offer opportunities for virtual tours, workshops, and webinars
▪ Be proactive about collaborations with other local organizations
▪ Express interest in collaborative projects that can be shared with each organization’s networks
▪ Share best practices about student engagement and lesson effectiveness
▪ Request feedback from teachers about educational materials
▪ Use feedback to make adjustments to better fit the needs of students and educators
Additional Resources
▪ Quiz students on sorting during lunch
▪ Allows students to compare items to their lunch waste in real time
▪ Prepare “easy” and “advanced” version of the quiz to use throughout the week of lunch
monitoring
▪ Send informational letter home
▪ Notify parents of new program and RethinkWaste’s presence on campus
▪ Attach sorting guide for students to share with families
▪ Share reuse and repair resources and tips for home waste reduction
▪ Increase accessibility of educational materials
▪ Translate materials into Spanish
▪ Create explanation videos and/or audio for lessons
▪ Provide digital and printable formats

Next Steps
Despite difficulties caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the In-Schools Program successfully expanded to new campuses,
educated thousands of students, and significantly increased the quantity and quality of learning resources. To continue
building and improving the program, RethinkWaste Staff proposes the following:
Coordination
In-Schools Program Report, 2019-20
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▪ Designate school liaisons - Environmental Education Team

members will be assigned to individual schools instead of the
Environmental Education Manager coordinating directly with all
schools. Each team member will be responsible for
communicating with assigned schools and serve as the main
point of contact.
▪ Standardize program offerings - outline exact content of
presentations, trainings, assemblies, etc. while still allowing for
flexibility to tailor to particular needs of individual schools and
classes. Creating a more standardized list of offerings will help
increase the accuracy of tracking education-related data and
provide schools a detailed preview of educational options.
Staff Capacity
▪ Limit program roll-outs per week - whenever possible, reduce
overlapping school schedules. While schools often have limited
availability and request the same dates, it is very difficult for RethinkWaste Staff to cover presentations, material
deliveries, and lunch monitoring sessions in addition to other responsibilities (such as Shoreway tours). Staff will
limit commitments to one school per week to allow adequate time to regroup, assess and collect data, and prepare
for future schools.

Lead custodian helps students sort at the new bins

Service Level Changes
▪ Prioritize service level adjustments - initiate more regular check-ins with Recology San Mateo County and
Peninsula Services. RethinkWaste Staff will request more joint site visits with Recology Zero Waste Specialists to
identify opportunities for waste service level changes (addition of compost and recycling or reduction in landfill).
Increased coordination with Recology will also help keep schools appraised of their waste habits and progress
while ensuring Recology stays updated on status of the schools.
Metric Tracking
▪ Refine data collection processes - continue to fine-tune metric tracking and record-keeping for inventory, site visits,
presentations (type, length, audience), etc. to increase accuracy. RethinkWaste Staff is committed to recording
data more regularly and with more precision by clearly defining expectations and delegating specific responsibilities
to Environmental Education Team members. Staff will also remove outdated, unnecessary, or redundant
documents, and establish where metrics should be recorded and saved.

Appendix
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Chart 4: Total Green Team Education
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Table 3: Bin Tally (Baseline & Post Roll-Out)

Bins
School
Baywood Elementary
Foster City Elementary
Arundel Elementary
McKinley Elementary
(Burlingame)
Brittan Acres Elementary
Arroyo School
Washington Elementary
San Mateo Park School
Roosevelt Elementary
Franklin Elementary
Heather Elementary
White Oaks Elementary
Average
Total

Cafeteria Bin Count and Type
Existing Bins (Pre-Program)
Permanent 3-Bin
Set
Recycling
Carts Brutes
8
2
1

2
2
2
0.5
6

Bins
School
Baywood Elementary
Foster City Elementary
Arundel Elementary
McKinley Elementary
(Burlingame)
Brittan Acres Elementary
Arroyo School
Washington Elementary
San Mateo Park School
Roosevelt Elementary
Franklin Elementary
Heather Elementary
White Oaks Elementary
Average
Total

1
1
-

Liquid Buckets

3
4
2
2
2
2
3
3
3
2
3
3

2
3
3
-

-

1.9

3
3
4
3
-

2
2
2
3
3
3
2
4
2
3.5

Trash
Carts Brutes
11
10
2
-

1.4
84

1
1
1
1
-

2
3
3
10
3
1
3
4.4

Post Roll-Out
Recycling
Compost
Slim
Slim
Jims Brutes Jims Brutes
8
2
5
2
5
3
2
3
2
1
1
1
1

2.7
32

Compost
Carts Brutes
2

4
2
2
3
3
3
4
3
3.8
127

Trash
Slim
Jims Brutes
4
6
3
2
1
1
1
1
1

2
2
2
3
3
3
2
3
3.3

*Note: Trash Brutes not provided by RethinkWaste for pilot (schools utilized existing infrastructure)
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Table 4: Materials Distributed and Associated Costs per City
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Table 5: Average Material Quantities and Costs per City

Product
Program Materials
Slim Jims
Organics
Recycling
Garbage
Brute
Organics
Recycling
Recycling 44 gallon
Recycling 14 gallon
Organic lid
Recycling lid
Labels
Stickers
Dollies
Brute single
Brute double
Liquid Buckets
Bucket 10 qt.
Strainer 5 qt.
Bucket dolly
Extras
Picker kid size
Picker adult size
Apron
Share table
Giveaways
Bookmarks

Cost Actuals Average Quantity/City 19/20

Average Cost/City 19/20

$18
$18
$18

6
6
5

$111.60
$108.00
$82.80

$42
$42
$60
$25
$6
$14

10
8
0
5
1
1

$420.00
$350.03
$24.00
$130.00
$3.60
$11.20

$3

41

$56
$196

7
6

$123.60
$0.00
$380.80

$5

9

$5
$43

9
2

$17

11

$17
$8

2
13

$94

1

$102.40
$94.00

$1

493

$493.40

Average Cost/City:

$1,254.40
$43.00
$43.00
$68.80
$187.00
$30.60

$4,062.23

Note: Cities referenced in table are Member Agencies with schools that participating in the program
(Cities include Burlingame, Foster City, Redwood City, San Carlos, and San Mateo)
Calculation does not account for transportation costs or staff time
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In-Schools Program
2019 – 2020 School Year
1

Key Players

Baywood Elementary School
Assistant Principal Deb Robert
and RethinkWaste Staff
celebrate the Green Team

Mr. James (Custodian) at Roosevelt Elementary School
RethinkWaste Staff, Nicole Larson and Kamille Lang (OOS), host presentation for students
from San Mateo MLK Community Center

2

1
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Kids Impact the World

Students at Park School in San Mateo help each other sort their waste

Green Team members at White Oaks are excited
about their new RethinkWaste gear!

3

Participating Schools
School Name

City

Grades

Baywood Elementary

San Mateo

K-5

Foster City Elementary

Foster City

K-5

Arundel Elementary

San Carlos

TK-3

McKinley Elementary

Burlingame

TK-5

Brittan Acres Elementary

San Carlos

K-3

Arroyo Elementary

San Carlos

4-5

Washington Elementary

Burlingame

K-5

San Mateo Park School

San Mateo

TK-5

Roosevelt Elementary

Burlingame

TK-5

Franklin Elementary

Burlingame

K-5

Heather Elementary

San Carlos

K-4

White Oaks Elementary

San Carlos

K-3

4

2
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No Cost Waste Infrastructure

Share Table Carts

5

Program Roll-Outs

New tri-bin system, liquid bucket, and food share table at Park School in San Mateo

6

3
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Before

Many schools from the 2019-20 School Year had existing, permanent tribin systems, but they were not utilized correctly by students

After

Post-program implementation, schools sort neatly & accurately!

7

Presentations

Assemblies

In-Class Lessons

RethinkWaste Staff leading class presentation at White Oaks
Elementary

RethinkWaste Staff conducting an assembly at Heather
Elementary

8

4
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Lunch Monitoring

RethinkWaste Staff helps students sort during lunch monitoring at at Connect Charter and Roosevelt Elementary School

9

Green Teams

RethinkWaste Staff and students play a game during the Baywood
Elementary Green Team celebration

Foster City Elementary Green Team members geared up
and ready to help their fellow students sort

10

5
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COVID-19 Pandemic Adaptations

11

Program Results
Results

Pilot Year
(2018-2019)

2019-2020

70%

75%

15

42

3,206

7,794

Class Presentations

56

134

Waste-Related Materials

357

885

$1,389
avg/ school

$889
avg/ school

Waste Diversion
School Assemblies
Students and Staff Reached

Waste-Related Materials Cost

12

6
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Waste Diversion
Waste stream
before and after
(left to right)
Waste diversion graphic from Baywood Elementary School (San Mateo)

13

Cost Actuals

Average Quantity/ Average Cost/ City
City 19/20
19/20

$18
$18
$18

6
6
5

$111.60
$108.00
$82.80

$42
$42
$60
$25
$6
$14

10
8
0
5
1
1

$420.00
$350.03
$24.00
$130.00
$3.60
$11.20

Product

Costs

Average
Cost/School
=
$889

Program Materials
Slim Jims
Organics
Recycling
Garbage
Brute
Organics
Recycling
Recycling 44 gallon
Recycling 14 gallon
Organic lid
Recycling lid
Labels
Stickers
Dollies
Brute single
Brute double
Liquid Buckets
Bucket 10 qt.
Strainer 5 qt.
Bucket dolly
Extras
Picker kid size
Picker adult size
Apron
Share table
Giveaways
Bookmarks
Average Cost/City:

$3

41

$56
$196

7
6

$123.60
$0.00
$380.80
$1,254.40

$5
$5
$43

9
9
2

$43.00
$43.00
$68.80

$17
$17
$8
$94

11
2
13
1

$187.00
$30.60
$102.40
$94.00

$1

493

$493.40
$4,062.23

14

7
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1/21/2021

Challenges
o Stakeholder engagement
o Campus layout
o School-provided meals
o Staff capacity
o COVID-19 pandemic

15

Best Practices

o Stakeholder engagement
o Celebrate & support green teams
o Waste infrastructure & processes

o Diversify offerings & education
materials to increase accessibility

16

8
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1/21/2021

Next Steps
o Designate school liaisons
o Limit program roll-outs per week
o Collaborate with Recology Zero

Waste Specialists
o Refine data collection processes

RethinkWaste Staff with Roosevelt Elementary School custodian, James Jones

17

Thank you!
Time for questions!

18
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9A
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
2021 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar

Recommendation
This is an informational report, and no action is necessary.
Summary
The purpose of this staff report is to keep the Board and Member Agency staff informed on the schedule of
important financial and rate setting events in 2021. This staff report is updated as necessary and included in the
Board packet each month.
Schedule of Finance, Contractor Compensation and Rate Adjustment Activities in 2021:
January 2021
• Approve FY19/20 audited Financial Statements
March 2021
• Recology submission of the unaudited 2020 Revenue Reconciliation Report (March 31)
June 2021
• Mid-year review of the FY2021 SBWMA Operating Budget approved at the November 19th, 2020 Board meeting.
• Recology’s 2022 Compensation Application submission to the SBWMA and Member Agencies (June 15)
• SBWMA and Member Agency comments submission to Recology on its 2020 Compensation Application (June 29)
• SBWMA issues letters requesting formal confirmation Member Agencies on their estimated 2022 Member Agency
fees (e.g., franchise fees) to be included in their 2022 solid waste rates.
• Review of the Revenue Reconciliation Report from the Financial Systems audit report on Recology
July 2021
• SBR's 2022 Compensation Application submission to the SBWMA.
• Recology revised 2022 Compensation Application submission to SBWMA & Member Agencies (July 16)
• SBWMA issues the following reports to the Board and Member Agency staff for review and comment:
o Estimated 2021 and 2022 residential and commercial base revenue
o Estimated collected tonnage for 2021 and 2022
o Summary of 2022 Member Agency fees to be used in the 2022 cost projections based on Member Agency
feedback.
August 2021
• SBWMA issues the Draft Report Reviewing Recology’s 2022 Compensation Application, recommended total
Revenue Requirement, and Rate Adjustment (August 10)
• SBWMA issues the Draft Report Reviewing SBR’s 2022 Compensation Application (August 17)
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•

Comments due from Member Agencies on draft Reports Reviewing Recology’s & SBR’s 2022 Compensation
Application (August 27)

September 2021
• SBWMA TAC Meeting reviewing Pre-Final Report Reviewing Recology’s 2022 Compensation Application.
• SBWMA issues Amended Final Report Reviewing Recology’s 2022 Compensation Application including the
recommended total Collection Rate Adjustment for 2022. (September BOD Packet)
• SBWMA issues Final Report Reviewing SBR’s 2022 Compensation Application. (September BOD Packet).
• Approval of SBR 2022 Compensation Application (September 23 BOD Meeting)
• Approval of Recology 2022 Compensation Application and total recommended Revenue Requirement (October
BOD Meeting)
October 2021
• Finance Committee review of DRAFY FY2022 Budget (October 12)
• Board Study Session: Reviewing Preliminary (Draft) 2022 Fiscal Year Budget & Capital Improvement Plan
(October 21)
September – December 2021
• Member Agencies issue Prop. 218 notices and approve their final 2022 solid waste rates
November 2021
• Approval of the Final Fiscal Year 2022 Budget at the November 18th Board meeting

SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021

AGENDA ITEM: 9A – p2

FULL PACKET PAGE 158 of 177

9B
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Check Register Detail for November and December 2020

Recommendation
This is an informational item only and no action is required. This report was requested by the Board members.
Summary
The purpose of this report is to provide transparency to the Board and the public on the actual spending by the
SBWMA. All payments issued in November and December 2020 are listed on the attached (Attachment A) report
for review.
Analysis
As of July 1, 2019, the SBWMA entered into a contract with the City of Redwood City for accounting services
including the issuing of all payments and deposit of all receipts. In accordance with the SBWMA and the City of
Redwood City’s policies, checks are normally issued every two weeks. All SBWMA invoices are approved for
payment by the program manager and then by the Executive Director or Finance Manager. Total A/P spending
for November 2020 was $4,017,414.72 and for December 2020 was $3,691,000.62 as detailed in Attachment A.
If you have any questions on this, please contact Cyndi Urman or John Mangini.
Attachments:
Attachment A – November and December 2020 Check Register Detail Report
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DATE

NUM NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Expense

PPE 11/7/20

500000 Salaries - Admin

22,851.94

PPE 11/7/20

500100 Salaries Recycling

31,791.86

PPE 11/7/20

500150 Salaries - Car
Allowance

3,175.00

PPE 11/7/20

500200 Salaries - Opt Out
Medical

1,599.61

PPE 11/7/20

501000 Benefits - Payroll
Taxes

866.36

PPE 11/7/20

501005 Benefits - Workers
Comp Ins

444.40

PPE 11/7/20

501010 Benefits Retirement Employee

PPE 11/7/20

501030 Benefits - CPE
Fee

100010 Wells Fargo Bank
11/09/2020 WIRE MODERN HR, INC.

11/12/2020 10419 AARONSON DICKERSON Inv# 1020011-SB.R
COHN & LANZONE

11/12/2020 10418 A. MACIEL PRINTING,
LLC

11/12/2020 10420 ASCENT
ENVIRONMENTAL INC

11/12/2020 10421 CITY OF SAN CARLOS

11/12/2020 10422 CLASSIC GRAPHICS

11/12/2020 10423 Comcast

11/12/2020 10424 COMCAST BUSINESS

11/12/2020 10425 E-RECYCLING OF
CALIFORNIA

11/12/2020 10426 HF&H CONSULTANTS

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Board Counsel; Thru October 24,2020

502005 Board Counsel

Inv# 25006

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

MFD Rethinker Mailing

5060204 Member Agency
& Rate Payer Education

Inv. #20200043.01-3

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Cal-Recycle - EARs - Professional Services
7/1/20-9/30/20

5050251 Waste
Characterization Reports

Inv# 18079

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

November 2020 Rent

503010 Rent

Inv#43980

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Ed Center Operations; 10/27/20

507035 Education Center
Operations

Acct# 8155 20 033 0447972

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Utilities; services from October 29 to
November 28, 2020

503020 Utilities & Phone

Inv. #110019237

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Acct# 962670890 - Bill date Oct 15, 2020
Utilities

503020 Utilities & Phone

Inv# I2006036

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

e-recycling; acct# 143.011 inv#I2006036

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

Inv. #9717687, 9717691, 9717663

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

"

-57,028.64

-4,424.22
723.69

Check

-18,827.00
18,827.00

Check

-32,917.47
32,917.47

Check

-8,598.75
8,598.75

Check

-4,896.10
4,896.10

Check

-715.04
715.04

Check

-266.94
266.94

Check

-361.63
361.63

Check

-919.00
-919.00

Check

-11,732.75

#$%%# ! !%%&'%()!*&!!
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DATE

NUM NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

Rate Review; Sept 2020 Financial Assistance
Inv 9717687

505000 Rate Review

3,232.75

Rate Review; 2019 Rate survey - Inv 9717691

505000 Rate Review

7,500.00

2019 SB 1383 Compliance

505015 Recycling
Technical Assistance

1,000.00

Inv# 1350

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

IT Services; 11/1/20

502020 IT Support

see invoices above

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

SFC; inv# 10/29/2020 PRJ 160

507015 Shoreway Facility
Cost

37,065.80

SFC; electric meter 10/29/2020 PRJ 161

507015 Shoreway Facility
Cost

5,948.37

SFC - replace section base riser (leak)
10/29/2020 PRJ 162

507015 Shoreway Facility
Cost

7,838.00

SFC; annual backflow test 10/29/2020 PRJ
163

507015 Shoreway Facility
Cost

300.00

Parcel# 046-081-820

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Taxes; Parcel # 046-081-820 - Bill # 2020310074

507050 Sewer Fees
(property tax)

Acct# 4856 2003 7906 1909

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Dell dock for laptop

504005 Computer
Purchase for Office

300.42

Webinar Ad in on Zoom Acct

5060205 Residential
Outreach Programs

20.00

Webinar Ad In on Zoom Acct

5060203 Multi-Family
Outreach

20.00

RRD Raffle Prize

5060206 Community
Events

74.87

RRD Raffle Prize

5060206 Community
Events

63.57

RRD Raffle Prize

5060206 Community
Events

52.74

Warranty for Fellows - 5 PCs

504005 Computer
Purchase for Office

LLC

11/12/2020 10427 LANALERT, INC.

11/12/2020 10428 RECOLOGY SAN MATEO
COUNTY

11/12/2020 10429 SAN MATEO COUNTY
TAX COLLECTOR

11/12/2020 10430 WELLS FARGO

11/12/2020

ACH WELLS FARGO

100010 Wells Fargo Bank
October 2020 Client Analysis Service Charge

11/24/2020 WIRE MODERN HR, INC.

Check

-3,237.65
3,237.65

Check

Check

-51,152.17

-52,474.59
52,474.59

Check

-1,279.20

747.60

Expense

-601.90

503005 Bank Fees &
Services
100010 Wells Fargo Bank

601.90

Expense

-52,190.43

PPE 11/21/20

500000 Salaries - Admin

22,723.24

PPE 11/21/20

500100 Salaries Recycling

31,974.15

PPE 11/7/20

500150 Salaries - Car
Allowance

PPE 11/21/20

500200 Salaries - Opt Out

"

#$%%# ! !%%&'%()!*&!!
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DATE

NUM NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

PPE 11/21/20

501000 Benefits - Payroll
Taxes

793.13

PPE 11/21/20

501005 Benefits - Workers
Comp Ins

407.78

PPE 11/21/20

501010 Benefits Retirement Employee

PPE 11/21/20

501030 Benefits - CPE
Fee

Services on 11/14/20

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Services rendered 11/14/20 Community
Events

5060206 Community
Events

Medical

11/25/2020 10434 BOB DOPPELT

11/25/2020 10442 ENPLUG, INC.

11/25/2020 10432 ANNE MARIE BONNEAU

11/25/2020 10436 CAEAFTA

11/25/2020 10439 E-RECYCLING OF
CALIFORNIA

11/25/2020 10448 SCAPES INC

11/25/2020 10435 BROWNING FERRIS
INDUSTRIES OF CA INC

Inv# 31282

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

ED CENTER; Annual fee

507035 Education Center
Operations

Inv# 1036

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Community Events; 11/13/20 - Cooking Demo

5060206 Community
Events

-4,431.56
723.69

Check

-300.00
300.00

Check

-3,024.00
3,024.00

Check

-500.00
500.00

Inv# 11172020

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Admin fee to extend 15% purchase

6001008 Facilities
Improvements (SF067)

See above inv#

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2004352

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-700.95

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2004415

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-319.48

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2004506

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-978.34

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2006079

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-617.24

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2006093

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-708.46

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2006243

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-333.05

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2006265

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-674.97

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2006355

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-521.26

e-recycling;acct#143.011 inv#I2006403

400400 E-Recycling
Revenue

-806.66

Inv# 19909

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Shoreway Facility Cost - October 2020
Monthly Maintenance

507015 Shoreway Facility
Cost

INV. #4278-100006622
Cust# 4-4278-1001002

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

"

Check

-2,000.00
2,000.00

Check

-5,660.41

Check

-315.00
315.00

Check

-295,988.87

#$%%# ! !%%&'%()!*&!!
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DATE

NUM NAME

11/25/2020 10433 BFI OF CALIFORNIA INC
Ox Mtn Landfill - 4227

11/25/2020 10446 RECOLOGY BLOSSOM
VALLEY ORGANICS-N

11/25/2020 10450 ZANKER RECYCLING

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

DISPOSAL-NEWBY - Oct 2020

5070102 Disposal &
Processing - NEWBY

Inv. #4227-000058372
Cust#4-4227-0000552

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL OX MTN. - Sept 2020

5070101 Disposal &
Processing - OX

Inv. #2000010

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL-BVO - October 2020

5070103 Disposal &
Processing - BVON

Inv. #202010355

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL ZANKER - October 2020

5070104 Disposal &
Processing - ZANKER

11/25/2020 10437 CITY OF REDWOOD CITY Inv# BR57552

11/25/2020 10431 A. MACIEL PRINTING,
LLC

11/25/2020 10441 ECO PROMOTIONAL
PRODUCTS, INC.

11/25/2020 10443 Environmental and Energy
Consulting

11/25/2020 10447 S. Groner and Associates
(SGA)

11/25/2020 10449 STUDIO EM GRAPHIC
DESIGN

11/25/2020 10440 ECO IMPRINTS, INC.

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

295,988.87

Check

-886,205.61
886,205.61

Check

-167,817.68
167,817.68

Check

-298,141.26
298,141.26

Check

-30,420.66

Accounting services - 1st Quarter Finance &
acct services provided by RWC to SBWMA

502015 Accounting
Services

Inv# 250018, 250019

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Residential Outreach - Postcards 250018

5060205 Residential
Outreach Programs

9,741.42

Residential Outreach - postcards 25019

5060205 Residential
Outreach Programs

677.07

INV. #22846

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Give aways - reusable bag

5060001 Giveaways Schools and events

Inv# 1934

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Legislative Services; Consulting & Lobbying
Oct 2020

504000 Legislative & Reg
Advocacy

INV. #2462, 2464

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Website; 9/1/20-10/31/20

502025 Website Support

1,866.40

Battery Outreach

506025 Curbside Battery
Outreach

4,665.00

INV. #18078

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

MFD Outreach

5060203 Multi-Family
Outreach

Inv# 20945

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Board Meetings 11/12/20

502010 Board
Administration

"

30,420.66

Check

Check

-10,418.49

-2,095.28
2,095.28

Check

-3,333.33
3,333.33

Check

-6,531.40

Check

490.50

Check

#$%%# ! !%%&'%()!*&!!
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DATE

NUM NAME

11/25/2020 10444 JOE LA MARIANA

11/25/2020 10445 KBA DOCUMENT
SOLUTIONS, LLC

11/25/2020 10438 CITY OF SAN CARLOS

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

Check

-1,182.59

09232020

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

cell phone expense

503055 Cell Phones

360.00

office supplies

503030 Office Supplies

322.59

Meetings

503060 Conferences &
Meetings

150.00

professional dues & memberships

503045 Professional dues
& Memberships

350.00

Inv. #55Y1134647

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

CONT1535-01 - Inv# 55Y1134647

503035 Office Equipment
Costs

Inv# 18143

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Utilities; cust#198

503020 Utilities & Phone

11/25/2020 WIRE CITY OF SAN CARLOS

11/25/2020

11/27/2020

ACH GUARDIAN LIFE
INSURANCE CO OF
AMERICA

100010 Wells Fargo Bank
October 2020 franchise fee

507055 Franchise Fee to
the City of San Carlos

September 2019 Life and LTD insurance

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

December 2020 Life & LTD Insurance

501035 Benefits Guardian Life

ACH Anthem Blue Cross

100010 Wells Fargo Bank
December 2020 Medical Benefits

11/27/2020 WIRE SOUTH BAY RECYCLING
LLC

Check

-31.85
31.85

Check

-3,547.61
3,547.61

Expense

-183,313.98
183,313.98

Expense

-1,012.81

1,012.81

Expense

-4,774.40

501020 Benefits - Medical
100010 Wells Fargo Bank

4,774.40
Expense

1,812,770.07

2020-08

6001001 Facilities
Improvements (SF049)

63,053.34

2020-09

5070105 Disposal &
Processing - OTHER

28,270.41

2020-09

400350 Miscellaneous
Revenue

2,411.88

2020-09

6001001 Facilities
Improvements (SF049)

55,622.54

2020-09

507030 Shoreway
Charges

3,450.37

2020-09

507015 Shoreway Facility
Cost

6,022.15

2020-09

507025 Credit Card
Charges

7,462.49

2020-09

507005 Operator
Compensation SBR

1,651,300.65

TOTAL $4,017,414.72

"
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DATE

NUM NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Expense

PPE 12/5/20

500000 Salaries - Admin

22,723.25

PPE 12/5/20

500100 Salaries - Recycling

31,101.15

PPE 12/5/20

500150 Salaries - Car
Allowance

3,175.00

PPE 12/5/20

500200 Salaries - Opt Out
Medical

1,599.61

PPE 12/5/20

501000 Benefits - Payroll Taxes

854.47

PPE 12/5/20

501005 Benefits - Workers
Comp Ins

440.73

PPE 12/5/20

501010 Benefits - Retirement
Employee

PPE 12/5/20

501030 Benefits - CPE Fee

inv# I2006692

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

inv# I2006692

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

100010 Wells Fargo Bank
12/08/2020 WIRE MODERN HR, INC.

12/09/2020 10459 E-RECYCLING OF
CALIFORNIA

12/09/2020 10454 AT&T

12/09/2020 10465 PREMIER ACCESS
INSURANCE COMPANY

12/09/2020 10451 A. MACIEL PRINTING, LLC

12/09/2020 10453 ASCENT ENVIRONMENTAL
INC

12/09/2020 10460 Environmental and Energy
Consulting

12/09/2020 10466 SAN MATEO DAILY
JOURNAL

Acct. #650-596-7146-704-9

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Shoreway Facility cost; monthly
service Nov 13 thru Dec12, 2020

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

Group ID 17242
Reg ID 1000550973

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Benefits; Billing period December
2020; Registration ID: 1000550973

501035 Benefits - Guardian Life

Inv# 25046

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

MF Outreach-#25046

5060203 Multi-Family Outreach

Inv. #20200043.01-4

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Cal-Recycle - EARs - Professional
Services 10/1/20-10/30/20

5050251 Waste
Characterization Reports

Inv# 1953

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Legislative Services; Consulting &
Lobbying Nov 2020

504000 Legislative & Reg
Advocacy

Cust# 02105131-000

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

-56,220.67

-4,397.23
723.69
Check

-530.33
-530.33

Check

-1,033.99
1,033.99

Check

-988.16
988.16

Check

-625.11
625.11

Check

-12,022.50
12,022.50

Check

-3,333.41
3,333.41

Check

-1,518.20

Residential outreach; 11/5/20-11/9/20 5060205 Residential Outreach
Programs
12/09/2020 10467 STUDIO EM GRAPHIC
DESIGN

12/09/2020 10458 COMMON GOAL
CONSULTING GROUP, INC

INV. #18079

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Diversion Program Support

5050104 Diversion Program
Support

Inv# 004 & 005

100010 Wells Fargo Bank



1,518.20

Check

-763.00
763.00

Check

-3,337.50

!"   ##! ###$%#&' ($
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DATE

NUM NAME

12/09/2020 10452 AARONSON DICKERSON
COHN & LANZONE

12/09/2020 10457 COMCAST BUSINESS

12/09/2020 10456 Comcast

12/09/2020 10463 LANALERT, INC.

12/09/2020 10461 JOHN MANGINI

12/09/2020 10462 KBA DOCUMENT
SOLUTIONS LLC

12/09/2020 10464 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL
FINANCIAL SERVICES LLC

12/09/2020 10455 CITY OF SAN CARLOS

12/09/2020

12/10/2020

12/11/2020

ACH STERLING HSA

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

Facility Improv oversight 11/2/20

505005 Facility Improvement
Oversight

2,362.50

Facility Improv oversight 12/2/20

505005 Facility Improvement
Oversight

975.00

Inv# 1120009-SB.R

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Board Counsel; Thru November
23,2020

502005 Board Counsel

Inv. #111814694

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Acct# 962670890 - Bill date Nov 15,
2020
Utilities

503020 Utilities & Phone

Acct# 8155 20 033 0447972

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Utilities; services from November 29
to December 28, 2020

503020 Utilities & Phone

Inv# 1364

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

IT Services; 12/1/20

502025 Website Support

08312020

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Reimbursement - Office Supplies

503030 Office Supplies

Inv# 7731030

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Office Equipment; Contract#
42087343

503035 Office Equipment Costs

Inv# 3104360578

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Office Equipment Costs;
acct# 0012232627

503035 Office Equipment Costs

Inv# 18153

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Dec 2020 Rent

503010 Rent

TRANSACTION
TYPE

Check

AMOUNT

-13,400.00
13,400.00

Check

-361.63
361.63

Check

-315.09
315.09

Check

-3,326.14
3,326.14

Check

-40.19
40.19

Check

-488.77
488.77

Check

-128.59
128.59

Check

-4,896.10
4,896.10

August 2019 HSA

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

November and December 2020 Sterling HSA

501025 Benefits - Sterling HSA

11/26/20 ER contribution

501015 Benefits - Retirement
Employer

6,563.69

11/26/20 EE contribution

501010 Benefits - Retirement
Employee

4,431.56

11/12/20 ER Contribution

501015 Benefits - Retirement
Employer

6,557.24

11/12/20 EE contribution

501010 Benefits - Retirement
Employee

4,424.22

ACH JOHN HANCOCK USA

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

ACH WELLS FARGO

100010 Wells Fargo Bank


Expense

-2,822.73
2,822.73

Expense

-21,976.71

Expense

!"   ##! ###$%#&' ($
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DATE

NUM NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

November 2020 Client Analysis
Service Charge

503005 Bank Fees & Services

November 2020 franchise fee

507055 Franchise Fee to the
City of San Carlos

PPE 12/19/20

500000 Salaries - Admin

22,723.24

PPE 12/19/20

500100 Salaries - Recycling

31,027.53

PPE 12/19/20

500150 Salaries - Car
Allowance

PPE 12/19/20

500200 Salaries - Opt Out
Medical

PPE 12/19/20

501000 Benefits - Payroll Taxes

779.40

PPE 12/19/20

501005 Benefits - Workers
Comp Ins

402.55

PPE 12/19/20

501010 Benefits - Retirement
Employee

PPE 12/19/20

501030 Benefits - CPE Fee

INV. #18100, 18094, 18093, 18101

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

12/16/2020 WIRE CITY OF SAN CARLOS

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

12/22/2020 WIRE MODERN HR, INC.

12/23/2020 10486 STUDIO EM GRAPHIC
DESIGN

12/23/2020 10471 E-RECYCLING OF
CALIFORNIA

12/23/2020 10478 LIVEWIRE INFORMATION
SYSTEMS

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

557.92

Expense

-177,949.27
177,949.27

Expense

-51,260.65

-4,395.76
723.69
Check

-1,062.75

Shoreway Education center; 12/10/20 507035 Education Center
Operations

136.25

Commercial containers 12/6/20

5060202 Commercial/MFD
Containers

381.50

Residential outreach 12/6/20

5060205 Residential Outreach
Programs

436.00

Holiday Ad for 20-21

5060205 Residential Outreach
Programs

109.00

December 2020

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

inv# I2006194

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,362.88

inv# I2006427

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,269.58

inv# I2006482

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-932.04

inv#I2006539

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-662.61

inv# I2006546

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,177.50

inv# I2006547

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-960.21

inv# I2006548

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,097.54

inv# I2006688

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-271.56

inv# I2006689

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-832.59

inv# I2006690

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-774.78

inv# I2006691

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-910.27

inv# I2006799

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,334.79

inv# I2006800

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,601.90

inv# I2006802

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-1,264.77

inv# I2006803

400400 E-Recycling Revenue

-842.11

Inv# 234442, 234443, 234461

100010 Wells Fargo Bank



Check

Check

-15,295.13

-3,114.35
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_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
AGENDA ITEM: 9B ATTACHMENT A - p8

FULL PACKET PAGE 167 of 177

+)*





   


 

DATE

NUM NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

Shoreway Facility Cost; Inv# 234442

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

768.75

Shoreway Facitility Cost; Inv# 234443 507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

12/23/2020 10487 THE GRANT FARM

12/23/2020 10480 RECOLOGY SAN MATEO
COUNTY

12/23/2020 10484 SCAPES INC

12/23/2020 10469 BROWNING FERRIS
INDUSTRIES OF CA INC

12/23/2020 10468 BFI OF CALIFORNIA INC Ox
Mtn Landfill - 4227

12/23/2020 10479 RECOLOGY BLOSSOM
VALLEY ORGANICS-N

12/23/2020 10485 SLOAN VAZQUEZ, INC.

12/23/2020 10491 ZANKER RECYCLING

12/23/2020 10473 GRANT LIGON

12/23/2020 10489 VISION SERVICE PLAN (CA)

12/23/2020 10470 CLASSIC GRAPHICS

Shoreway Facility Cost; inv# 234461

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

52.50
2,293.10

Inv# MV-1578

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

O2E CAEAFTA November 2020

6001008 Facilities
Improvements (SF067)

12/10/2020 PRJ 159

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

inv# 167621

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

260.00

inv#168751

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

260.00

inv# 169698

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

260.00

inv# 170620

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

2,211.44

Inv# 19962

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Shoreway Facility Cost - November
2020 Monthly Maintenance

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

INV. #4278-100006682
Cust# 4-4278-1001002

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL-NEWBY - November
2020

5070102 Disposal & Processing
- NEWBY

Inv. #4227-000058626
Cust#4-4227-0000552

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL OX MTN. - Nov 2020

5070101 Disposal & Processing
- OX

Inv. #2000011

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL-BVO - November 2020

5070103 Disposal & Processing
- BVON

Inv# SBWMA-073

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

MRF Phase I Performance Test
12/17/20

6001017 Facilities
Improvements - Phase | MRF
Upgrades

Inv. #202011339

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

DISPOSAL ZANKER - November
2020

5070104 Disposal & Processing
- ZANKER

12/9/20

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Professional Development - 8/1/2012/9/20

503065 Training

Statement# 811119664
ClientID 3010464

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Benefits December 2020

501035 Benefits - Guardian Life

Inv#44156

100010 Wells Fargo Bank



Check

-1,258.75
1,258.75

Check

-2,991.44

Check

-315.00
315.00

Check

-263,107.38
263,107.38

Check

-891,772.27
891,772.27

Check

-199,038.95
199,038.95

Check

-19,969.40
19,969.40

Check

-259,528.01
259,528.01

Check

-1,250.00
1,250.00

Check

-170.68
170.68

Check

-3,561.83
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DATE

NUM NAME

12/23/2020 10472 GOLDEN IDEAS

12/23/2020 10488 TULIP PUBLISHING AND
GRAPHICS, INC

12/23/2020 10475 INTERNATIONAL CONTACT,
INC.

12/23/2020 10482 REDWOOD SHORES
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

12/23/2020 10483 S. Groner and Associates
(SGA)

12/23/2020 10477 LANALERT, INC.

12/23/2020 10474 HF&H CONSULTANTS LLC

12/23/2020 10476 KBA DOCUMENT
SOLUTIONS, LLC

12/23/2020 10481 REDWOOD CITY CHAMBER
OF COMMERCE

12/23/2020 10490 WELLS FARGO

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

Diversion program support 12/10/20

5050104 Diversion Program
Support

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

3,561.83

Inv# 2020056

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Battery outreach 12/14/20

506025 Curbside Battery
Outreach

Inv. #927271

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Mult-Family Outreach; 12/15/20

5060203 Multi-Family Outreach

INV. # I-05436

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Residential outreach; translation
12/9/20

506025 Curbside Battery
Outreach

88.13

MFD Outreach; translation 12/9/20

5060203 Multi-Family Outreach

88.12

Inv# 210102

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Residential Outreach 12/15/20

5060205 Residential Outreach
Programs

INV. #2480

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Battery Outreach; 11/1/20-11/30/20

506025 Curbside Battery
Outreach

Inv# 1372

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Computer purchase-overcredit from
Dell CC purchase

504005 Computer Purchase for
Office

Inv. #9717781

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

SB 1383 Compliance Plan Pjt#S2855
11/30/20

505015 Recycling Technical
Assistance

Inv. #55Y1140887

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

CONT1535-01 - Inv# 55Y1140887

503035 Office Equipment Costs

Inv# 8806

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Professional dues and memberships
12/7/20

503045 Professional dues &
Memberships

Check

-140.00
140.00

Check

-993.14
993.14

Check

-176.25

Check

-375.00
375.00

Check

-3,518.75
3,518.75

Check

-1,500.00
1,500.00

Check

-3,133.75
3,133.75

Check

-38.75
38.75

Check

-720.00
720.00

Acct# 4856 2003 7906 1909

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

Office supplies for mailing BOD gifts

503030 Office Supplies

Adobe CC

5060203 Multi-Family Outreach

299.94

Adobe CC

5060205 Residential Outreach
Programs

299.94

Zoom upgrade

5060206 Community Events

Return of Cyndi's laptop; came
damaged

504005 Computer Purchase for
Office

vendor for RRD Day

5060206 Community Events



Check

-3,676.31
45.97

50.00
-1,834.91
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_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
AGENDA ITEM: 9B ATTACHMENT A - p10

FULL PACKET PAGE 169 of 177

250.00
,)*





   


 

DATE

NUM NAME

12/23/2020

ACH GUARDIAN LIFE
INSURANCE CO OF
AMERICA

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT

Ed center

507035 Education Center
Operations

Computer purchase for Cyndi Urman

504005 Computer Purchase for
Office

1,750.91

Computer purchase for Hilary Gans

504005 Computer Purchase for
Office

2,190.46

Kahoot Acct for Webinar

5060206 Community Events

September 2019 Life and LTD
insurance

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

January 2021 Life & LTD Insurance

501035 Benefits - Guardian Life

12/24/2020 WIRE SOUTH BAY RECYCLING
LLC

12/28/2020

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

TRANSACTION
TYPE

AMOUNT

384.00

240.00
Expense

-1,051.62

1,051.62
Expense

1,645,009.47

2020-10v2

5070105 Disposal & Processing
- OTHER

2020-10v2

400350 Miscellaneous
Revenue

1,576.08

2020-10v2

507030 Shoreway Charges

6,661.93

2020-10v2

507025 Credit Card Charges

7,127.13

2020-10v2

507015 Shoreway Facility Cost

2020-10v2

507005 Operator
Compensation SBR

ACH Anthem Blue Cross

100010 Wells Fargo Bank
January 2021 Medical Benefits

501020 Benefits - Medical

10,431.87

3,930.01
1,618,434.61

Expense

-10,334.98
10,334.98

727$/



!"   ##! ###$%#&' ($

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/28/2021
AGENDA ITEM: 9B ATTACHMENT A - p11

FULL PACKET PAGE 170 of 177

*)*

9C
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Julia Au, Sr. Outreach, Education and Compliance Manager
January 28, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting
Legislative Session Update

Recommendation:
This staff report is for discussion purposes only and no formal action is requested of the Board of Directors.
Summary
The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Board monthly on the current 2021-2022 California
Legislative Session and regulatory activities being conducted by our lobbyist, Environmental and Energy
Consulting (EEC). All activities conducted in Fall 2020 and January 2021 are listed in Attachment A for review.
Great news! EEC successfully secured Senator Josh Newman (SD-29 which encompasses portions of Los
Angeles County, Orange County and San Bernardino County) to author the agency’s co-sponsored battery
recycling legislation (previously known as AB 1509 during the 2019-2020 legislative session*). EEC has also
secured both Assemblymembers Mullin and Berman to be principal co-authors. Senator Becker’s legislative staff
is also currently reviewing our agency’s request to sign on this proposed bill as a joint author. The current initial
draft of the bill would create an easy-to-participate in recycling program by establishing a state-wide takeback
program. We look forward to co-sponsoring this legislation again with Californians Against Waste and California
Product Stewardship Council. The bill should be introduced soon with the deadline being February 19 for bill
introductions.
*On behalf of the SBWMA and its non-profit legislative partners, (Californians Against Waste and the California
Product Stewardship Council) AB 1509 was introduced in February 2019 by Assemblymembers Mullin and
Berman, with Senator Jerry Hill as principal co-author. This bill successfully passed the Assembly with a 63-0 floor
vote. As the bill was being considered at the Senate Committee level, its forward progress was impeded due to
the COVID-19 freeze on all non-emergency legislation.
Analysis
The SBWMA contracts with EEC to act as the Agency’s legislative and regulatory lobbyist in California. EEC is a
registered lobbying firm in the state of California (Lobbying ID # 1371848) and the Board approved a new and
expanded contract with EEC on November 19, 2020. EEC will provide these legislative and regulatory services to
the SBWMA during the 2021-2022 Legislative Session.
Attachments:
Attachment A – Legislative Report Update
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RethinkWaste January 2021 Legislative Report
I.

Key Dates & Updates
• In early January, Governor Newsom released his budget for 2021-2022.
More details related to waste funding included below.
• The Legislature reconvened for session on January 11
• The deadline for bills to be introduced is February 19
• In late December, the Statewide Commission on Recycling Markets and
Curbside Recycling submitted their 19 recommendations to the
Legislature, California Environmental Protection Agency, and CalRecycle.
The top recommendation from the Commission was a collection program
for lithium-ion batteries.

II.

Governor Newsom’s Budget
• Circular Economy: Although Governor Newsom's budget included no
new funds to support a circular economy, the budget acknowledged the
importance of SB 1383 implementation and said "successfully
implementing this organic recycling program will close the loop by
recognizing the greater value of turning organic waste into new organic
products while creating 2,000 permanent jobs in the state."
The Budget indicated CalRecycle will embark on an evaluation of existing
program grants, loans, and payments to identify opportunities to better
align with a circular economy approach, combat climate change, and
support economic recovery.
•

Bottle Bill: The budget proposed $5M from the bottle bill fund in both
2021/2022 and statutory changes to expand pilot programs to encourage
consumer redemption in communities underserved by recycling funds.
The budget also proposed ongoing funding from the bottle bill fund to
implement statute from 2020 that requires plastic beverage containers
contain at least 50 percent post-consumer recycled content by 2030 (AB
793, Ting).

III.

Introduced Legislation
• AB 1 (Garcia): A reintroduction of AB 995 from last year (vetoed by
Governor), that reforms the Department of Toxic Substances Control to
encourage more transparency and emphasize protecting public health
•

SB 38 (Wiekowski): Creates an extended producer responsibility program
to replace the current bottle bill program, requiring plastic bottle
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manufacturers to enter a stewardship organization and cover the cost of
program implementation

IV.

•

SB 54 (Allen): Currently placeholder language declaring the intent of the
legislature to enact a plastic reduction act

•

AJR 4 (Garcia): Declares California to be in favor of the US's ratification of
the Basel Convention at the earliest opportunity and would request the
Biden Administration to accomplish this ratification as a matter of urgency

Fall & Winter Activities
•

We successfully secured Senator Newman as the author of a battery
recycling bill. RethinkWaste is co-sponsoring this legislation with
Californians Against Waste and California Product Stewardship Council.
Both authors from last session’s AB 1509 (Asms. Mullin and Berman) have
agreed to principle co-author the new legislation with Senator Newman.

•

We have drafted an initial version of the battery recycling bill, which
would create a recycling program for all battery chemistries by
establishing takeback bins at convenient retail locations across the state.
We met with CalRecycle to update them on our progress and are currently
awaiting technical feedback from them on the language.

•

We developed a list of potential recommendations for the Administration
to ease the implementation of 1383 based on RethinkWaste’s priorities.
We will share this list of recommendations with the Administration within
the coming months.

•

We have set the next meeting for the Zero Waste Now coalition, a coalition
of California public agencies sharing similar zero waste priorities across
the state. The first meeting of 2021 will take place on January 27.
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STAFF UPDATE
2021 SBWMA Meeting Planning Guide
●Board Meetings ●Finance Committee Meetings ●TAC Meetings
●Pub Ed Committee Meetings (tbd) ●Zero-Waste Committee Meetings (tbd)
●Agency-Sponsored Community Events

FEBRUARY:

25th: Board Meeting
• TBD

MARCH:

25th: Board Meeting
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Resolution Approving Issuance of letter of intent to participate in the PG&E EV Fleet Subsidy Grant Program
Resolution Approving Operation Agreement Work Plan
Resolution Approving 2020 Annual Report
Resolution Approving a contract with DTE Networks for Continued IT Services for 3-Years

Resolution Approving Updated SBWMA Purchasing Policy

SB1383 Program Implementation Update
Public Education and Environmental Education Update
Report out on Self-Insurance Study

APRIL:

22nd: Board Retreat 1:30PM to 5PM
• SBWMA Board’s Annual Strategic Planning Retreat (in future years it will be in February)
17th or 24th: Earth Day Community Festival at Shoreway

MAY:

May 27, 2021: Board Meeting
• Resolution Approving Updated Employee Handbook
• Update on Member Agency Approval of 3rd Amendment to the JPA Agreement

JUNE:

8th: Finance Committee Meeting
•
•

•
•

CY2021 mid-year budget review
CY2022 preliminary budget with tip fee projections for Member Agency’s Revenue Requirement

Review of 6-month audited financials ending December 13, 2020
Review of Annual Investment Returns

10: TAC Meeting
Discussion and Review of member agency compliance with the Cal Recycle Electronic Annual Reports
24th: Board Meeting
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9D

TBD

JULY:

22nd: Board Meeting
• Resolution Approving Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Property Insurance
• Resolution Approving the findings from the annual Operational Systems/Financial Systems Audits
• FY2021 mid-year budget review
• Review of Organics-to-Energy Pilot Results
• Site Masterplan review and airport project update
• Mid-Session Legislative Update with EEC

AUGUST:

No Meetings (DARK)

SEPTEMBER:

9th: Board/TAC--Joint Study Session
•

Review of the SBWMA’s report reviewing the annual Contractor’s Compensation Applications for 2022

23rd: Board Meeting
• Resolution Approving the SBWMA’s Final Report Reviewing and 2022 Recology San Mateo
County Compensation Application
• Resolution Approving the SBWMA’s Final Report Reviewing and 2022 South Bay Recycling
Compensation Application
• Resolution Approving CY2021 Mid-Year Calendar Budget Adjustments
12th: Finance Committee Meeting
•

Review of Draft FY2022 budget

OCTOBER:

TBD: Rethink Recycling Day(s) at Shoreway
12th: Finance Committee Meeting
•

Review of Draft FY2022 budget

21st:: Board Meeting Third Thursday (Study Session format
•
•
•

Review of DRAFT FY2022 Budget
Discussion on Operating Expenses
Capital Improvement Plan Discussion for 2022
o Organics-to-Energy Scale Up
o MRF Phase II
o Facility/site needs assessment project
o Airport Project update

NOVEMBER:

18th: Board Meeting- Third Thursday due to Thanksgiving Holiday
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•
•
•
•

Resolution Approving 2022 Calendar Year Budget
Approval Contract to Manager Operational Agreement RFP Process
2021 Legislative Session Recap
2021 Public Education and Environmental Education Recap

DECEMBER:

No Meetings (DARK)
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